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About this report

Accounting policies applied in preparing these results are
consistent with those applied in the audited ﬁnancial statements
for the prior ﬁnancial period.

Materiality is a deﬁning principle in determining relevant
information for this report and is one of four principles for
reporting content under the GRI G3.1 guidelines. As detailed on
our website, the board has considered matters deemed material
to the business of Hyprop and its stakeholders, and has addressed
issues that:
Q Have direct short-term signiﬁcant ﬁnancial impacts

Board approval
The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility on behalf of
the board to ensure the integrity of the Hyprop integrated report
2014. The committee has accordingly reviewed the report and
believes it appropriately and sufficiently addresses all material
issues, and fairly presents the integrated performance of Hyprop,
its subsidiaries and associates for the period, within the scope set
out above.
The board has approved this integrated report.

Pieter Prinsloo
Chief executive officer

Laurence Cohen
Financial director

Lindie Engelbrecht
Audit committee chairman

Forward-looking statement
This integrated report contains forward-looking statements that,
unless otherwise indicated, reﬂect our expectations as at 30 June
2014. Actual results may differ materially from the group’s
expectations if known and unknown risks or uncertainties affect its
business, or if estimates or assumptions prove inaccurate. The
group cannot guarantee that any forward-looking statement will
materialise and, accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these statements. The group assumes no
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement if
new information becomes available, other than as stipulated by
the JSE Listings Requirements.
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Unitholder information

Materiality

Hyprop’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, have audited the
ﬁnancial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014. Their
unqualiﬁed audit report appears on page 74. The scope of their
audit was limited to information in the ﬁnancial statements on
pages 78 to 135. In line with best practice, we take a combined
view of our assurance activities to ensure all material aspects are
covered.

Financial statements

We have applied many of the recommendations in the
International Integrated Reporting Committee’s 2013 framework.
We have also considered the guidelines of the Global Reporting
Initiative and its construction and real estate sector supplement
(collectively GRI G3.1), as well as new disclosure standards in GRI
G4 which become effective for our 2015 ﬁnancial year. In ﬁnancial
year 2014, Hyprop compiled its ﬁrst submission to the Carbon
Disclosure Project, a voluntary and comprehensive international
benchmark on environmental reporting.

Assurance

Governance

Results have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the SAICA Financial Reporting
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and
Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial
Standards Council, the JSE Limited Listings Requirements and the
South African Companies Act 2008.

possible future regulations, and institutionalised norms and
standards

Risk management

In terms of material changes to the size, structure or ownership
of the group, the acquisition of Somerset Mall in exchange for
the majority of Hyprop’s investment in Sycom Property Fund
(Sycom) was concluded on 1 October 2013. In addition, Hyprop
converted to a REIT structure effective 1 July 2013 (page 5) and
acquired an 87% interest in African Land Investments Limited on
5 December 2013. As part of the REIT conversion process, Hyprop’s
combined unit structure was converted to an all share structure
effective on 18 August 2014. Future distributions will be classiﬁed
as dividends.

(internal and external)
Q Are considered social norms, as indicated by current and

Performance

The scope of reporting on our sustainability initiatives covers the
group holding company and shopping centres in our South
African portfolio.

Q Are agreed strategic policy statements
Q Are peer-based norms
Q Are considered important enough to act on by stakeholders

Hyprop in brief

The content of this integrated report identiﬁes and explains the
material economic, social, governance and environmental issues
facing the group and their impact. This enables stakeholders to
accurately evaluate our ability to create and sustain value over
the short, medium and long term.

2014 in perspective

In 2013, Hyprop changed its year-end from 31 December to 30 June. In line with
JSE regulations, our previous integrated report presented the ﬁnancial results
and non-ﬁnancial performance of the group for the six months to 30 June 2013,
and followed the integrated report for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
was published in May 2013. Financial comparisons in this report are against the
six or 12 months to 30 June 2013, as speciﬁed. Non-ﬁnancial comparatives are
30 June 2014 against 30 June 2013.
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Profile

¼

Largest JSE-listed Real
Estate Investment
Trust (REIT) specialising
in shopping centres

¼

Income distributed
semi-annually

¼

Sustainable income
growth through
contractual rental
escalations

¼

Focus on continuous
portfolio
improvements

Hyprop is one of Africa’s leading
listed property funds, and specialises
in high-quality shopping centres. It
is also one of South Africa’s oldest
listed property companies (1988) and
operates as an internally managed
Real Estate Investment Trust, based
in Rosebank, Johannesburg.
Hyprop is listed on the JSE’s retail REIT sector and directly owns 12 prime
shopping centres in major metropolitan areas across South Africa.
4 506m2
157 031m2
2

156 061m

60 172m2

Shopping centres
distinguished by:
¼

Quality, size and
location

¼

Flagship national and
international stores

¼

Preferred shopping
destinations
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Hyprop portfolio
781 139m2

38 345m2

365 024m2

O Super regional* O Large regional* O Regional
O Value centres O Held for sale O Offices
* See page 18 for ownership details
The group’s growing presence in sub-Saharan Africa is held through Atterbury
Africa, a joint venture with Attacq Limited (Attacq) and the Atterbury Group.
Hyprop and Attacq also acquired African Land Investments Limited (African
Land) during the year. Post-year-end, African Land was restructured (effective
1 July 2014). Through Hyprop Investments (Mauritius), Hyprop will hold 50% in
Manda Hill Shopping Centre, African Land’s only asset. Atterbury Africa Limited
(Atterbury Africa) will hold the balance.

3

2014 in perspective

Excellent track record
Specialised and
experienced internal

growth

management

Sound

Invest in high-quality

balance sheet

shopping centres

Hyprop in brief

Focus on
sustainable income

in sub-Saharan Africa
Performance

A decade of growth – compound annual growth rate
(2005 – 2014)
11,7%

Net asset value per unit (excluding deferred tax)

20,4%

Unit price

18,4%

Total return

32,1%

Risk management

Distributions (cents per unit)

Governance

Quality and focused growth
Property assets (R billion)

25

Sub-Saharan Africa
R2,2 billion
Held for sale R1,7 billion

Stand-alone offices
Sub-Saharan Africa (excluding SA)

20
Listed property securities
Core portfolio
R22,5 billion

Shopping centres

10
5

30 June 2011

30 June 2014
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Unitholder information
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Financial statements
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Performance highlights
Financial
´ Distributions up 11,3% to 472 cents per unit
´ Total property assets up 17,5% to R26,4 billion
´ R3 billion allocated to Africa expansion (includes investments made to date)
´ Proceeds of R205 million from indirect disposals
´ Increased access to unsecured funding – 32% of total debt funded through debt capital market

Non-ﬁnancial
´ Share incentive scheme implemented
´ Increased use of social media to connect with shoppers
´ Roll out of high-speed wi-ﬁ across the portfolio
´ More focused environmental and social strategy following independent assessment
´ Implemented energy-saving initiatives
´ Participated in Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark and Carbon Disclosure Project

Corporate activity
´ Acquisition of Somerset Mall adds 66 831m2 in GLA and R2,3 billion in value to the direct portfolio
´ Acquisition of Manda Hill Shopping Centre in Lusaka, Zambia (African Land) expands our

presence in the rest of Africa
´ Rosebank Mall redevelopment completed in September 2014

Operational
´ Occupancy levels remain high at 97,6% across portfolio
´ Property costs well contained with the cost-to-income ratio marginally lower at 34,4%
´ 9,5% distributable earnings growth from regional, large regional and super-regional malls

(excluding Somerset Mall)
´ 8,3% rental growth across South African portfolio

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

5

2014 in perspective

Trading indicators hold steady
10
8
8,0%

7,8%
7,0%

6

3,3%

6,8%

6,9%

7,0%

6,9%

3,4%
2,7%

2,4%

2
0

2011

2012

2013

2014

Performance

O Trading density growth
O Rent ratio (rental as % of turnover)
Q

Hyprop in brief
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7,0%

Vacancies

Moving to international best practice

The transition to international standards brings enhanced governance, transparency and accountability to
the real estate sector. Like their global peers, South African REITs provide investors with regular statutory
reporting and are subject to strict oversight. For more details, see http://www.sareit.com.

Governance

The REIT structure is an international standard for property investment, where a tax dispensation ensures
ﬂow through of net property income after expenses and interest. Over 25 countries use a similar model,
including the US, UK, Australia, Belgium, France, Hong Kong, Japan and Singapore. In some jurisdictions,
such as South Africa, REITs are exempt from capital gains taxation.

Risk management

The transition to Real Estate Investment Trusts (REIT) has aligned the South African listed property sector
(both property loan stock companies and property unit trusts) to global standards and enhanced the
appeal of the sector as an investment opportunity.

Financial statements
Unitholder information

Woolworths, Rosebank Mall

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Chairman’s report
Chairman: Gavin Tipper

The global economy is showing
signs of improvement although
areas of concern remain. The
US Federal Reserve’s decision to
steadily reduce and, imminently,
end quantitative easing augurs
well for the state of that
economy. The UK economy is
producing solid growth, Germany
remains the engine behind a
European economy which is
recovering at a slower pace
than expected and China is still
producing strong growth, albeit
at levels lower than those in the
last few years.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

While there is not yet a convincing recovery in all material parts
of the global economy, signiﬁcant progress has been made and
we will increasingly be faced with an environment of rising
interest rates and central banks taking steps to address the
balance sheets created to sustain the recovery.
South Africa remains a tale of two economies. The JSE traded at
record levels during the year and there is an abundance of capital
for the right opportunities. In contrast, GDP growth is tepid and
conditions on the ground for many businesses are difficult
with constrained consumer demand, and cost pressure from
administered price increases, wage inﬂation and fuel price
increases. The South African Reserve Bank has raised interest
rates, albeit cautiously, and over the next year will be challenged
to create an environment conducive to the strong growth South
Africa needs.
The ﬁnancial year under review was another vibrant period for
listed property in South Africa. The consolidation process in the
industry continued, there were several new listings that received
enthusiastic responses, a number of major transactions were
announced and most listed property entities produced credible
growth.
The South African listed property sector produced a total return
of 6% for the year to 30 June 2014 and the FTSE/JSE REIT index
delivered a return of 8,34%. Hyprop’s return for the same period
was 8,75%.
Hyprop’s specialised portfolio of premium shopping centres in
South Africa and selected countries in Africa is structured to
provide shareholders with income and capital growth. The
following were some of the key initiatives undertaken during the
year:
Q The exchange of the Sycom investment for direct ownership
of the Somerset Mall was completed
Q Hyprop acquired an effective majority stake in Manda Hill
shopping centre via an investment in African Land
Q A further portion of the capital allocated to the Atterbury
Africa venture was invested as the development of the
shopping centres owned by Atterbury Africa progressed
Q The targeted limit for investment in sub-Saharan Africa of
R750 million was increased to R3 billion
Q Signiﬁcant progress was made on the R932 million
redevelopment of the Rosebank Mall. At the time of writing,
the project has been substantially completed and the result is
gratifying
Q Limited progress was made on the disposal of non-core
assets; however, this is receiving attention
Q Various smaller projects to improve our existing shopping
centres were completed and several new projects commenced
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Outlook

Hyprop is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance. This integrated report sets out details of our
corporate governance structures and the extent to which we
comply with relevant codes of corporate governance and
regulatory requirements.

Board changes
As previously reported, Thabo Mokgatlha joined the board as an
independent non-executive director, and a member of the audit
committee, on 28 August 2013.

Appreciation
On behalf of the board I thank our executives, management and
staff for their efforts during the year. I also offer our thanks to
our stakeholders for their support, and my thanks to my fellow
board members for their contributions.

Unitholder information

Manda Hill shopping centre is performing well and we expect
that to continue. The Atterbury Africa developments are
progressing in line with expectations and the West Hills shopping
centre in Accra should open in October 2014. We will look to
expand the African portfolio through greenﬁelds developments
and purchases of operating shopping malls, where properties that
meet our investment criteria can be sourced.

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Demand for space in our premium shopping malls remains strong
and these assets should continue to provide strong returns for
the foreseeable future, despite constrained economic growth.
There is a pipeline of projects to improve or extend the malls, and
enhance their returns, which will be implemented in a structured
manner over the coming ﬁnancial years. We will continue to
dispose of non-core assets where appropriate.

Transformation is a priority for successful South African
companies, and Hyprop is devoting considerable resources to
initiatives that result in meaningful, sustainable outcomes.

Governance

There are no obvious catalysts to produce the levels of economic
growth needed to address some of the fundamental issues South
Africa faces. Furthermore, our ﬁnancial markets are increasingly
tied to the major international markets and will be affected as
interest rates rise and the supply of easy money is restricted.

We regularly review and reﬁne the manner in which we engage
with our various stakeholders; our desire to be a good corporate
citizen pervades our approach to business and we endeavour to
act in a responsible, balanced and commercially sensible manner.
We devote considerable effort to ensuring the sustainability of
our business model, we have established a range of objectives
related to environmental matters and progress towards these
objectives is regularly evaluated.

Risk management

At the last annual general meeting, unitholders approved a longterm share incentive plan and the ﬁrst allocations in terms of the
plan were made in December 2013. We are conﬁdent that the
plan will achieve its objectives.

We recognise the importance of sustainability as it applies to the
different facets of our business.

Performance

Hyprop became a REIT on 1 July 2013. The JSE REIT approval
process included a requirement to convert Hyprop’s combined
unit capital structure to an all-share structure. Accordingly, the
appropriate resolutions were put to unitholders, and passed in
July 2014. The new capital structure aligns Hyprop with
internationally recognised REIT capital structures and the
increased transparency and simplicity should further enhance its
investment appeal.

Sustainability
Hyprop in brief

Hyprop’s ﬁnancial performance for the period exceeded the
guidance provided to the market at the interim stage with
distributions growing by 11,3%. The result for the period was a
function of a range of well-managed factors including continued
low vacancy rates in the retail portfolio (beneﬁting from sustained
strong demand from retailers for space in prime centres), effective
management of the cost-to-income ratio and efficiencies in
ﬁnancing costs.

While there are macro factors that support a cautious outlook,
we have a high-quality portfolio that is resilient and should
produce satisfactory returns over an extended period. Signiﬁcant
effort is devoted to managing and enhancing the portfolio, and
to identifying opportunities to grow the portfolio with the right
quality assets. All of this informs an optimistic outlook for Hyprop
for the next year.

2014 in perspective

Hyprop will continue to invest in its existing properties to
maintain their premier ratings, and to expand them where
commercially viable, and will acquire new properties where they
meet our investment criteria and are available at prices that
provide acceptable, risk-adjusted returns.

Gavin Tipper
Chairman

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Chief executive officer’s report
Chief executive officer: Pieter Prinsloo

We will continue to pursue the disposal of non-core assets
including the stand-alone office portfolio and retail assets,
Stoneridge Centre, Willowbridge and CapeGate Lifestyle.
Proceeds from these disposals will be applied against
refurbishments and extension projects, as well as reducing debt.
In addition, Hyprop’s free ﬂoat increased to 100% following the
exit of Redeﬁne in October 2013.

The past year was a landmark
period for Hyprop in terms of
corporate activity. It was the
ﬁrst year of operating under new
REIT legislation and the company
strengthened its portfolio by
acquiring two quality shopping
centres, Somerset Mall in the
Western Cape and Manda Hill
in Lusaka, Zambia. The portfolio
was further enhanced by
disposing of indirect investments
in South Africa, including our
investment in Sycom and
Mantrablox.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

The core portfolio of large and super-regional shopping centres
proved resilient, with strong net income growth despite a slow
economy. This was supported by a strong operating performance
including:
Q A consistently high occupancy rate of 97,6%
Q Contained property expenses at a cost-to-income ratio of
34,4%
Q Strict control over rental arrears at 0,4% of rental income
Q Trading density growth and rent affordability remaining steady
at 7% and 6,9% respectively, despite a weakening trade
environment
The net result was 9,5% like-for-like growth in distributable
earnings from regional, large and super-regional malls (excluding
Rosebank and Somerset malls). Hyprop exceeded its full-year
guidance of between 8,5% and 10,5% to achieve distribution
growth of 11,3%.

Developments
Our strategy is to continuously improve and maintain the quality
of Hyprop’s existing portfolio through redevelopments,
extensions and refurbishments.
Redevelopments relate to extensive refurbishments to modernise
shopping centres in line with evolving customer and retailer
needs. The Rosebank Mall has undergone a two-year
redevelopment project at a capital cost of R932 million, which
was completed in September 2014. In addition to new retail
tenants, the centre was completely refurbished with new lifts,
escalators, restrooms, mall ﬁnishes and additional parking. Further
detail on Rosebank Mall can be found on pages 33.
Extensions are tenant-driven enlargements of existing stores or
the entry of new stores. During the year, Edgars stores were
extended at The Glen and Canal Walk while the extension of
Woolworths at CapeGate was completed. In line with Hyprop’s
strategy of maintaining a quality shopping centre portfolio,
several projects are under way across the portfolio.

9

Development projects completed/under way
Project

Capex

Completion date

Canal Walk

Mr Price and Forever 21

R14 million

September 2014

Willowbridge

Relocation of Dis-Chem

R12 million

September 2014

CapeGate

Foodcourt tenants

R4 million

October 2014

Hyde Park

Dion Wired
Various high-end tenants

R25 million

November 2014

2014 in perspective

Shopping centre

Hyprop in brief
Performance
Risk management
Governance

also open a ﬂagship Edgars Cosmetics Gallery, a unique new
concept store offering a broad range of high-end cosmetics.
Refurbishments are undertaken to refresh and upgrade existing
facilities. Restrooms at Hyde Park Corner and Atterbury Value
Mart were refurbished during the year and equipment totalling
R27,9 million replaced. This will contribute to lower maintenance
costs and improved environmental efficiencies.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Unitholder information

Hyde Park Corner will be introducing a number of leading
international brands in November 2014, including pre-eminent
fashion brands that have chosen to launch their South African
presence in Hyde Park Corner. These include: high-end Italian
couture house, Versace; French leather goods and accessories
group, Longchamp; and country-living inspired UK fashion label,
Jigsaw. Other new tenants will include UK designer, Paul Smith,
Italian fashion brand, Emporio Armani, and premium coffee label,
Nespresso. In addition to global fashion brands, the centre will

Financial statements

Various high-end tenants, Hyde Park Corner
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Chief executive officer’s report continued
Sub-Saharan Africa (excluding SA)
Since the inception of Atterbury Africa in 2012, Hyprop has
invested R812 million in the African initiative. As part of the ﬁrst
development, the largest shopping centre in Accra, Ghana – West
Hills Mall – will open in October 2014. Construction of Achimota
Mall, also in Ghana, began during the year and is due for
completion in October 2015.
In December 2013, Hyprop together with Attacq acquired premier
shopping centre, Manda Hill, in Lusaka, Zambia through the
acquisition of African Land.
Atterbury Africa has made strong inroads on the continent and
has a solid pipeline of developments set for completion over the
next two years. It is well placed to become a leading shopping
centre fund across Africa. Post-year-end, African Land was
integrated into Atterbury Africa and the combined entity will be
known as AttAfrica.

Leasing
In terms of leasing, 2014 was a reasonably active year with
278 leases signed in South Africa, equating to 135 000m² (17% of
total portfolio by GLA). Due to strong demand for space and low
vacancies in the core portfolio, lease terms remained favourable
and the portfolio recorded rental growth of 8,3% (2013: 6,3%) and
contractual escalation of 8,2% (2013: 7,4%). We continued to see
strong interest from international brands seeking to establish
their presence in South Africa across the Hyprop portfolio. Postyear-end, we opened the ﬁrst River Island and Forever 21 stores in
South Africa. Establishing a relationship with leading international
fashion brands aligns with our strategy of driving an appealing
tenant mix and offering shoppers access to popular leading labels.
The workload for ﬁnancial year 2015 increases to 25% of the total
portfolio by GLA, equal to 200 000m2. Shopping centres most
affected are CapeGate, Clearwater and The Glen. Although many
tenants will exercise their option to renew their leases, this gives
us an opportunity to replace underperforming tenants and
upgrade or enlarge national tenants to retain ﬂagship status.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Hyprop is concerned about exclusivity clauses inherited in
some supermarket leases. As shopping centre owners, we must
honour these clauses while providing shoppers with variety
and choice. We believe exclusivity clauses have no place in
a maturing retail market and we support the Competition
Commission’s investigation of the anticompetitive effects of these
outdated clauses.

Sustainability
There is greater focus globally to introduce sustainable energysaving initiatives as natural resources become increasingly rare
and costly. In South Africa, higher electricity tariffs have made
the introduction of green energy increasingly viable and will
simultaneously reduce carbon emissions across the portfolio.
A number of projects aimed at improving energy efficiency were
completed during the year. To date, these initiatives have saved
4,9 million kWh with cost savings of R5,9 million. During the next
ﬁnancial year, Hyprop will introduce smart metering to further
improve monitoring. In addition, a 500kWp solar photovoltaic
plant will be installed at Clearwater Mall. More detail on these
projects can be found on page 47.

Connecting with consumers
The advent of online shopping and its impact on our shopping
centres is a topical issue that is addressed internally and forms
part of our engagement with tenants. Online shopping in South
Africa has gained little traction due to limited bandwidth, vast
geographic distances that restrict delivery to large cities and a
strong shopping centre culture. As a result, online shopping is
currently less than 1% of total retail sales. This is also being
inﬂuenced by international retailers seeking to penetrate the
untapped African market and doing so through ﬂagship brickand-mortar stores in large, dominant shopping centres. In the
long term, online shopping is expected to increase as bandwidth
improves and urbanisation increases. However, it is unlikely that
stores will be cannibalised by online shopping in their entirety,
particularly food and fashion. Feedback from our tenants
indicates that they will enhance their stores to embrace
technology and improve the shopping experience.
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Looking forward to the next ﬁnancial year, economic trading
conditions are expected to remain subdued. Given the mature
shopping centre market in South Africa, Hyprop will maintain its
leading position by improving the quality of its core portfolio
while disposing of non-core assets.
As proven with the acquisition of Manda Hill, Hyprop has the
balance sheet strength and ability to quickly capitalise on
appropriate opportunities in South Africa and the rest of Africa.

Word of appreciation

Performance

My gratitude to our board members for their wise counsel and
support. I thank the executive team and all our employees for
their dedication and hard work, our loyal service providers and
our tenants for their continued support.

Hyprop in brief

Post-year-end, mall security has come under scrutiny. Security is
a priority for the group and our security strategies are proactively
reviewed to ensure we adopt the latest technologies, effectively
deploy current resources, identify and address vulnerable areas
and collaborate with tenants, the South African Police Service
and other business organisations. For now, we are working closely
with our service providers to adjust our security strategies
accordingly to prevent crime.

Strategy and focus
2014 in perspective

Technology is at the forefront of connecting with consumers.
Over the years, Hyprop has introduced technology to help drive
footfall and increase dwell time, mainly through mobile
applications. All our shopping centres now have a strong presence
on social media platforms such as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram
and YouTube. During the year, high-speed wi-ﬁ was introduced
across the portfolio with 88 000 registered users to date. To
support spend, gift cards are being introduced at Clearwater,
Woodlands, CapeGate and Somerset malls.

Pieter Prinsloo
Chief executive officer

Risk management
Governance
Financial statements

WiFi

Unitholder information

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Financial director’s report
Financial director: Laurence Cohen

Introduction
The year under review has been a successful one for Hyprop. The
core portfolio continues to deliver solid results, while
redevelopment of Rosebank Mall met signiﬁcant milestones
ahead of completion in September 2014.
Progress with investments in sub-Saharan Africa (excluding
South Africa) included the restructure of African Land, effective
1 July 2014.
Condensed statement of distributable earnings

iDistributions up 11,3% to
472 cents per unit
iTotal property assets up 17,5%

to R26,4 billion
iAcquired Somerset Mall
(Western Cape) and
Manda Hill (Lusaka, Zambia)
iInvestment in sub-Saharan
Africa (excluding South Africa)

increased to R2,2 billion
iNAV increased by 11,1% to
R76,02 cents per unit

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Revenue
Investment property
Listed investments
Property expenses
Net property income
Other operating expenses
Operating income
Atterbury Africa
African Land
Net income before interest
Net interest

Unaudited
Audited 12 months
30 June
30 June
2013
2014
Rm
Rm
2 392
2 172
2 355
2 023
37
149
(821)
(697)
1 571
1 475
(56)
(56)
1 515
1 419
5
1
30
1 550
1 420
(401)
(388)

Distributable earnings
1 149
Number of combined units (000) 243 256
Distribution per combined unit
(cents)

472,0

%
16,4
(75,0)
17,8
6,5
6,8

9,2
3,6

1 032
243 113

11,3

424,0

11,3

Financial performance
Distributable earnings from regional, large regional and superregional malls (excluding Somerset Mall, acquired 1 October 2013)
increased by 9,5%, with average growth of 11,0% from The Glen,
Clearwater and Woodlands. The Glen beneﬁted from the
expansion of Edgars by 2 700m2 and reduced assessment rates
while Clearwater and Woodlands beneﬁted from turnover rental
of R10,1 million and lower municipal expenses.
Rosebank Mall continued to be affected by the redevelopment,
with distributable earnings decreasing by R16,1 million. This was in
line with budget.
Property expenses were well contained with the cost-to-income
ratio was marginally lower at 34,4% (30 June 2013: 34,9%). The total
cost-to-income ratio at fund level increased to 37,3% from 35,1%.
This was due to a reduction in income from listed investments,
after disposing of the investment in Sycom and the once-off
consolidation of fund management costs relating to African Land.
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Total arrears (excluding Rosebank Mall) at 30 June 2014 were R14,3 million (30 June 2013: R17,1 million). This constitutes 0,4% (30 June 2013: 0,5%)
of rental income and includes Somerset Mall. The corresponding allowance for doubtful debts was R7,1 million (30 June 2013: R6,7 million).

2014 in perspective

Net interest paid increased by 3,6% year-on-year. The increase was marginal due to proceeds from disposals of R205 million, reducing shortterm funding requirements.

Drivers of distribution growth

1 300 000
1 200 000
1 100 000

33 643

116 017

(16 124)

106 785

1 468

1 032 127

(111 507)

(13 809)

Sycom

Net
interest

1 148 600

Hyprop in brief

1 400 000

1 000 000
900 000

Performance

800 000
700 000
600 000
500 000

30 June 2013

Existing
portfolio

Other

30 June 2014

Risk management

Somerset Sub-Saharan Rosebank
Mall
Africa (excluding
Mall
South Africa)

Net income – stronger contribution from shopping centres
June 2014

June 2013

3% 2% 2%

10%
3%

Governance

OSouth African shopping centres

Stand-alone offices
Sycom
O Sub-Saharan Africa
(excluding South Africa)
O
O

93%

87%
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Unitholder information

Income from listed property securities decreased from 10% of total income a year ago to 2% currently, following the exchange of Somerset
Mall for the investment in Sycom and the subsequent disposal of the remaining units.

Financial statements

In line with Hyprop’s strategy to focus on prime-quality shopping centres, the contribution of shopping centres to net income grew from
87% a year ago to 93% this year. In addition, sub-Saharan Africa (excluding South Africa) contributed 2% to net income.
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Financial director’s report continued
Investment property
Investment property was independently valued at year-end and increased to R25,6 billion (30 June 2013: R19,8 billion). This was driven
primarily by income growth and the acquisition of Somerset Mall and Manda Hill Shopping Centre (African Land).

Property portfolio
Value attributable to Hyprop
Business segment

Rentable area
(m2)

30 June 2014
R000

30 June 2013
R000

Value per
rentable area
30 June 2014
(R/m2)

Canal Walk (80%)

157 031

6 064 000

5 627 200

48 271

Super regional
Clearwater
The Glen (75,15%)
Woodlands Boulevard
CapeGate(1)
Somerset Mall

157 031
86 028
76 849
71 617
98 567
66 831

6 064 000
3 473 000
2 059 269
2 196 000
1 738 000
2 252 000

5 627 200
3 203 000
1 854 094
1 886 000
1 602 000

48 271
40 371
35 654
30 663
17 633
33 697

399 892

11 718 269

8 545 094

31 006

Hyde Park

Large regional

38 345

1 769 000

1 556 000

46 134

Regional
Atterbury Value Mart
Willowbridge(2)
Stoneridge(2) (90%)
Somerset Value Mart

38 345
47 786
43 001
48 584
12 386

1 769 000
1 105 000
594 000
432 000
185 000

1 556 000
987 000
585 000
421 200
185 000

46 134
23 124
13 814
9 880
14 936

Value centres

151 757

2 316 000

2 178 200

15 578

Shopping centres
Stand-alone offices(3)
Development property(4)
African Land(5)

747 025
34 114

21 867 269
457 000
1 849 000
1 408 262

17 906 494
442 000
1 494 000

32 277
13 396

Investment property
Listed property securities(6)
Investment in Atterbury Africa

781 139

25 581 531
812 459

19 842 494
2 279 253
336 994

26 393 990

22 458 741

781 139
(1)Includes

Lifestyle Centre which is held for sale
(2)Held for sale
(3)Includes Glenwood, Glenfield and Lakefield which are held for sale
(4)Rosebank Mall and Mall Offices – transferred to development property from September 2012
(5)87% (Hyprop’s share) of Manda Hill Shopping Centre
(6)Sycom units – sold in December 2013 and January 2014

Held for sale
In line with our strategy to dispose of non-core assets, we are
disposing of our stand-alone office portfolio, as well as Stoneridge
Centre, Willowbridge and CapeGate Lifestyle. As a result, these
properties have been classiﬁed as held for sale and in total
amount to R1,7 billion.

Investments in sub-Saharan Africa
(excluding South Africa)
Atterbury Africa
Hyprop received a dividend of R4,8 million from its investment in
Atterbury Africa, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop
Investments (Mauritius). Accra Mall in Ghana is currently Atterbury
Africa’s only income-producing property.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Hyprop’s effective investment in Atterbury Africa increased to
R812 million (30 June 2013: R337 million), primarily due to capital
contributions for the West Hills Mall development (Accra, Ghana)
and land acquisitions in Ghana.
African Land
Hyprop received a dividend of R30,3 million from African Land for
the year.
Post-year-end, the investment was restructured (effective 1 July
2014), with Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) now holding 50% in
Manda Hill (Lusaka, Zambia), African Land’s only asset. Atterbury
Africa will hold the balance.
Following the restructure, Hyprop’s effective interest in Manda
Hill will be 68,75%, down from 87%.
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Net asset value (NAV)

At 30 June 2014, the closing combined unit price of R79,51
represented a premium of 4,6% to the NAV per combined unit.

The maturity proﬁle of our various debt facilities, ﬁxed rates and
swaps is shown below:

Debt maturity proﬁle: bank facilities
and debt capital market funding
Average maturity 3,03 years

Rm

Borrowings

1 536

1 600
1 400

1 316

1 200

30 June
2013
Rm

800

697

600

656 603

750
590
450

400

400

200

200

3 509

3 404

1 600
697
1 393
(125)

1 150
498
333
(240)

Net borrowings

7 074

5 145

28,4

22,9

0

0
June 2015

0
0
June 2016

0
June 2017

O Bank facilities O Bonds/CP

Investments in sub-Saharan Africa (excluding South Africa) are
made with US dollar funding.

We will consider both conventional bank funding and DCM
funding as potential avenues for reﬁnancing, with the aim of
leveraging off a sound balance sheet to reduce the average cost
of funding and increase the maturity proﬁle.

Maturity proﬁle: ﬁxed interest rates and swaps
Average maturity 4,24 years
Rm
1 800
1 600
1 400
1 200
1 000
800
600
400
200
0

1 640
1 250
900

900

450
0
June 2015

June 2016

June 2017

June 2018

June 2019

June 2020

Cash management
Contractual rental income comprises 97% of Hyprop’s revenue
from direct property investments. All rental income earned by
the company, less property expenses and interest on debt, is
distributed to shareholders semi-annually.
Cash collected between distribution payments is paid into
ﬂoating rate debt facilities to beneﬁt from the interest saving.
New developments and capital expenditure are funded with
debt while acquisitions, depending on their size, may be funded
in part by equity. Proceeds from the sale of non-core assets will
be applied to capital expenditure, developments and the
reduction of debt.

Appreciation
I thank the ﬁnance team for their dedication, commitment and
hard work during the year. I also extend my appreciation to my
fellow board members for their sound advice and valued guidance.

Laurence Cohen
Financial director

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Unitholder information

Bank facilities amounting to approximately R2 billion (drawndown amount at 30 June 2014: R1,3 billion) will mature in the next
12 months. This will provide an opportunity to increase the
average maturity proﬁle of debt facilities and possibly also
increase the ratio of DCM funding.

O USD funding

Financial statements

At year-end, interest rates were hedged for 71,4% (30 June
2013: 87%) of borrowings, at a weighted average rate of 7,5%
(30 June 2013: 8,1%). Following African Land’s restructure, the
ratio of ﬁxed-rate debt will increase to approximately 80% of
total debt.

0
0
June 2020

Governance

The gearing ratio, at 28,4%, is slightly below Hyprop’s ideal range
of 30% to 40%. Higher gearing levels depend to a large extent on
corporate activity, particularly acquisitions. In the absence of
signiﬁcant acquisitions, it is unlikely that the gearing ratio will
reach these levels.

0 0
June 2019

Risk management

Net borrowings increased to R7,1 billion at 30 June 2014 (30 June
2013: R5,1 billion) mainly as a result of capital expenditure on the
Rosebank Mall redevelopment, the acquisition of African Land
and developments in Atterbury Africa.

June 2018

Performance

South African bank facilities
Debt capital market (DCM)
Corporate bonds
Commercial paper
US dollar debt
Cash and cash equivalents

Hyprop in brief

1 000

30 June
2014
Rm

Gearing (%)

2014 in perspective

The NAV per combined unit at 30 June 2014 rose by 11,1% to R76,02
(30 June 2013: R68,43). This was primarily due to an increase in the
independent valuation of the investment property portfolio.
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Five-year review
at 30 June 2014

30 June
2014(2)
R000

30 June 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013(1)
2012(2)
2011 (2)
2010(2)
R000
R000
R000
R000

Revenue
Investment property income
Straight-line rental income accrual
Listed property securities income
Property expenses
Net property income
Other operating expenses
Net interest
Received
Paid

2 514 779
2 432 459
45 055
37 265
(837 822)
1 676 957
(82 480)
(394 721)
65 645
(460 366)

1 099 489
1 008 671
15 879
74 939
(347 277)
752 212
(27 729)
(191 723)
17 234
(208 957)

2 177 625
2 016 184
9 208
152 233
(714 284)
1 463 341
(53 885)
(404 827)
22 180
(427 007)

1 583 157
1 350 937
100 214
132 006
(511 681)
1 071 476
(43 855)
(208 325)
31 416
(239 741)

1 119 048
984 910
14 148
119 990
(371 932)
747 116
(36 044)
(121 554)
7 006
(128 560)

Net operating income
Change in fair value
Investment property
Straight-line rental income accrual
Listed property securities
Derivative instruments
Proﬁt on disposal
Investment property
Listed property securities
Associate
Amortisation of debenture premium
Amortisation of ﬁnancial guarantee for associate
Impairment of goodwill
Gain on bargain purchase (African Land)
Non-core income

1 199 756
1 532 852
1 655 897
(45 055)
(82 266)
4 276
190 760
4 460
168 869
17 431
102 806

532 760
1 403 721
1 198 105
(15 879)
(2 842)
224 337
28 061
90
27 971

1 004 629
1 273 905
1 137 924
(9 208)
315 259
(170 070)
(15 221)
(11 886)
(3 335)

819 296
335 646
236 654
(100 214)
258 716
(59 510)
(9 835)
(6 129)
(3 706)

589 518
586 121
517 262
(14 148)
75 430
7 577

49 119

487 925

231 354

110 810
953

Income before debenture interest
Debenture interest

3 121 290
(1 147 443)

2 014 670
(517 831)

Net income before share of income from associate
Share of income from associate

1 973 847
462

Proﬁt before taxation
Taxation
Proﬁt/(loss) for the year/period
Non-controlling interest
Total proﬁt/(loss) for the year/period attributable to
unitholders of the company
Investment property at fair value
Distribution per combined unit (cents)
(1)

Six months
Twelve months
(3)
Excludes investment property held for sale
(2)

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

(7 779)
102 895

(547 654)
1 009

4 555

905

2 751 238
(994 333)

833 362
(741 703)

1 288 307
(593 024)

1 496 839
4 262

1 756 905
144

91 659
9 949

695 283
55 201

1 974 309
(17 719)

1 501 101
2 239 008

1 757 049
(753 169)

101 608
(185 639)

750 484
(80 696)

1 956 590
(8 103)

3 740 109

1 003 880

(84 031)

669 788

1 948 487
22 230 404(3)
472

3 740 109
18 655 496
213

1 003 880
17 480 030
409

(84 031)
17 271 864
383

669 788
9 425 626
357

17

Value added statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Unaudited
Six months to
June 2013
Rm
%

Investment property income
Listed property securities income
Property expenses excluding employee remuneration and municipal
charges
Other operating expenses
Dividends received
Non-core income

2 432
37

1 009
75

(211)
(82)
35

(70)
(26)
1
1

Total value created

2 211

990

2 211

Value distribution – 12 months to June 2014

8

45

5

401

18

195

20

496

22

232

23

1 147

52

52
100

Value distribution – six months to June 2013
5%

8%
18%

OEmployees

23%
20%

Finance costs
O Hyprop shareholders
O Municipal charges
O

Governance

22%

52%

518
990

Risk management

Total value added

167

Performance

Value distribution
To employees
Remuneration and beneﬁts
To providers of finance
Finance costs
To government
Municipal charges
To providers of capital
Distributions to Hyprop shareholders

%

Hyprop in brief

Unaudited
12 months to
June 2014
Rm

2014 in perspective

Value added is a measure of the wealth created by the group and its employees through its various business activities. This statement
shows the value added and how it was shared.

52%

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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Our business structure
Our structure provides a solid foundation for growth. We have 12 prime shopping centres in South Africa, three co-owned. Our investments
in sub-Saharan Africa are facilitated through Atterbury Africa, a joint venture between Hyprop, Attacq and the Atterbury Group. This gives
us exposure to two existing shopping centres, Accra Mall (19 000m2) in Ghana and Manda Hill (43 400m2) in Zambia, as well as a pipeline of
new developments.
Post-year-end, we restructured our investment in African Land and now hold 50% in Manda Hill, African Land’s only asset, through our
wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop Mauritius. Atterbury Africa holds the balance. Hyprop originally acquired 87% of African Land for
R768 million and Attacq 12,4% for R110 million in December 2013.

100% owned

Co-owned

Held for sale

100%

50%

37,5%
50%

47%

African Land restructure effective 1 July 2014

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Company structure

2014 in perspective

Hyprop in brief

Performance

Risk management

Governance

Financial statements

Unitholder information

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Hyprop’s business model

Property investment excellence
Vision
Hyprop aims to maintain its position as a leading listed REIT in Africa, offering access to income and capital growth through
a specialist portfolio of premium, high-quality shopping centres in a transparent, sustainable investment vehicle

Mission
QTo be a world-class REIT that adheres to global best practice
QTo be the partner of choice for tenants, shoppers, employees and investors
QTo provide a trustworthy, transparent and sustainable investment
QTo promote social and environmental sustainability.

Our integrated business model

Inputs

Financial

Inputs

BusinessBusiness
activities activities

QSources of funding: debt and equity
QEconomic climate

Operational

QHigh-quality, dominant shopping centres in

metropolitan areas in strong economic nodes
QInternal asset and property management

Intellectual

QIT systems
QRegulatory compliance

Human

QExperienced board of directors
QHands-on executive management
QEmployee development

Social and
relationship

QBBBEE and employment equity
QEducation and training
QThe Hyprop Foundation

Natural

QEnvironmental, social and governance

strategy

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Q Hyprop is a listed Real Estate Investment

Trust (REIT) giving investors exposure to
high-quality shopping centres in South
Africa and in a select group of countries
in sub-Saharan Africa
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This value can be viewed from two perspectives – value created for the company and value created for others. While providers of ﬁnancial
capital are interested in the value an organisation creates for itself, the value it creates for others affects its ability to create value for itself.
Our business model illustrates how we balance this value creation for the beneﬁt of all stakeholders, based on core principles:

2014 in perspective

As set out in the integrated reporting framework of December 2013, the value created by any organisation over time may be disclosed in
terms of six capitals – ﬁnancial, operational, human, natural, social/relationship and intellectual.

QInvest in high-quality shopping centres in sub-Saharan Africa
QFocus on sustainable income growth for investors

Hyprop in brief

QProvide a trusted and transparent investment
QRecognised social and environmental responsibilities.

Outcomes

Outcomes

Q Capital investment growth

QCAGR of 32,1% over the last decade

Q Regular and progressive distribution growth

QPremium to NAV of 4,6%

Q Low and responsible gearing

QLow LTV of 28,4%

Q Rising property values

QLow vacancies at 2,4%

Q Strong contractual rental escalations

QArrears 0,4% of rent roll

Q Extracting synergies, eg national service

QImproved cost-to-income ratio at 34,4%

contracts
Q Well-contained cost structure
Q Geographic diversification in high-growth
countries

QSustainable income growth

Q Integrated electronic property

QReliable controls and processes enabling transparent disclosure

management system
Q Internal functions such as human resources
driven by technology
Q Dedicated national legal executive

QStrong compliance to regulatory environment

Q Implemented share incentive scheme

QLow turnover of staff 3,9%

Q Well-managed portfolio of properties

QContinuity

generating growing income
Q Sound investments providing long-term
superior investment returns

QStaff retention

Q Sustainable social responsibility through

QAddressing skills shortage

QDistributions for the year up 11,3%
QExpansion into Africa
QAcquisition of Manda Hill

QProvide a trustworthy and transparent investment
QStrong leases

Financial statements

QReliable succession plan

QReduced environmental footprint

Q Participation in Carbon Disclosure Project,

QEnergy saving of 4,9 million kWh, cost saving of R5,9 million
QImproved waste management 49 938m3 (67% of total waste)
QLower cost of occupancy for our tenants
QAAA rating in IoD governance assessment instrument

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Unitholder information

QImproved reputation

Q Environmentally efficient properties

Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark
and Institute of Directors (IoD) governance
assessment instrument

Governance

education, training and enterprise
development

Risk management

Q Disposal of non-core assets

Performance

Outputs
Outputs
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The market in which we operate
The listed property sector in South Africa is a sizeable market,
valued at around R250 billion and spread among 28 listed
companies. It ranks in the top-10 REIT markets globally. By
comparison, this market was worth only R5 billion 12 years ago.

Retail sales/capital
US dollar

14 000

Norway

12 000
10 000

South African listed property sector

8 000

Market capitalisation – R billion

6 000

250

250

184

0

117
86
14

20
2002 2003
Source: INET Bridge
0

46

85

132

Czech Rep
Slovakia

SA

Poland
Romania

100

700

94

62

31
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

By market capitalisation, Hyprop ranks third in its sector and
manages almost one-third (over 750 000m2 excluding Rosebank
Mall) of the gross lettable area in shopping centres nationally.
Hyprop specialises in high-quality shopping centres, making the
state of the retail market an important indicator in our
performance. In 2013, consumers spent R407 billion in South
African shopping centres, accounting for 70% of annual retail
spend. Each month, audited ﬁgures show that super-regional and
regional malls alone attracted some 800 000 consumers.

Yet vacancies, a key indicator of a property sector’s health, are
lower in South Africa than the average for other countries
through the cycle.

Retail vacancies year-on-year
%

12
10
8
6
4
2
0

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

South Africa
United Kingdom
Source: IPD, Macquarie Research, October 2013
Q

Since 1996, seven million square metres (equivalent to 47 superregional malls) have been added to the South African market.
As shown in the graph opposite and based on a European
study, South Africa has more mall space per head (measured as
m2/1 000 people) than its comparable retail sales appear to justify.

Investing in sub-Saharan Africa
Economic growth in Africa is robust, with Nigeria now officially
overtaking South Africa as the largest economy by GDP at
USD510 billion. In tandem, levels of governance, economic
management and transparency have generally improved,
although poor infrastructure development remains a challenge.
For Real Estate Investment Trusts like Hyprop, an economic
growth rate above 5% for the continent for almost a decade
means an expanding urban class, with the propensity to spend.
Sub-Saharan Africa (outside South Africa) has a signiﬁcant
shortage of high-quality retail property – less than two million
square metres catering for over one billion people, compared
to South Africa with 21 million square metres for 52 million
people. In addition, Africa is urbanising rapidly, with metropolitan

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Source: Euromonitor International, Cushman & Wakeﬁeld, SACSC, Macquarie Research, October 2013
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Q

France

Q
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CEE
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2012

Germany

In particular, retail property in South Africa has had lower
vacancies and been more defensive (lower rise in vacancies
during the recession and global ﬁnancial crisis). Within retail
property, regional malls (over 60% of our portfolio) have shown
the lowest vacancies and least cyclicality through the cycle.

populations expanding at over 3% per annum. Some cities are
growing faster, such as Abuja at 9% and Luanda at 6%.
Equally, many African cities have recorded remarkable economic
growth. Accra is among the world’s fastest-growing cities.
Maputo, Lusaka and Lagos are also expanding rapidly. Hyprop
has investments in Accra and Lusaka.
Sustained economic growth is fuelling the urban middle-class
expansion – a key source of private-sector growth underpinning
modern retailing. The most rapid growth in the middle-class
population in sub-Saharan Africa is in cities such as Lagos,
Abuja, Luanda, Accra and Nairobi. This helps drive pent-up
demand from brand-conscious urban consumers looking for
quality products and a modern shopping experience.
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Ghana and Zambia
GDP growth %
ZAMBIA
Q Solid economic growth
QGood appetite for government debt
QAmbitious infrastructure

development programme
– Major investment in road and repair
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Attributable
value
USD000

Hyprop’s
effective
shareholding
%

19 000

47

38 780

17,6

Existing centre, future expansion planned

West Hills Mall
(Accra, Ghana)

27 500

45

29 850

16,8

Opening October 2014

Achimota Mall
(Accra, Ghana)

13 000

75

5 567

28,1

Construction commenced, opening
October 2015

Kumasi City Mall
(Kumasi, Ghana)

27 000

75

7 380

28,1

Concluded acquisition of land rights, design
ﬁnalised and pre-letting commenced

Waterfalls Project
(Lusaka, Zambia)

27 500

25

1 215

9,4

Land holding with development rights for
retail and hotel

Property

Governance

GLA
m2

Atterbury
Africa
ownership
%

Risk management

6

Performance

GHANA
Q Growth impacted, but still strong
QPressure on local currency (cedi)
QGovernment committed to
long-term economic reform

Hyprop in brief

In line with our strategy of investing in quality shopping
centres in sub-Saharan Africa, we have allocated up to
R3 billion in the region over the next three years. The
allocation includes the amount of R812 million spent to date.
Atterbury Africa will focus on acquiring existing high-quality
shopping centres in large metropolitan cities in Africa and
developing new ones:
QDevelopment of the 27 500m2 West Hills Mall in Accra,
Ghana is under way, with completion on track for October
2014. Phase II, a further 12 000m2, will begin in the next year.
Other recent developments include the 27 000m2 Kumasi
City Mall in Kumasi, Ghana, scheduled for completion end
2016. This mall will feature 60 line shops and restaurants,
and further developments may include a hotel
QTo diversify geographically and drive medium-term growth,
we acquired 87% of African Land Investments for
R768 million in December 2013, while Attacq acquired the
balance for R110 million. Post-year-end this investment was
restructured, with Hyprop and Atterbury Africa, a joint
venture with Attacq Limited and the Atterbury Group,
each holding 50% of African Land
QAfrican Land’s only asset, Manda Hill in Lusaka, Zambia, is
the ﬁrst regional shopping centre in that country and one
of the largest outside South Africa with GLA of 43 400m2
valued at USD153 million. The centre is currently fully let,
with strong demand from retailers. An extension of
10 000m2 has been approved to address this demand and
improve the tenant mix. Construction will take place over
the next two years.

GDP growth %

2014 in perspective

Sub-Saharan Africa (SSA)

Comments

Existing centre

Developments

Unitholder information
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Financial statements

Accra Mall
(Accra, Ghana)
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Strategic focus and material issues

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014
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Operational – Focus on upgrading and enlarging our
existing portfolio; pursue appropriate acquisitions and
dispose of non-core assets

Operational – Dividend/distribution growth; shopping
centre contribution to net income; refurbishments
and expansions

Human – Black economic empowerment and
employment equity

Human – Key skills retention; skills development;
diversity; succession planning

Financial – Fix interest rates of 80% of debt (from 70%)
and increase average period of cover to ﬁve years
(from four years)

Financial – Occupancy level; tenant arrears; rent
collections; cost of funding
Natural – Resource management: implement
environmental strategy (page 45)

Social and relationship – Support local communities

ME
A

Performance

S
EA
AR

Social and relationship – Community
development; connecting with
shoppers

SU

RE

FO
CU
S

Intellectual – Optimal use of technology

Risks
Risks

Material issues

Financial – Africa expansion; future growth
in South Africa
Human – Succession planning; diversity

Human – Shortage of skills; succession planning
Financial – Lack of available funding; rising interest rates;
sub-Saharan Africa: currency risk, political risk
Natural – Cost and security of electricity and water
supply; increased legislation
Intellectual – Inefficient use of technology escalates
operating costs; loss of data

Material risks identiﬁed by the group in terms of
probability, as well as potential impact are set out
on pages 50 to 57.
*Please see page 21 for an explanation of the capitals
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Unitholder information

New technology – Footfall; changes in technology

Financial statements

Intellectual – Use of technology

ES

Governance

Natural – Energy, water and waste
management

KS

IA
TER
MA

LI
SSU

Operational – Slowing
consumer spend; increased
supply of retail space; impact of
RIS
extensions on existing operations;
cost of occupancy (municipal and
electricity tariffs); deterioration of
municipal services and administration; black
economic empowerment rating

Risk management

HYPROP
CAPITALS*
Operational – Turnover
densities; tenant mix; increases
in cost of occupancy

Hyprop in brief

Measure

2014 in perspective

Focus areas
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History

1988

QLists on JSE with a portfolio comprising Hyde Park Corner, Boksburg Hypermarket and two office buildings – total

2001

QAcquires an undivided one-third share in The Glen for R95 million

2002

QAcquires Rosebank Mall and adjacent mall offices – valued at R320 million

asset value R94 million

QAcquires a 16,77% stake in The Glen for R47,8 million

2003

QAcquires the Grace Hotel and offices for R32 million. With Ellerine Bros, jointly acquires premier Western Cape

shopping centre, Canal Walk, for R1,16 billion
QDisposes of eight smaller office blocks

2004

QRaises R376 million in a rights offer, issuing nine million units
QAcquires an additional interest in The Glen, taking Hyprop’s stake to 75,15%

2005

QAcquires 45% of SA Retail Properties
QSouthcoast Mall, jointly developed with Redeﬁne Income Fund, opens

2006

QWith Vunani Properties, launches Vunani Property Investment Fund, an empowerment property fund
QBegins construction of Stoneridge Centre – development cost of R544 million

2007

QDisposes of stake in SA Retail for R1,135 billion
QAcquires 31,3% of Sycom Property Fund for R1,24 billion

2008

QStoneridge Centre opens

2009

QAcquires a 70% undivided share in the office park, Nedbank Gardens, for future redevelopment of Rosebank Mall
QAcquires Cradock Heights, an office block in Rosebank, to which Hyprop will ultimately move its head office (2012)
QSouthern Sun Hyde Park development completed

2010

QSuccessful extensions completed at Canal Walk and The Glen – total cost of R479 million

2011

QAcquires Attfund Retail, increasing portfolio to 12 shopping centres and doubling assets to R20 billion
QDisposes of the Grace Hotel

2012

QRosebank Gardens site (formerly Nedbank Gardens) imploded to begin redeveloping Rosebank Mall
QDisposes of its 50% undivided share in Southcoast Mall to Redeﬁne Properties Limited
QMoody’s Investor Services rates Hyprop a national scale long-term issuer A3.za and short-term rating of Prime-2.za
QCo-invests in Mauritius-based Atterbury Africa, focused on investing in high-quality shopping centres in sub-

Saharan Africa
QDisposes of Southern Sun Hyde Park Hotel to Tsogo Sun

2014

QApproved as a REIT by JSE from 1 July 2013
QConverts combined unit capital structure to an all-share structure
QAcquires Somerset Mall
QAcquires 87% of African Land, gaining exposure to Manda Hill in Lusaka, Zambia
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Stakeholder engagement
Stakeholder engagement, issues and concerns

Operational
Government, regulators: Employment
equity, environmental impact,
resource scarcity, taxation,
compliance, adherence to the
JSE Listings Requirements, and
company legislation

Hyprop in brief

External

Industry associations: Global and
local industry trends, sector
expertise, collective lobbying,
sector-speciﬁc issues

Financiers: Solvency and liquidity,
timeous servicing of debt,
portfolio value, credit rating
Suppliers: Timely payment, fair
business practices

Internal
Employees: Career development
and training, equity participation

HYPROP
STAKEHOLDER
ANALYSIS

OP

ERN

ERA
TION

AL

AL

New issues in 2014
Tenants: Tenant mix improvement, initiatives to enhance the shopping
experience and attract shoppers, slowdown in consumer spend,
increased competition, exclusivity clauses
Investors and financiers: Impact of slower consumer spend on tenants,
impact of online shopping, impact of rising interest rates on cost of
funding, increased competition from new developments close to our
shopping centres, exposure to the rest of sub-Saharan Africa
Suppliers: Lack of skills affecting their ability to deliver service
Industry associations: Introduction of new legislation, exclusivity clauses
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E XT

NAL

Financial statements

TER

Governance

Shoppers: Access to shopping
centre, cleanliness, maintenance,
the role of security, retail and
entertainment offering

Risk management

Tenants: Rental escalation, rising
operating and municipal costs,
location in mall, cleanliness,
security, maintenance, tenant
mix, communication, supply of
electricity

IN

Performance

Investors: Distribution growth,
strategy execution, portfolio
growth, capital appreciation,
accessibility of leadership, timely
information on key developments,
exposure to Africa, succession,
governance

Local communities: Socio-economic
development, environmental
impact, responsible corporate
citizenship

2014 in perspective

Key stakeholders in our group are shown below. For a fuller understanding, we have included ongoing material issues, and summarised new
issues that arose during the reporting period.
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2014 in perspective

Hyprop in brief

Performance

Risk management

Governance

Financial statements

Unitholder information
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Property portfolio
(excluding Rosebank Mall)

Geographical spread (excluding Rosebank Mall and Manda Hill)
Hyprop’s portfolio is dominated by retail property in high-income metropolitan areas, reinforcing its specialist proﬁle as a shopping centre
REIT. Year-on-year, the number of retail properties rose from 11 to 12 after acquiring Somerset Mall in the Western Cape. Like-for-like GLA
increased by 8 433m2 due primarily to tenant expansions at Canal Walk and The Glen.

South African consolidated spread

2014
GLA m2

Revenue

2013
GLA m2

Gauteng
Western Cape
Total
Retail
Office#

403 323
377 816
781 139
747 025
34 114

1 193 779
1 023 911
2 217 690
2 149 790
67 900

417 524
307 926
725 450
673 244
52 206

567 890
390 462
958 352
904 928
53 424

781 139

2 217 690

725 450

958 352

Total

Revenue*

*Six-month period
#Includes

stand-alone offices except the Mall offices, which were classified as development property in 2014

Percentage of portfolio (by GLA)

Percentage of portfolio (by GLA)
8%
11%

48%

42%

2014

2013

52%

58%

2014

2013
89%

92%
O

Western Cape O Gauteng

GAUTENG

Gauteng region
Value at 30 June
GLA m2
GLA %

2014
R11,5 billion
403 323
52

2013
R10,3 billion
417 524
58
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Edcon group
Foschini group
Massmart group
Mr Price group
Pick n Pay
Pepkor
Truworths
Woolworths
Famous Brands
Clicks group

6,1
5,4
4,5
3,5
2,4
2,2
2,2
2,1
1,9
1,6

% of GLA

A-grade
B-grade
C-grade

64
22
14

Tenant grade by income

% of income
45
30
25

*Includes Manda Hill
% of
total GLA

Top 10 tenants by GLA

8,0
7,9
6,4
5,9
4,2
3,3
2,5
2,2
2,1
1,9

Growth
%

Shopping centres
Hyde Park Corner – Retail
Canal Walk – Retail
The Glen
Clearwater
Woodlands
CapeGate
Somerset Mall

328
274
209
204
168
143
200

305
257
193
193
156
133

7,6
6,5
8,0
5,7
7,8
7,5

Value centres
Atterbury Value Mart
Willowbridge – Retail
Somerset Value Mart
CapeGate Lifestyle
Stoneridge

148
110
109
98
83

140
107
105
99
84

5,7
2,7
3,4
(1,1)
(0,7)

Offices

114

112

1,6

Risk management

Massmart group
Edcon group
Pick n Pay
Woolworths
Foschini group
Mr Price group
Shoprite
Nu Metro
JD Group
Truworths

Business segment

June 2014 June 2013
Rental
Rental
(R/m2)
(R/m2)

Performance

A-grade
B-grade
C-grade

Weighted average rental* per m2 per month

Hyprop in brief

Tenant grading by GLA

% of total
income

Top 10 tenants by income

2014 in perspective

Tenant proﬁle*
Tenants in our portfolio are categorised by grade, although these
categorisations are largely subjective given the strong retail
nature of the Hyprop portfolio:
A-grade: Large national tenants, large listed tenants and major
franchisees (including all national retailers and tenants in
large listed groups)
B-grade: Smaller national tenants, medium-sized franchisees,
medium to large retailers
C-grade: Smaller line stores (850 tenants)

*Includes basic rent and operating costs

Governance

WESTERN CAPE

ZAMBIA

Financial statements

Western Cape region
2013
R8,0 billion
307 926
42

2014*
$153 million
43 400
$7,3 million
$21

Value at 30 June
GLA m2
Revenue – retail
Weighted average rental per m2
*Relates to direct property only (Manda Hill)

ZAMBIA
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Value at 30 June
GLA m2
GLA %

2014
R10,8 billion
377 816
47

Expansion into sub-Saharan Africa
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Property portfolio continued
Vacancy proﬁle
Vacancies across the retail portfolio decreased to 1,2% (June: 2,1%). Vacancies in the office portfolio (5% of the total portfolio), increased to
13,8% (June: 8,1%). Subsequent to year-end, vacancies in the office portfolio declined to 9,5%.

Vacancies

30 June 2014
Total area
available
for leasing
GLA %
m2

June 2013
Total area
available
for leasing
m2

GLA %

RETAIL
Canal Walk
Super regional
Clearwater Mall
The Glen
Woodlands
Somerset Mall
CapeGate
Large regional
Hyde Park Corner
Regional
Stoneridge
Atterbury Value Mart
Willowbridge
CapeGate Lifestyle
Somerset Value Mart
Value centres

1 089
1 089
18
496
0
2 148
420
3 082
0
0
1 711
0
199
2 406
130
4 446

0,7
0,7
0,0
0,6
0,0
3,2
0,7
0,8
0,0
0,0
3,5
0,0
0,5
7,4
1,0
2,4

875
875
0
659
0

0,6
0,6
0,0
0,9
0,0

302
961
65
65
4 447
0
2 592
4 341
289
11 669

0,5
0,3
0,2
0,2
9,2
0,0
6,1
13,5
2,3
6,4

Total

8 617

1,2

13 570

2,1

Offices total*

10 754

13,8

6 192

8,1

GRAND TOTAL

19 371

2,4

19 762

2,7

*Includes offices within shopping centres and stand-alone offices
As at 30 June 2014, Manda Hill was fully let.
Acquisitions and disposals
During the year, we ﬁnalised the acquisition of Somerset Mall, adding another high-quality, large regional shopping centre to our portfolio.
With 187 stores and over 3 800 parking bays, Somerset Mall expands the retail GLA of our portfolio by almost 67 000m2.
Following the exchange of 81,5 million Sycom units for Somerset Mall, Hyprop disposed of 575 000 Sycom units for R14 million in December
2013. The remaining 2,2 million units were sold in January 2014 for R51,9 million.
During the year, Attacq exercised its option to acquire Hyprop’s 20% interest in Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited, which owns Garden Route
Mall. The shares and loan account in Mantrablox were sold for R139 million, realising a proﬁt of R17,4 million.
Proceeds of these disposals were applied to reduce borrowings.
Held for sale
In line with our strategy of owning premium, high-quality shopping centres, Hyprop is in the process of disposing of its stand-alone office portfolio
and non-core retail assets, Stoneridge Centre, Willowbridge and CapeGate Lifestyle. As a result, these assets have been classiﬁed as held for sale.
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Vacancy

2018

2019+

Canal Walk
Clearwater
The Glen
Woodlands
CapeGate Shopping Centre
Somerset Mall
Hyde Park Corner
Willowbridge
Stoneridge
Somerset Value Mart
Atterbury Value Centre
CapeGate Lifestyle

14%
35%
29%
22%
56%
33%
22%
16%
23%
22%
15%
27%

31%
19%
10%
16%
13%
22%
15%
43%
17%
21%
20%
24%

15%
11%
16%
11%
17%
14%
16%
11%
13%
36%
28%
31%

11%
10%
10%
11%
5%
13%
11%
11%
2%
21%
17%
1%

29%
25%
35%
40%
9%
18%
36%
19%
45%
0%
20%
17%

Offices

42%

29%

10%

2%

17%

Total

27%

22%

15%

10%

26%

9%
29%
32%
22%
54%
21%
48%
11%
29%
27%
14%
26%

31%
13%
8%
9%
10%
15%
8%
42%
11%
19%
19%
18%

11%
6%
15%
9%
17%
9%
10%
13%
16%
33%
29%
25%

12%
8%
7%
7%
3%
15%
9%
9%
2%
20%
17%
0%

36%
44%
37%
53%
15%
37%
25%
25%
38%
0%
21%
24%

By GLA
Canal Walk
Clearwater
The Glen
Woodlands
CapeGate Shopping Centre
Somerset Mall
Hyde Park Corner
Willowbridge
Stoneridge
Somerset Value Mart
Atterbury Value Centre
CapeGate Lifestyle

1%
0%
1%
0%
1%
3%
0%
0%
4%
1%
0%
7%

Offices

14%

32%

19%

24%

2%

9%

Total

3%

26%

18%

15%

8%

30%

13%

39%

9%

27%

12%

10%

30%

8%

41%

11%

By income
Manda Hill
By GLA
Manda Hill

0%

Risk management

2017

Performance

2016

Hyprop in brief

2015

2014 in perspective

Lease renewal proﬁle
By income

Governance

Rosebank Mall redevelopment
Highlights
QR932 million investment with an estimated initial yield of 7%
Q1 000 direct and indirect additional permanent jobs at any one time
QFully let

Features of the new Rosebank Mall
62 000m2

147

Diverse tenants

Refurbished
infrastructure

Seamless
integration

Multiple
access points

GLA (from 36 000m2)

Stores (from 93)

International and local
brands anchored by
large national tenants

Lifts, escalators,
ablutions
and parking

Between all areas
and levels

From major arterials

Hyprop’s Rosebank Mall redevelopment was completed in September 2014 on time and on budget, adding 26 000m2 of new retail
space and 54 new stores, including leading international brands.
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Rosebank is being revitalised – capitalising on its inherent advantages of location, variety, ease of access and convenience, including
a Gautrain station and several quality hotels. This is a node that is naturally pedestrian friendly.

Financial statements

Q76% national retailers = attractive destination
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Portfolio review
Super regional

One of Africa’s premier super-regional shopping centres, situated in
Century City, Cape Town.
ANCHOR TENANTS
RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Checkers, Dis-Chem, Edgars, Game,
Pick n Pay, Woolworths
146 941m2
389
10 090m2
8 009
20 997 422
Gavin Wood

Large regional

The prime shopping destination in the western suburbs of
Johannesburg, located in a rapidly expanding residential corridor.
ANCHOR TENANTS
RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Dis-Chem, Edgars, Game, Pick n Pay,
Woolworths
86 028m2
238
–
5 125
10 066 284
Vicky Vlok

Conveniently situated at the Okavango interchange on the N1 in Cape
Town’s northern suburb of Brackenfell, with a regional mall, lifestyle
centre and value centre.
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ANCHOR TENANTS

Builders Warehouse, Checkers, Edgars,
Fruit & Veg City, Pick n Pay, Superspar,
Virgin Active, Woolworths

RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

98 567m2
153
–
2 850
10 236 072
Nicholas Oliphant
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ANCHOR TENANTS

Hyprop in brief

RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Dis-Chem, Edgars, Game, Pick n Pay,
Woolworths
66 831m2
187
–
3 809
10 905 715
Mandy Bellamy

2014 in perspective

Situated in the scenic foothills of the Helderberg, the mall has
entrenched itself as an indispensable part of the community.

Performance

The shopping destination of choice for affluent suburbs south of
Johannesburg.

Builders Warehouse, Dion Wired,
Dis-Chem, Edgars, Food Lovers Market,
Game, Pick n Pay, Woolworths

RETAIL GLA

71 617m2

STORES

151

OFFICE GLA

–

PARKING BAYS

4 200

FOOTCOUNT

8 097 504

MANAGEMENT

Malize Jacobs
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ANCHOR TENANTS

Financial statements

Ideally situated near the exclusive Woodhill Golf Estate and known as
the “fashion capital” of Pretoria.

Governance

RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Dis-Chem, Edgars, Game, Pick n Pay,
Woolworths
76 849m2
202
–
3 700
14 262 930
Glen Maboe

Risk management

ANCHOR TENANTS
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Portfolio review continued
Regional

The grande dame of South African shopping, Hyde Park caters for the
most discerning visitors with exclusive, high-end retail.
ANCHOR TENANTS
RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Clicks, Dion Wired, Pick n Pay,
Woolworths
28 097m2
120
10 248m2
1 730
5 117 622
Jacqui McGeehan

Value/lifestyle

A convenient one-stop shopping experience in Pretoria.
ANCHOR TENANTS
RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Builders Warehouse, Spar, Sportsmans
Warehouse
47 786m2
94
–
2 135
Not measured
Danie de Beer

A world-class open-air shopping experience in the northern suburbs
of Cape Town.
ANCHOR TENANTS

RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT
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Builders Warehouse, Checkers,
Dis-Chem, Food Lovers Market,
Pick n Pay, Woolworths, Wetherlys
40 519m2
97
2 482m2
2 302
4 346 224
Salome Thonnard
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ANCHOR TENANTS

Hyprop in brief

RETAIL GLA
STORES
OFFICE GLA
PARKING BAYS
FOOTCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

Food Lovers Market, Hi-Fi Corporation,
Superspar, Toys R Us, Virgin Active
48 584m2
99
–
2 371
Not measured
Daphne Smith

2014 in perspective

A trend-setting open-air lifestyle centre designed to meet all shopping
requirements in a family-oriented environment in the high-growth
Greenstone/Longmeadow node east of Johannesburg.

Performance

Fruit & Veg City, Hi-Fi Corporation,
Sportsmans Warehouse, Toys R Us

RETAIL GLA

12 386m2

STORES

15

OFFICE GLA

–

PARKING BAYS

702

FOOTCOUNT

Not measured

MANAGEMENT

Mandy Bellamy

Governance

ANCHOR TENANTS

Risk management

Fifteen outlets offer shoppers a wide variety to meet all their needs in
one convenient location.

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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Embedding sustainability in our business
Sustainability is a common denominator throughout Hyprop’s
business. We are committed to continuously improving our
operations to reduce an already low environmental impact,
maintaining our role as a responsible corporate citizen in
preserving environmental resources, making a positive impact on
the wider community and encouraging our tenants, customers
and suppliers to do the same while enhancing the workplace for
our tenants and employees.
Appropriate strategies are in place throughout the group with
executive responsibility for implementation.
During the year, Hyprop enhanced its sustainability strategy by
articulating the group’s strategic priorities from an economic,
social, environmental and governance perspective. We conducted
comprehensive stakeholder engagement, which included
investors, management, employees, tenants, suppliers and
ﬁnanciers. This engagement explored the concepts of
sustainability, materiality, strategy and integrated risk management
as they relate to the corporate values and decision-making
philosophy of the company.

Rosebank Mall

Sustainability pillars and primary objectives
Ensure legislative and
regulatory compliance

Governance

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Minimise energy and carbon emissions,
monitor water consumption,
and increase waste recycled

Support local
communities

Environment

Social

39

Highlights
QShare incentive scheme approved by shareholders with ﬁrst
allocation in December 2013 (page 71)
QImproved productivity: net operating income per employee
of R5,824 million, distributable income per employee of
R5,576 million

Employees
Hyprop Investments Limited
Word4Word

2014

2013

206
35

209
28

Employment equity and transformation
We are committed to promoting equal opportunity and fair
treatment by eliminating discrimination and implementing
measures to redress disadvantages experienced by designated
groups and ensure their equitable representation in all
occupational categories.
Hyprop’s ﬁve-year employment equity plan was approved by the
Department of Labour in 2013. An annual progress report is
submitted in January each year.
Hyprop complies with the Employment Equity Act and is
committed to the ongoing organisational transformation to
diversify its workforce.

Employment equity proﬁle at June 2014
%

Female
African Coloured
Indian

White

Foreign nationals
Male Female

Total

0,0
0,5

0,0
0,0

0,0
0,5

1,0
4,0

0,0
0,5

0,0
0,0

0,0
0,0

0,0
7,4

0,0
0,0

0,0
0,0

1,0
12,9

0,0

0,0

0,5

1,5

0,5

0,0

1,0

5,0

0,0

0,0

8,5

2,0

0,5

0,5

7,9

2,0

0,5

1,0

3,5

0,0

0,5

18,4

8,3

5,4

1,5

3,4

11,4

6,9

2,0

10,8

1,0

0,0

50,7

5,5

1,5

0,0

0,5

1,0

0,0

0,0

0,0

0,0

0,0

8,5

16,3

7,4

3,0

18,3

15,4

7,4

4,0

26,7

1,0

0,5

100,0

Financial statements

Total permanent

White

Governance

Occupational levels
Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualiﬁed and
experienced specialists and
mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualiﬁed workers, junior
management, supervisors,
foremen and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making
Unskilled and deﬁned
decision making

Male
African Coloured
Indian

Risk management

Hyprop fully complies with employment laws and practices and is
committed to protecting human rights. Our code of ethics and
disciplinary code are communicated to all employees.

Performance

We uphold the highest standards and seek to add value to the
lives of employees by providing an engaging environment for
professional growth, competitive remuneration, training support
for further qualiﬁcations and an inclusive and enabling culture.
We foster a culture of respect with zero tolerance for
discriminatory behaviour.

Hyprop in brief

Word4Word total employees 72: 22 directly involved with Hyprop shopping
centres, 13 Word4Word head office and 37 outsourced to external
management teams

Our employees are fundamental to the success of our business
and to delivering a quality service for our tenants and customers.
Accordingly, we aim to attract and retain key talent to build
organisational competencies and leadership capacity for longterm growth and to cement the group’s reputation as a good
corporate citizen.

2014 in perspective

Performance targets, training and skills development are reviewed
annually and aligned with the company’s strategy.

Human capital

Unitholder information
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Embedding sustainability in our business continued
Staff earnings ratio
Performance per employee by net operating income and distributable income, as a measure of productivity, is benchmarked annually
against peers.
Number of employees
2014
206
*Six-month period

Net operating income per employee

Distributable income per employee

2013*

2012

2014
R000

2013*
R000

2012
R000

2014
R000

2013*
R000

2012
R000

209

214

5 824

2 525

4 695

5 576

2 474

4 655

Staff retention
The commitment of our people to the group, motivated by a
stimulating working environment, competitive remuneration and
fair reward, is reﬂected in high retention, especially at senior level.
Equally, low staff turnover ensures continuity and aligns group
performance with our long-term strategic objectives.
Hyprop Average service
%
(years)
Top management
Senior management
Middle management
Administration
Maintenance

100
96
87
82
85

11,6
8,4
9,0
8,6
9,0

Skills development and training
Our training and development programme considers our skills
requirements, as well as skills shortages in the property industry
and transformation imperatives.
Training needs are discussed during the employee review process
and training requirements are established. The skills base is objectively
assessed to identify focal areas for training in the year ahead.
The objectives of our training strategy include:
QEnhancing knowledge and the skills base
QEnabling employees to contribute to our business and growth
QEncouraging further education to enhance abilities in current
positions and increase eligibility for promotion
QSupporting employment equity initiatives

Movement
Number of employees
2014

2013

4
17
2
8
1

7
14
2
11
2

Internal placements
New appointments
Dismissals
Resignations
Retirements

One of our primary objectives is to establish a succession plan by
developing junior managers for middle management roles (see
graduate programme).
During the year, a combination of internal and outsourced
training sessions covered key areas:
Training spend
2014

New appointments

Q

Black

Q Coloured
Q White

Indian

65%
12%
4%
0%

Leadership
Business operations
Graduate programme
Green building principles
Leasing and administration
Health and safety
HIV/Aids training and information

R312 474
R292 782
R87 652
R60 101
R31 500
R137 786
R53 153

Total

R975 448

The actual training spend for the year exceeded budget by
around 8%.
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Value of training investments

% of
training
budget

Number
of people
trained

Number
of training
interventions

Black
Coloured
Indian
White
Male
Female

212 539
118 131
64 421
580 357
439 592
535 856

22
12
7
59
45
55

60
37
10
92
93
106

160
100
32
320
254
358

1 312
1 181
2 013
1 773
1 670
1 497

180 063
57 817
71 359
474 925
319 709
464 455

Total

975 448

199

612

1 569

784 164

Cost of
training
(R)

% of
training
budget

Number
of people
trained

23
7
9
61
41
59

53
14
7
68
81
61
142

Performance

Graduate programme
We introduced a graduate programme four years ago aimed at developing staff into middle and senior management roles, and ultimately
board positions where viable. The programme develops and incentivises candidates while advancing Hyprop’s succession planning. Nine
employees participate in the programme (eight from designated groups, with four women). Employees applying for the programme must
meet certain criteria to be considered, including length of service, performance and ﬁnancial situation. Successful applicants are assisted
with tuition and related costs.

Hyprop in brief

Cost of
training
(R)

Average
spend per
training
intervention

2014 in perspective

2013

2014

Our ﬁrst graduate completed her studies in December 2013 and has been promoted.

Key performance deliverables (KPDs)

Stretch target

8%

Current budget achievement

30%

On budget

7%

0%

Leasing: rentals achieved on new and renewed leases
Tenant arrears: total outstanding as % of rent roll raised
Increasing trading densities and footcount
Tenant deposits and guarantees outstanding as a % of deposits raised
Building master ﬁles
Leasing: rental escalations on new leases

6%
5%
4%
3%
3%
2,5%

On budget
5%
1%
3%
95%
8,5%

Leasing: rental escalations on renewed leases
Documentation administration

2,5%
2%

On budget
98%

10%
Exceed
budget
by 3%
Vacancies
reduced by
5% or more
7% above
budget
0%
3%
0%
100%
10%
7% above
budget
100%

Total

100%

Vacancies year-on-year comparison

Financial statements

Target

35%

Governance

Weighting

Net income growth year-on-year

Risk management

Performance management
Performance reviews of individual competency are conducted annually, with biannual performance reviews against targets set out below:

Unitholder information
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Embedding sustainability in our business continued
Performance against these KPDs carries a 90% weighting at
executive and senior management level.
Employees are rewarded on company KPDs, as well as individual
performance assessments, which are conducted annually with
employees on the self-service system after performance
discussions.
Individual performance valuations include:
QProfessional conduct
QBusiness processes
QCustomer service
QBusiness operations
QStaff management
QImplementation of company strategy
Bonuses are approved by the remuneration and nomination
committee and are payable in December. More detail on our
remuneration policy appears on page 70.
Scoring methodology
Underperformed

Achieved 70% of target

Below expectations

Achieved 80% of target

Solid performance

Achieved 100% of target

Above expectations

Achieved 115% of target

Stretch

Achieved stretch targets (130% of target)

Health and safety
Our policy is to create a safe working environment and develop
procedures to manage occupational incidents and compensation
claims in line with occupational health and safety legislation. In
brief, our policy aims to:
QProvide a health and safety programme that is effective, of a
high standard, and is continuously reviewed and improved
QComply with relevant statutory provisions for health, safety
and environmental matters as these affect employees,
customers, contractors and the public
QEnsure all employees are properly informed of their
responsibilities for health, safety and environmental matters
and discharge these effectively
QEncourage employees to participate in preventing accidents
and preserving health
QProvide the resources and training to achieve these objectives
Each shopping centre is responsible for on-site execution of this
policy through its operations manager. At group level, the national
facilities manager is responsible for biannual audit reports, drawing
on reports from each centre.
All centres conduct regular health and safety training for
employees and third-party suppliers perform annual health and
safety audits.
All construction projects have health and safety consultants, who
represent Hyprop and monitor activities on site regularly. On
large and complex projects such as Rosebank Mall, the contractor
has its own health and safety officer who assists in managing
contractor teams and subcontractors.

Group performance
120

80

60

40

20

0

115,90
111,10

Company

Pretoria region

100

%

O June 2014
O June 2013

106,23
95,80

Johannesburg
region*
Western Cape
region

114,62
117,33
109,60
107,88

*Reﬂects impact of Rosebank Mall construction activities

No serious casualties or injuries occurred during the year at any
of our properties or projects.
HIV/Aids
We acknowledge that the HIV/Aids pandemic in South Africa
could affect the wellbeing of our employees, leading to emotional
distress, absenteeism, employee turnover and lower productivity.
Hyprop has conducted a formal risk assessment of the impact of
HIV/Aids on the group, which was found to be negligible.
Given the low level of risk, Hyprop does not have targets for
addressing the direct impact of HIV/Aids, nor do we have
strategies for addressing indirect business risks (eg effect on
customer base/supply chain).
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Where employees willingly disclose their status, Hyprop
encourages openness, acceptance and support.

There were ﬁve disciplinary cases during the year, resulting in two
dismissals. One grievance was reported, with the outcome pending.

The Hyprop Foundation, established in 2013, is a centralised
vehicle for our CSI projects, ensuring these are not isolated
activities but part of the broader socially responsible performance
of the group.
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Labour/management relations
Hyprop has no unionised employees and there was no impact on
business from industrial or labour unrest during the year.

Our shopping centres have always played a central role in their
local communities. In particular, Canal Walk is the only shopping
centre in South Africa with its own foundation dedicated to
community upliftment.

Financial statements

No incidents of discrimination were reported during the year.

Corporate social investment (CSI)
Corporate social investment (CSI) takes place at two levels in
Hyprop: at group level where we invested over R760 000 during
the year, R1 053 000 at shopping centre level, and R2,1 million
through various in-kind resources. This takes the total CSI to
R3,9 million in the review period.

Governance

Non-discrimination
Discrimination is not tolerated. Any reported instances are
immediately and appropriately dealt with in terms of our code of
ethics and conduct and related disciplinary procedures. Related
policies are regularly reviewed, updated and distributed to
employees.

During the year, we spent almost R3,4 billion with qualifying
suppliers for a range of services including R21 million, with suppliers
who are classiﬁed under enterprise development.

Risk management

Employee beneﬁts
To entrench the group as a preferred employer, Hyprop offers a
range of employee beneﬁts that exceed legislated minimum
standards. These include:
QMembership of a deﬁned contribution pension fund with
death, disability and funeral beneﬁts
QFour months’ partially paid maternity leave (paid at 55% of cost
to company)
QAnnual leave increases to 20 days after ﬁve years with
the group
QEmployees qualify for six days’ paid study leave for approved
qualiﬁcations

Community development
Preferential procurement
The company encourages preferential procurement, guided by
procedures set out in our code of conduct. All our suppliers have
been veriﬁed, and 95,1% of our procurement spend is BEE
compliant. We intend to expand our procurement guidelines to
include environment-related matters such as supply chain
management, impacts on climate change and a rating scale to
evaluate potential suppliers in awarding tenders.

Performance

Employee relations
The national human resources executive is responsible for
employee relations. A disciplinary and grievance policy governs
these procedures and is available on the company intranet, in
hard copy at each management office, and on the website.

A social and ethics committee monitors the group’s activities in
terms of social and economic development, including:
QAdherence to the principles of the UN Global Compact (a policy
initiative to align businesses with 10 universally accepted
principles covering human rights, labour, environment and anticorruption), broad-based black economic empowerment,
employment equity and the recommendations of the
Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development
(OECD) on anti-corruption
QGood corporate citizenship that includes promoting equality,
preventing unfair discrimination, corporate social responsibility
and ethical behaviour
QEnvironmental, health and safety matters
QConsumer relations
QLabour and employment, including education and skills
development

Hyprop in brief

During the year, HIV/Aids awareness days were again held at each
centre office by professional nurses, with an external healthcare
service provider conducting voluntary counselling and testing
programmes. This offers the opportunity to test for HIV,
cholesterol and stress levels.

Social and relationship capital
2014 in perspective

Our formal HIV/Aids policy, reviewed annually, provides guidelines
on creating a non-discriminatory workplace, dealing with HIV
testing, conﬁdentiality and disclosure, providing equitable
employee beneﬁts, dealing with dismissal and managing grievance
procedures. It also ensures affected employees’ rights to
conﬁdentiality.
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Embedding sustainability in our business continued
In line with the foundation’s vision of igniting a culture of
involvement, funding is generated through a system of “care
shares”, including:
QDonation shares
QHealth shares
QHour shares
QNeeds shares
QSkills shares
In turn, Hyprop contributes a cash value for each share generated
and funds are applied against relevant projects. All projects
undertaken by the foundation comply with its philosophy, are in
line with its code of good practice, and fall into the following
categories:
QEducation
QEnterprise development
QSocial upliftment
QPoverty alleviation
QHealth and wellbeing
In ﬁnancial year 2014, our employees participated in several
events to earn care shares for the foundation (detail on other
projects and our partners appears on www.hyprop.co.za):
QStop Hunger Now (foundation category – social upliftment
and enterprise development): the foundation partnered with
Stop Hunger Now’s results-orientated nutrition programme as
part of a community involvement project. At various events
during the year, the foundation assisted with funding food
purchases, providing facilities for packing events and allocating
resources to markets and management. Communities in the
immediate vicinity were included in the beneﬁciary list that
received packaged parcels distributed by Stop Hunger Now.
Our events produced 151 608 meals, enough to feed 5 000 children
three meals a day for a year.
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The key focus of the project is to assist schools to develop
their facilities sufficiently to qualify for registration with the
Department of Social Development. By saving on food, these
schools are able to invest in infrastructure and educational
needs to provide safer, more hygienic and productive learning
environments. This is monitored closely by Stop Hunger Now
and monthly progress reports are provided to donors. Our
participation creates awareness and contributes to increased
foot traffic into participating shopping centres.
QEkhaya renovations in partnership with Mould Empower Serve

(MES) (foundation category – poverty alleviation): Ekhaya
shelter provides overnight accommodation for 150 homeless
people. It also provides emergency accommodation during
extreme weather conditions and when primary accommodation
has been destroyed or is no longer suitable for habitation. Our
contribution supported inner-city upliftment.
Fines
Hyprop incurred no ﬁnes or prosecutions for non-compliance
with social laws and regulations during the year.

Natural capital
Highlights
Q4,9 million kWh of energy saved over 22 months to end-June
2014, generating cost savings of R5,9 million
Q7% increase in total waste recycled
QExternal appraisal of environment, social and governance
strategy (page 45)
QFirst submission to Carbon Disclosure Project
QParticipated in Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark
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A comprehensive external analysis of our environmental, social and governance strategy during the year conﬁrmed the value of
initiatives already under way and highlighted areas for improvement.
We summarise our three-year environmental strategy in this report to provide a fuller understanding of how Hyprop is mitigating
environmental impacts wherever possible and proactively managing environmental resources. In our next reports, we will measure
our performance against the targets disclosed below which were approved post-year-end.
Primary targets (baseline June 2013)
QEnergy (electrical) consumption – 3% reduction on average

per annum across the portfolio over three years
QWater consumption – improve measuring and monitoring
QRecycling – 5% improvement across the portfolio over

three years (baseline: 67%)

Hyprop in brief

Primary objective
QMinimise energy consumption and carbon emissions
QMonitor water consumption
QIncrease percentage of waste recycled

2014 in perspective

Environmental strategy

QCarbon emissions – in line with energy (electrical)

consumption reductions
Secondary targets
QConsider best practice in energy, water reduction, waste

and biodiversity across the group

management and carbon emissions
QConsider green building principles
QManage biodiversity impacts through responsible

In addition, Hyprop is a member of the Green Building Council of
South Africa (GBCSA), and has committed to actively support
and adhere to the council’s vision and mission. A green building
incorporates design, construction and operational practices that
signiﬁcantly reduce or eliminate the negative impact of
development on the environment and occupants.

Financial statements
Unitholder information

Our approach is informed by best practice, proven methods, the
practical ease of implementation, as well as the beneﬁt and cost
of retroﬁtting green design to existing buildings. Identiﬁed
opportunities include lower operating costs, improved leasing
terms, reduced liability and risk of higher utility costs, stringent
legislation in terms of, for example, carbon taxes.

Given the absence of standards on the environmental
sustainability of existing buildings, and no simple solution to
environmental challenges, this strategy is dynamic and continually
reviewed against best practice and new developments. We focus
on practical implementation within the parameters of a cost/
beneﬁt analysis and the feasibility of retroﬁtting green design.

Governance

Approach
Given the nature of its business, Hyprop is classiﬁed as having a
low environmental impact in terms of the JSE’s Socially
Responsible Investment Index. Integral to our commitment to
continuously improving our operations, however, is reducing this
environmental impact. After identifying the most relevant
environmental impacts of our business as relating to water,
energy and waste, we introduced our green design and
environmental strategy two years ago with progress to date
shown below.

Risk management

management by considering best practice and new
developments
QEnhance stakeholder engagement by engaging large users
and exploring collaborative opportunities
QEnsure compliance with environmental legislation
QEmbed culture of environmental responsibility across the
group
QUndertake annual environment-speciﬁc risk assessments
QExplore how innovation and technology can support
competitiveness

Performance

Secondary objective
QStandardise management of energy, water, waste, carbon
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Embedding sustainability in our business continued
Electrical consumption
Kilowatt hours per occupied
space (m2)

Base year

2014

2013

%
change

Retail
Office

268 980 422
6 255 958

284 417 331
6 344 531

(5,43)
(1,40)

Total

275 236 380

290 761 862

(5,34)

Key environmental projects completed in ﬁnancial year 2014
Projects during the year totalling R6,5 million focused on installing
energy-efficient lighting to reduce both electricity consumption
and maintenance costs.
Energy-efficiency initiatives
Given that around 30% of Hyprop’s total operational spend in
any reporting year is on electricity (mostly consumed by tenants),
energy efficiency has become a ﬁnancial imperative. We are
initiating a range of energy-efficient solutions to better manage
costs for the group and its tenants.

Property

Kilowatt
hours saved
to endJune 2014

Total
saving Investment*

Canal Walk
Lakeﬁeld
Clearwater
Woodlands
Atterbury Value Mart
Hyde Park
Willowbridge
Stoneridge
The Glen
Cradock Heights
Clearwater Mall
CapeGate

1 668 972
473 938
294 272
370 688
329 280
540 579
283 660
305 084
228 864
20 980
176 511
303 082

R2 615 808
R447 189
R247 133
R318 834
R282 780
R538 187
R283 360
R262 028
R333 232
R31 352
R192 309
R303 082

R2 097 370
R262 350
R96 350
R141 982
R189 900
R585 800
R320 808
R307 800
R2 410 965
R82 076
R838 794
R1 993 657

Total

4 995 910

R5 854 844

R9 327 852

*Total rebate from Eskom of R2 876 288, therefore net capex of
R6 541 562

Determining Hyprop’s carbon footprint
To establish an accurate baseline, we are determining the group’s
scope 1 and 2 carbon footprint using Defra (UK Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs) voluntary reporting
guidelines and the revised corporate accounting and reporting
standard of the Greenhouse Gas Protocol, the most widely used
international accounting tool for government and business
leaders to understand, quantify and manage greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions.
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Emissions (tCO2e)
Scope 1
Scope 2
Scope 3*

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013

5 534

38 480

237 700

Financial year 2014

5 320

34 711

243 154

Note: Scope 1 includes all direct GHG emissions; scope 2 includes
indirect GHG emissions from consuming purchased electricity, heat or
steam. Scope 3 covers other indirect emissions, which for Hyprop is
calculated as kilowatt hour (kWh) purchased from the supply authority
and resold to tenants.

*Scope 3 emissions
The increase in scope 3 emissions is tenant-driven. All our sites have
bulk meters that measure total kWh consumed. Each tenant has a
sub-meter that registers direct electrical consumption. Where tenants
have dedicated air-conditioning units, 100% of electrical consumption is
recovered from them. Where they share an air-conditioning system,
they pay a pro rata share of the total area served by the unit.

Numerous initiatives are under way across the group to improve
our environmental performance and reach set targets.
Fines
Hyprop incurred no ﬁnes for non-compliance with environmental
laws and regulations during the year.
International benchmarking
During the year, and in line with its strategic pillars of quality and
innovation, Hyprop voluntarily participated in two global
benchmark programmes. These comprehensive exercises
underscore our commitment to ensuring best practices are
embedded throughout our group for the beneﬁt of all
stakeholders.
We completed our ﬁrst submission to the Carbon Disclosure
Project, now rebranded as CDP, the acknowledged international
benchmark for environmental reporting.
CDP is an international non-proﬁt organisation providing the only
global system for companies and cities to measure, disclose,
manage and share vital environmental information in building
sustainable economies.
The Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark is an industrydriven organisation that assesses the sustainability performance
of real estate portfolios (public, private and direct) around the
globe. It is used by institutional investors to improve
the sustainability performance of their investment portfolio, and
the global property sector.
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Hyprop’s long-term resources strategy is continuously reviewed
and improved. We are establishing a credible track record and a
base to accelerate momentum.

2013

%
change

Retail
Offices

1 174 510
21 244

1 189 174
23 003

(1,2)
(7,6)

Total

1 195 754

1 212 177

(1,4)

Hyprop will implement smart metering across the portfolio to
improve measuring and monitoring of general water consumption
and identify leaks from unusual ﬂow patterns.
Smart metering
Hyprop is introducing smart metering across the portfolio.
This will be phased in over three years, starting with installing
bulk meters, then sub-meters for major users and ﬁnally submeters for remaining tenants.
The beneﬁts of smart metering include:
QHistory of consumption per 30-minute interval can be
downloaded for speedy resolution of tenant queries
QAlarm raised when meters are tampered with
QAnomalies immediately ﬂagged which limits risk and
consequential loss
QHigh-risk tenants can be converted to prepaid consumption
which can be switched off remotely, translating to zero risk
to landlord
QAccurately tracking consumption patterns optimises
ﬁnancial beneﬁts of time-of-use tariff
QBalancing sub-meters back to bulk meter at all times to ﬂag
any bypassing

Unitholder information

At existing assets, we rely on close cooperation with tenants and
customers to reduce water consumption. At new developments
and during renovations and upgrades, efficiency is a determining
factor in choosing technical equipment (toilets, urinals, taps,
sprinkler systems and cooling systems).

Financial statements

Water
Hyprop is exploring opportunities to reduce water consumption
while improving measurement and monitoring standards. This
includes installing water-efficient equipment, optimising
operating practices, and ensuring leaks are detected and repaired
rapidly.

2014

Governance

The installation of the plant is aligned with our
environmental sustainability strategy, which is to minimise
energy consumption and reduce carbon emissions. In
addition, the plant will provide renewable energy to meet
the mall’s growth potential by ensuring a sustainable and
consistent energy supply.

Kilolitres per occupied
space (m2)

Risk management

Hyprop is installing a 500 kilowatt peak (kWp) solar
photovoltaic plant at Clearwater Mall. The plant is capable
of generating 500kWp, enough power for 120 typical
households, and will offset 800 tonnes of carbon dioxide
annually. The plant is expected to be operational by
November 2014 at a capital cost of R8 million. The system
can be expanded ﬁve-fold to 2 500kWp should the plant
meet expectations.

Water consumption

Performance

Progress towards energy efficiency

Bulk water consumption is monitored daily at centres to identify
unusual consumption patterns that might indicate leaks.

Hyprop in brief

Conserving resources
Energy
Resource scarcity, particularly energy and water, is a risk to the
sustainability of both our buildings and business model as a lack
or inadequate supply of water or electricity will affect current
operations and future projects.

Water-saving initiatives implemented in the prior period included
installing waterless urinals at two facilities at Cradock Heights, and
using drought-resistant landscaping at Lakeﬁeld, Glenﬁeld and
Glenwood to reduce water consumption.

2014 in perspective

The survey includes performance data, such as energy, GHG
emissions, water and waste. It also covers broader issues, such as
sustainability risk assessments, performance improvement
programmes, and engagement with employees, tenants, suppliers
and the community.
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Embedding sustainability in our business continued
Waste
Hyprop’s waste management approach is designed to maximise
recycling, minimise disposal to landﬁll and ensure compliance
with legislation.
Tenants are regularly informed about on-site waste management
systems, and Canal Walk and Clearwater Mall have public recycling
stations. Suitable waste segregation facilities are in place at all
centres.
For development projects, we consider best practice for
optimising the environmental quality of our construction sites.
Waste generated through construction is disposed of in line with
responsible waste management plans. Hyprop adheres to all
applicable regulations.
In 2014, Hyprop recycled 67% of total waste, up from 60% in 2013.
While higher in percentage terms, lower group volumes in the
table below reﬂect greater individual recycling efforts from our
tenants.
Recycling
Number of loads ordered
Quantity of units collected
Recycled (%)
Recycled (m3)

2014

2013

6 469
83 619
67
49 938

7 160
105 515
60
52 890

Environmental sensitivity
Canal Walk and Willowbridge are in biodiversity-rich areas
QCanal Walk is part of the greater Century City precinct, which
is in a national wetland conservation area – Intaka Island. Intaka
is an award-winning 16-hectare conservation area, rich in
birdlife and indigenous plants. The precinct has an
environmental management plan to which Canal Walk adheres.
In terms of the plan, no sewerage, fertilisers, herbicides or
chemicals are discharged into canals that run through the
precinct. Only biodegradable cleaning products are used for
parking decks, walkways and walls to minimise water pollution.
In addition, Hyprop contributes ﬁnancially to the environmental
management plan.
QWillowbridge is next to the Elsiekraal River and adheres to the
environmental management plan set by the council to guard
against water pollution.
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Intellectual capital
Organisation knowledge, systems and procedures
QImplemented parking and foot counters, which will be centrally
monitored across the portfolio. The centralised method reduces
downtime and improves efficiencies while reporting is
automated and can be customised. In terms of footfall, the
newly installed counters will monitor the directional ﬂow of
shoppers in addition to the number of feet entering at respective
entrances. Understanding directional ﬂow assists with optimally
locating tenants and improving the general ﬂow of the mall.
QIncrease use of social media to connect with shoppers –
including smartphone apps, and introducing high-speed wi-ﬁ
at centres.
QSingle integrated electronic property management system that
offers multiple beneﬁts:
– Financial data (including accounting, leasing and retail
information for all properties in the Hyprop portfolio) now
centrally stored using MDA Property Manager
– The data is hosted on the cloud service of MDA Property
Systems which means that it can be securely accessed from
anywhere in the world on any device with internet access,
including mobile devices
– Processes and procedures can be standardised and controlled
more effectively, while built-in redundancy and disaster
recovery planning ensure that data will not be lost and will
be easily accessible
– External data hosting also reduces the cost and maintenance
of expensive computer equipment
– From a management perspective, the ﬁnancial performance
of each property, multiple properties or the entire portfolio
can be easily reviewed
– Tenant and lease-related data can be readily viewed and
compared throughout the portfolio.
QInformation technology (IT): Hyprop is well aware of both the
beneﬁts and risks of technology in its business. To ensure
IT contributes to achieving our strategic goals, we invest
prudently against speciﬁed criteria and manage these
systems closely to ensure we derive optimal beneﬁt. Oversight
vests with executive management and is monitored by
appropriate board committees. The strength and suitability of
our IT processes is reﬂected in full compliance with both the
criteria of King III and the Institute of Directors’ governance
assessment instrument.
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2014 in perspective

Hyprop in brief

Performance

Risk management

Governance

Financial statements

Unitholder information

Somerset Mall LED project
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Risk management
Risks
The material risks identiﬁed by the group in terms of their probability, and the potential impact on Hyprop, are shown below. Each risk has
been mapped to the strategic objective on which it could have an impact, affected stakeholders, management’s strategic response and
related key performance indicators.

Approach
Hyprop’s systems of internal control are designed to provide reasonable assurance on the integrity and reliability of the ﬁnancial statements.
By managing, rather than eliminating, applicable risks these systems are intended to safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the
company’s assets. Equally, they are designed to identify and minimise signiﬁcant fraud, potential liability, loss and material misstatement
while complying with applicable laws and regulations.

Strategic objective

Key risk

Probable effects

Severity of risk

Focus on sustainable
income growth

Slowdown in consumer spend affecting
retailers’ trading densities and rent ratios (gross
rent to turnover ratio)

QSlower retail sales growth affects retailers’

High

Increased supply of retail space

QUnable to retain tenants
QTenants become more demanding on

ﬁnancial positions and ability to pay rent
QLeases not renewed
QDiscounted rentals to retain tenants
QLower distributable income

High

leasing terms
QIncreased pressure on renewal rates
QIncreased vacancies
QLower rental growth
QLower or no distribution growth

Negative impact of extensions to existing
operations/income during construction
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QLower footcount and longer recovery

period after a major extension, resulting in
tenant failure
QLower income as rentals are reduced during
construction
QIncreased short-term vacancies
QLower distributable income
QLoss of shopper support

High
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Framework/process

Executive management implements controls to ensure the validity, accuracy and completeness of ﬁnancial information. These controls are
reviewed by internal and external audit. External audit reports on the fair presentation of ﬁnancial information at statutory reporting level.
On an operational level, this is done by the executive committee.

Hyprop in brief

Key risks and uncertainties that may affect achieving our strategic objectives are set out on page 25.

Strategic response

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors,
ﬁnancial institutions)

QFacilitate strong trading environments by

Tenants

Tenants

Shoppers

QDetailed analysis and research prior to

Trading density growth:
+7,0% (2013: +6,8%)

Page 5, 8, 22

Rent ratio: +6,9%
(2013: +6,9%)
Total arrears
(excluding Rosebank Mall)
R14,3 million
(2013: R17,1 million)

Leasing activity,
rental growth,
contractual escalations,
workload (percentage
of total leases expiring
in one ﬁnancial year)

Total lease activity:
134 957m2 (retail: 113 206m2;
offices: 21 751m2)
16,9% of total portfolio

Page 8, 22

Rental growth: 8,3%
(retail: 8,2%; offices: 8,6%)
Contractual escalations: 8,2%
(retail: 8,2%; offices: 8,4%)

Delivery of key project
milestones

Rosebank Mall delivered on
time and within budget

Page 8, 33

Fully let

Unitholder information

approving extensions
QProfessional teams have strong oversight
from dedicated development executive
QLarge redevelopments usually phased to
limit disruption to sections of the mall
at a time
QUse reputable consultants, contractors and
professionals with experience
QStringent pre-letting requirements
QProject pipeline and progress discussed
monthly at executive committee meeting

Arrears, trading
densities, rent
affordability

Financial statements

Tenants

in dominant locations and thus attract
ﬂagship stores
QDemand for space in Hyprop centres
continues to outstrip supply, resulting in
a strong pipeline of prospective tenants
QMeet tenant demand through extensions
and tenant relocations
QExecutive committee meets monthly to
discuss operational performance and any
other matters

Read
more

Governance

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

QMost shopping centres are well established,

2014
achievements

Risk management

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

developing shopping destinations of choice
through exciting brands, ﬂagship stores and
an attractive tenant mix in a safe, clean and
friendly environment
QIncrease time spent in centre through
initiatives such as wi-ﬁ and active social
media strategies
QStrong lease agreements with ﬁnancially
sound tenants (most tenants are reputable
national companies with strong balance
sheets and proven business models)
QProvide economic and geographic
diversiﬁcation through Atterbury Africa

Key performance
indicator

Performance

Stakeholder

2014 in perspective

The board reviews and monitors the efficacy of systems of internal control, assisted by the audit and risk committees. These committees
are assisted by management reporting and periodic reviews, as well as by an outsourced internal audit service provider. The committees
report to the board on the ﬁndings of the internal audit function.
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Risk management continued

Strategic objective

Key risk

Probable effects

Severity of risk

Focus on sustainable
income growth

Lease renewals and tenant retention

QInability to renew leases or retain tenants

High

Signiﬁcant volume of leases expiring in any
one period

means increased vacancies and prolonged
periods of vacant space in shopping centres
QNegative rent reversion
QNegative impact on budgets

High reliance on retailer expansion plans

QRetailers curb expansion plans

Medium

QBudgets impacted
QInternational brands are unsuccessful

To own quality
shopping centres in
Africa

Currency risk

QUnable to repatriate funds due to illiquid

Medium

currency markets or capital restrictions
QReduced distributable income
QExcessive volatility in exchange rates
Political risk

QGovernments adopt policies that are to the

Medium

detriment of foreign investors, particularly
movement of capital, taxation and land
ownership
Operating environment

QOperating cost increases signiﬁcantly,

Medium

speciﬁcally municipal costs, rates and taxes
QCost of development increases
exponentially, increasing the need for
funding and impacting returns

Security

QIncreased violence

Medium

QTerrorist target

Investment risk

QReturns below expectations
QDefault on shareholder funding
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Strategic response

Key performance
indicator

2014
achievements

Read
more

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

QProactively managing lease expiries

Workload

Number of leases renewed:
278

Page 8, 30

Tenants

QClose engagement with tenants throughout

QStrong pipeline of prospective tenants
QMonthly lease expiry and related workload

reports to Exco

Number of new leases: 133

their tenure

Occupancy: 97,6%
FY15: 25% of total GLA
expiring

QOptimal tenant mix

Workload

QOptimal space

Number of new leases: 133

tenants

QConsider hedging exposure in terms of

Received R4,8 million in
dividends from Atterbury
Africa and R30,3 million from
African Land

Page 12

Ability to operate

Ghana and Zambia have
proved relatively stable and
investor friendly

Page 12

Ability to deliver
development projects
on time and within
budget

West Hills on track for
completion in October 2014

Page 8, 22, 30

material dividends received

QVigorous due diligence of target countries
QTarget countries have stable political

regimes and proven democracies
QExperienced local operating teams

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors, ﬁnancial
institutions)

QEmploy local teams
QPartner with an experienced operator
QImplement optimal holding structures

Governance

Accra Mall and Manda Hill
operating well

Ability to conduct
day-to-day operational
activity
QOngoing surveillance of security

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors, ﬁnancial
institutions)

QJoint control of operating company,

environment

Atterbury Africa
QMinimum initial return of 8%, escalating at
4% annually
QInvestment currently relatively small

Proximity of recent
attacks and likelihood
of attacks

Zero attacks on current
investments

Page 8

USD-denominated
yields of 9% to 9,5%

Acquired Manda Hill

Page 12

Strong pipeline of
development projects

Financial statements

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors, ﬁnancial
institutions)

Risk management

Size of dividend
(current % of income)

Performance

QMatching debt with income (USD)

Occupancy: 97,6%

QRestructured African Land

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors, ﬁnancial
institutions)

Page 8, 22, 30

QSecure strong pipeline of prospective
QAdequate security from tenants
QRegular tenant reviews

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors, ﬁnancial
institutions)

Number of leases renewed:
278

Hyprop in brief

QStaggering major leases

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

2014 in perspective

Stakeholder

Unitholder information
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Risk management continued

Strategic objective

Key risk

Probable effects

Severity of risk

Focus on continuous
portfolio
improvements through
developments and
redevelopments,
acquisitions and
disposals

Low-yielding investment strategy

QLower growth in distributions

Medium

Providing the highest
level of service to
our tenant
stakeholders

Increased cost of occupancy from rates, taxes
and utilities

QUnable to recover tenants portion of

Deterioration of municipal administration and
service delivery

QIncorrect utility billings
QUnable to optimise bulk and pursue

QInefficient capital allocation

High

consumption means lower distributable
income
QLower rentals to retain certain tenants
High

large-scale extensions to meet tenant
demand
QDelays in transfer of acquisitions and
disposals
Cost and supply of electricity and water

QProlonged periods of power outages

resulting in sub-optimal trading conditions
(or even mall closure)
QUnable to extend shopping centres to meet
tenant demand
QExcessive increase in cost of occupancy
impacting recoveries and renewals
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Strategic response

Key performance
indicator

2014
achievements

Read
more

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

QRegular review of strategy against

Approved investments

Disposal of non-core assets
R205 million

Page 8, 12

macro-economic environment, operating
landscape, returns and risk tolerance
QDetailed analysis and research prior to
approval
QMeet pre-letting requirements
QDisposal of non-core assets

Hyprop in brief

Acquired Somerset Mall
(Western Cape) for
R2,3 billion and Manda Hill
Shopping Centre (Lusaka,
Zambia) for R768 million
Refurbishments and
expansions of R58,8 million
(2013: R27,8 million)

Performance

Equipment replacement:
R28 million (2013: R16,6 million)
Allocated R3 billion to
sub-Saharan Africa
(2013: R750 million)

QPlanning and implementing methods to

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

measure and reduce consumption of
utilities
QSuccessfully objected to incorrect
valuations

Tenants

QWorking closely with professional

Saving of 4,9 million kWh
and R5,9 million

Page 8, 44

Town council
approvals received,
utilities recovered

Timely transfer of Somerset
Mall

Page 8

Water and electricity
consumption

Saving of 4,9 million kWh
and R5,9 million

Page 44

Governance

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

consultants to optimise local authority
approval processes

Cost of occupancy

Risk management

Strong pipeline of approved
projects in sub-Saharan Africa
Tenants

2014 in perspective

Stakeholder

Shoppers

Providers of capital (equity
and debt investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

QNumerous projects under way to reduce

consumption
QTenants guided by tenant criteria
document, with guidelines on reducing
electricity consumption
QIntroducing smart metering
QR8 million solar photovoltaic plant at
Clearwater Mall

Total electricity
consumption down
5,34% year-on-year

Financial statements

Tenants

Unitholder information
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Risk management continued

Strategic objective

Key risk

Probable effects

Severity of risk

Maintaining a
conservative debt
proﬁle

Lack of available funding

QInability to pursue investment opportunities

Low

Managing exposure to
interest rate
ﬂuctuations

Rising interest rates

QIncreased borrowing costs result in reduced

Low

Attracting and retaining
the best people

Shortage of skills may result in an inability to
recruit required executive staff and have
increased costs of retaining key executives
and staff

QStrategy execution at risk

Medium

Succession planning

QDeparture of executive directors and key

Medium

distributable income

executives
QStrategy execution at risk

BEE

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

QCurrent BEE level of 8

Low

57

Strategic response

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

QMaintain conservative gearing levels
QEnsure available funding to cover capital

requirements
QDiversiﬁed sources of funding

Key performance
indicator

2014
achievements

Read
more

Undrawn facilities and
capacity under debt
capital market
programme,
covenants

Issued six-year bond

Page 12

R1,7 billion in undrawn
facilities

Hyprop in brief

R2,3 billion capacity under
R5 billion debt capital
markets programme

2014 in perspective

Stakeholder

Interest cover ratio: 3,4
(covenant: not less than 2)
Gearing: 28,4% (covenant: not
greater than 50%)

QFixed rate target of 80% and ﬁve-year

average cover
QProactive risk management of debt proﬁle
QStaggering ﬁxed interest rate expiries

Maturity proﬁle,
cost of funding

Average maturity: 3,03 years
(2013: 3,5 years)

Page 12

Risk management

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

Performance

NAV as deﬁned for purposes
of the covenant: R19,2 billion
(covenant: not less than
R7,5 billion)

Average ﬁxed rate contracts
and swaps: 4,24% (2013: 4,3%)
Average interest rate on
total debt of 7,5%
(2013: 8,1%)

QRetention strategy includes performance

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

QSuccession plans reviewed biannually by

incentives, remuneration benchmarking,
personal development plans
QShare scheme implemented

Strategy
implementation

Distribution growth of 11,3%

Page 12, 39

Staff turnover

Low staff turnover: 3,9%
(2013: 4,0%)

Page 39

nomination and remuneration committee
QCurrent structure allows for continuity of
day-to-day operations

Suppliers
Tenants
QIdentiﬁed as a strategic imperative
QPlan in place to achieve incremental and

Independent BEE rating

Received ﬁrst independent
rating

Page 39

Unitholder information

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

Financial statements

Implementation of
long-term incentive scheme
to address retention

Employees

Governance

Providers of capital (debt
and equity investors and
ﬁnancial institutions)

sustainable improvements

Employees
Tenants
Suppliers
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How we govern and manage our business

Hyprop is characterised by active management, with a
tightly knit and experienced executive team managing
a growing core portfolio.
We consider our commitment to excellent governance standards as fundamental to the sustainability of our performance. Our approach
to corporate governance is determined by a code of ethics and conduct, and based on the values and principles that underpin our actions.
The matrix below illustrates how this code of ethics supports our values and guides our day-to-day business activities.
Responsiveness

Collaboration

Transparency

Integrity

Accountability

Implement an effective
system of internal
control to meet our
strategic objectives

Support the process of
sustainable and real
transformation

Ensure independence
from any business or
third parties with
contractual relationships
with Hyprop

Avoid any conﬂicts of
interest that may unduly
inﬂuence or compromise
any employee’s ability to
act in the company’s
best interests

Zero tolerance for any
form of corruption,
unethical business
practice or behaviour
that contravenes any
law, regulation or
societal norms

Subscribe to sound
health, safety and
environmental practices

Uphold fair and ethical
competition in the
marketplace in line
with relevant
competition laws

Ensure legitimate
dealings in our shares by
employee shareholders
in compliance with the
South African Securities
Services Act 36 of 2004
and the Listings
Requirements of the JSE

Refuse gifts, hospitality
or other favours from
third parties in return for
any kind of favour,
service or treatment

Steer away from direct
and indirect
discriminatory
practices

Conduct our business
with integrity, mutual
respect and
professionalism to
enhance Hyprop’s
reputation

Apply best practice
corporate governance

Safeguard the use of
Hyprop’s assets for
legitimate purposes only

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Protect conﬁdentiality
of information

59

Directorate and executive management

2014 in perspective

Appointed chairman 2013.
Committees: audit,
remuneration and nomination

Appointed 2006. Committees:
remuneration and nomination
(chair)

Gavin has been involved in
the ﬁnancial services industry
for over 20 years, and was
formerly an executive director
of Coronation Investments
and Trading Limited and a
technical partner at KPMG
South Africa. He is a director
of a number of listed
companies.

Ethan has signiﬁcant corporate
ﬁnance and asset management
experience. He spent three
years with Southern Life Asset
Managers as a senior analyst
and two years with Standard
Bank in the corporate ﬁnance
division. In 1996 he founded
Inﬁnity Asset Management
with three partners and, in
1998, founded Vunani Limited,
a ﬁnancial services company
where he is currently CEO.

Thabo Mokgatlha (39)

Independent
non-executive directors

CA(SA)
Appointed 2013. Committees:
audit
Thabo began his career as a
senior lecturer in accounting
and taxation at the University
of the North West. He
subsequently worked as
ﬁnance manager of the North
West Parks Board, centre
manager in the Rustenburg
office of the auditor-general
and ﬁnance manager of Royal
Bafokeng Administration. He
serves on the boards of a
number of listed companies.

Risk management

MSc (statistics), executive MBA
(Sweden)

Performance

Ethan Dube (55)

BCom, BAcc, CA(SA), MBA
Chairman

Hyprop in brief

Gavin Tipper (49)

Lindie Engelbrecht (39)
Governance

CA(SA)
Appointed 2011. Committees:
audit (chair), risk, remuneration
and nomination

Louis van der Watt (47)
Appointed 2011.

BCom, BAgric Management
Appointed 2010. Committees:
social and ethics
Mike has over 20 years’
experience in the property
industry and headed the
group retail division of
Redeﬁne Properties Limited
until December 2013. He
was previously with Edgars
Consolidated Stores Limited
for 18 years as their property
development executive.
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Unitholder information

Louis co-founded Atterbury
Property, one of the largest
property developers in
South Africa, in 1994, after
completing his articles at
Deloitte Consulting (the
management consulting arm
of Deloitte & Touche). He also
co-founded Attfund Limited,
which was subsequently
acquired by Hyprop.

Mike Lewin (59)

Financial statements

CA(SA), CIMA (UK )

Lindie is a former technical
director at KPMG and
director of governance and
sustainability services at Ernst
& Young. She previously served
as chief executive officer of
the Institute of Directors.
Lindie is a member of the
King Committee on Corporate
Governance and has advised,
consulted and presented
to boards in the public and
private sectors on corporate,
legal and governance matters.
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Directorate and executive management continued

Non-executive directors

Stewart Shaw-Taylor (62)
CA(SA), Harvard PMD

E

COM
PIC TO

Kevin Ellerine (46)
National Diploma in company
administration

Executive directors

Appointed 2000. Committees:
risk (chair), remuneration and
nomination, investment
Stewart has over 30 years’
experience in investment
banking and real estate. He
is currently head of CIB Real
Estate Investments, Standard
Bank Group. He is responsible
for the real estate, equityrelated activities undertaken
by Standard Bank’s corporate
investment banking division.

Appointed 2009. Committees:
investment
Kevin joined the family
business, Ellerine Holdings, in
1991 as merchandise manager.
In 1993 he became property
manager of Ellerine Bros
(Proprietary) Limited, and was
appointed managing director
of the property division in
2000 where he remains today.
He sits on the boards of all
property and private equity
companies in which Ellerine
Bros is invested.

Louis Norval (58)
BSc (QS)
Appointed 2011. Committees:
investment
Louis co-founded Attfund
Limited and was executive
chairman and chief executive
of Attfund Retail Limited
when it was acquired by
Hyprop. He is managing
director of the Parkdev group
of companies. Louis was a
founding member and senior
partner of Norval Wentzel
Steinberg Quantity Surveyors
and executive director of
Baker Street Associates
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited.
He currently serves as a nonexecutive director of Capital
& Regional plc.
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Pieter Prinsloo (49)

Laurence Cohen (41)

BSc (QS)
Chief executive officer

BCom, CA(SA)
Financial director

Appointed 2011. Committees:
investment (chair), social and
ethics (chair) and risk

Appointed 2006. Committees:
investment and risk

Pieter was CEO of Hyprop
from 2002 to 2009, and
reappointed in May 2011.
A quantity surveyor, he has
been engaged in every aspect
of property development,
management and ﬁnance
for 21 years, including senior
positions at Sanlam Properties,
Standard Bank Properties and
Absa Commercial Property
Finance.

Laurence joined the group in
2003 as ﬁnancial director of
Hyprop management company,
after spending three years in
Grant Thornton’s corporate
ﬁnance division. He has been
extensively involved in various
aspects of the group during
his tenure with the company.
Laurence also chairs the
accounting and JSE committee
of the SA REIT Association,
and serves on its executive
committee.
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2014 in perspective

Executive management

Hyprop in brief

Steven Riley (43)
Development executive

Performance

Riegardt Marais (43)

Mark de Klerk (53)

Brenda Frylinck (51)

National technical manager

National facilities manager

Desirée Nafte (48)

Karin Eichhorn (37)

Nikki Catrakilis-Wagner (40)

National legal executive

Human resources and IT systems

Investor relations executive

Wayne Abegglen (48)

Nicole Greenstone (46)

Yvette van der Merwe (41)

Regional executive: Cape Town

Regional executive: Johannesburg

Regional executive: Pretoria

Marketing executive

Risk management
Governance
Financial statements

Regional executives
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Detailed curricula vitae of executive management are available on www.hyprop.co.za.
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Corporate governance
Approach
Our approach to corporate governance is based on the values
and principles that underpin the day-to-day activities of our
group – responsiveness, collaboration, transparency, integrity and
accountability. This encompasses a commitment to excellence in
governance standards, which we regard as fundamental to the
sustainability of the group’s performance.

Applying governance principles
The board is committed to applying the recommendations of
King III, complying with JSE Listings Requirements and the
Companies Act, as well as incorporating relevant standards of
best practice. In line with King III’s “apply or explain” approach, the

directors disclose the extent to which Hyprop applies these
corporate governance principles to create and sustain value for
stakeholders over the short, medium and long term, and explain
any instances of non-compliance. The King III application is on
page 67 and in our online report.
In October 2013, Hyprop elected to participate in the Institute of
Directors Southern Africa’s (IoDSA) governance assessment
instrument, achieving the highest application score of AAA
(below and online). There is scope to improve our application in
terms of independent assurance.

Assessing our governance
As convener of the King committee and custodian of the King reports, one of IoDSA’s main objectives is to promote corporate
governance by enabling the application of King III.
In line with this, and to create a credible and general benchmark to measure application, the IoDSA developed an online tool to:
Q Evaluate implementation of governance structures and processes as recommended by King III
Q Track progress on implementing King III
Q Provide a simpliﬁed framework for the board for a risk-based review of applying King III
Q Facilitate a meaningful scoring mechanism for an organisation’s adoption of King III
Q Provide a framework for independently assuring governance
Q Give holding companies a concise view of subsidiaries’ governance status, where applicable
Q Provide an audit programme for internal and external service providers
Q Offer a reporting benchmark to stakeholders, ﬁt for peer-to-peer comparison of organisations, enhancing conﬁdence in governance
reporting
The assessment instrument covers main governance categories of:
Q Board composition
Q Remuneration
Q Governance office bearers
Q Board role and duties
Q Accountability
Q Board committees
Q Group boards
Q Performance assessment

Ethical leadership
Hyprop’s board aims to integrate responsible corporate citizenship
into the company’s investment strategy and daily operations to
ensure its sustainability. In line with its charter, the board is the
guardian of the group’s values and ethics. The board strives to
lead by example and to embody the values set out in our code
of conduct and ethics, http://www.hyprop.co.za/pdf/policies/
hyprop-code-conduct-2013.pdf. As a business imperative, the
directors strive to ensure that Hyprop conducts its business with
the utmost integrity towards all stakeholders.
The social and ethics committee of the board monitors
compliance with Hyprop’s code of conduct and ethics and other
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relevant social, ethical and legal requirements, as well as best
practice. The committee’s purpose is to ensure we meet our
responsibilities to stakeholders. It reports to unitholders on
matters within its mandate at the annual general meeting and via
this integrated report.
We monitor ethical behaviour through the Hyprop ethics line,
an independent hotline operated by an external provider. They
provide a regular call analysis to enable Hyprop to investigate
all allegations timeously. Formal reports on matters that may
impact ﬁnancial reporting are submitted to the audit
committee. Only two reports were received during the period,
which were addressed.
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Q Participated in IoDSA’s governance assessment – achieved overall AAA score, indicating the highest

application of the principles and recommendations of King III
Q Audit committee constituted solely of independent board members
Q Majority of the board is independent
Q New appointment improved diversity

Remuneration and
nomination committee

Investment
committee

Social and ethics
committee

Members
Lindie Engelbrecht
(chairman)
Gavin Tipper
Thabo Mokgatlha

Members
Stewart Shaw-Taylor
(chairman)
Lindie Engelbrecht
Pieter Prinsloo
Laurence Cohen

Members
Ethan Dube
(chairman)
Lindie Engelbrecht
Stewart Shaw-Taylor
Gavin Tipper

Members
Pieter Prinsloo
(chairman)
Stewart Shaw-Taylor
Laurence Cohen
Louis Norval
Kevin Ellerine

Responsibilities
See report on page 75.

Responsibilities
See page 50 for further
detail.

Responsibilities
Hyprop’s remuneration
policies and practices
appear on page 70.

Responsibilities
Assists the board in
considering opportunities
for acquisitions, disposals
and other corporate
activities. Approves
acquisitions, disposals and
capital expenditure in line
with its limits of authority
and the strategy
determined by the board.

Members
Pieter Prinsloo
(chairman)
Vasti Booysen
Karin Eichhorn
Mike Lewin
Desiree Nafte
Steven Riley
Responsibilities
Monitors Hyprop’s
activities in terms of
social and economic
development; good
corporate citizenship;
environment, health and
public safety; consumer
relationships; and labour
and employment.

Risk management

Risk
committee

Performance

Audit
committee

Hyprop in brief

HYPROP BOARD
Reviews strategy, planning, ﬁnancial performance, resources, operations, risk, capital expenditure, reporting and compliance matters, standards
of conduct, transformation, diversity, employment equity, human resources and environmental management, among other responsibilities.

2014 in perspective

2014 governance developments

See http://www.hyprop.co.za/sustainability-policy-documents.php for charters or terms of reference of each committee.

Governance

Chief executive officer

Head office (located in Rosebank, Johannesburg)

Pretoria region

Cape Town region

Shopping centres/offices

Shopping centres/offices

Shopping centres/offices

Hyde Park
The Glen
Rosebank Mall
Stoneridge
Cradock Heights
Mall offices

Woodlands
Atterbury Value Mart
Clearwater
Lakeﬁeld
Glenﬁeld
Glenwood

Canal Walk
CapeGate
Willowbridge
Somerset Value Mart
Somerset Mall

The chairmen of key committees – audit, remuneration and nomination – are all independent non-executive directors. Hyprop is making
progress in improving the representivity of its board.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

Unitholder information

Johannesburg region

Financial statements

Finance, developments, risk, technical, facilities, legal, HR and IT systems, marketing, investor relations
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Corporate governance continued
Composition of the board
Hyprop’s board comprises 11 directors: six independent nonexecutives, three non-executives, and two executive directors.
The non-executive directors have diverse backgrounds in
commerce and industry. Their collective experience enables
them to provide sound, objective judgement in decision making.
They review and ratify Hyprop’s strategy, in addition to monitoring
the group’s performance and that of executive management
against key performance indicators. Speciﬁcally they provide
opinions and advice on the group’s ﬁnancial, audit, governance
and risk management systems and controls. To ensure sustainable
leadership, they also review transformation and succession
planning at senior level and provide input on the remuneration
process.

Our induction process includes a brieﬁng by the chairman, CEO,
ﬁnancial director and our sponsor, Java Capital. New appointees
are also introduced to key senior management at company and
shopping centre levels and site visits to the shopping centres are
facilitated.
The appointment of new directors is conﬁrmed by shareholders
at the ﬁrst annual general meeting following their appointment, in
terms of the memorandum of incorporation.

Rotation of directors
The company’s memorandum of incorporation provides for onethird of directors to retire by rotation after a three-year term of
office. Being eligible, the directors in question will offer themselves
for re-election.

All directors are free of conﬂict in fulﬁlling their duties,
and the constructive debate at meetings contributes to
informed decisions.

Directors standing for re-election by rotation at the upcoming
annual general meeting are LR Cohen, KM Ellerine, S Shaw-Taylor
and GR Tipper.

The position of chairman is currently held by an independent
non-executive director, Gavin Tipper, whose role is clearly
deﬁned and separated from that of the CEO, Pieter Prinsloo.
Similarly, the responsibilities of CEO and ﬁnancial director are
strictly separated from those of non-executive directors to
ensure that no single director can exercise unilateral decision
making. The chairman provides leadership and guidance to the
board and encourages proper deliberation on all matters requiring
directors’ attention, while obtaining input from other directors.
The CEO and ﬁnancial director are responsible for implementing
strategy and operational decisions.

Succession planning

Non-executive directors are not involved in the daily operations
of the company.

Changes to the board
During the year, the only change to the directorate was the
appointment of Thabo Mokgatlha as independent non-executive
director and as a member of the audit committee, effective
28 August 2013.

Board appointment process
The board, supported by the remuneration and nomination
committee, is responsible for new appointments. The process of
identifying and selecting candidates is formal and transparent.
The board and committee consider the blend of skills and
experience necessary to drive the company’s operational progress
and sustainable transformation, and other relevant factors,
including diversity and regulatory compliance.
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The remuneration and nomination committee is responsible for
ensuring adequate succession planning for directors and
management, and that all committees are appropriately
constituted and chaired. The board is comfortable that the depth
of skills meets current board succession requirements.

Director development
To the extent necessary, directors have access to experts and
other parties in carrying out their duties. In addition, directors are
encouraged to undergo continuing professional development in
their personal capacity.

Company secretary
Following the acquisition of Probity Business Services (Proprietary)
Limited by Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited
(Computershare), CIS Company Secretaries (Proprietary) Limited, a
subsidiary of Computershare, was appointed as Hyprop’s
company secretary with effect from 2 June 2014.
CIS Company Secretaries (Proprietary) Limited is an independent
practice providing services to numerous JSE-listed companies.
The board is satisﬁed the company secretary and its
representative, Neville Toerien, maintain an arm’s-length
relationship with the board at all times and are sufficiently
qualiﬁed and skilled to act in accordance with, and update
directors in terms of, the recommendations of King III and other
relevant regulations and legislation.
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The board complies with the JSE Listings Requirements that
restrict trading Hyprop’s shares by directors, the company
secretary and employees during deﬁned closed periods. In terms
of the code of ethics and conduct, directors are required to
declare to the chairman and company secretary their
shareholdings, additional directorships and any potential conﬂicts
of interest. In conjunction with the ﬁnancial director and sponsor,
they ensure any required disclosure on trades in Hyprop shares is
published on SENS. Directors and senior employees with access
to the company’s ﬁnancial results and other price-sensitive
information are barred from dealing in Hyprop’s shares for
speciﬁed periods preceding relevant announcements. A
notiﬁcation is sent to all directors and affected staff alerting
them that the company is entering a closed period.

The performance of the board, and that of statutory and
subcommittees of the board, is evaluated regularly.

Board committees

Performance

Performance self-assessment

Post-year-end, Kevin Ellerine, through his associate, acquired
10 000 Hyprop shares on 4 September 2014 and a further
10 000 Hyprop shares on 10 September 2014. Louis Norval,
through his associate, disposed of 119 035 Hyprop shares on
19 September 2014.

Hyprop in brief

The company secretary keeps the board updated on
developments relating to ethics, governance and regulations. The
board then reviews any changes and appropriate measures are
implemented to comply with best practice and support
sustainable performance.

Dealing in securities
2014 in perspective

The role and functions of the company secretary include:
Q Guiding the directors, collectively and individually, on their
duties, responsibilities and powers
Q Providing information on laws, legislation, regulations and
matters of ethics and good corporate governance relevant to
the company
Q Properly recording the minutes of meetings, including
attendance registers, resolutions, directors’ declarations of
personal and ﬁnancial interests and all notices and circulars
issued by the company
Q Preparing the notice of the annual general meeting
Q Assuming responsibility for ﬁling annual and other returns in
terms of the Companies Act

Please see the outline of board committees on page 63.

The board is satisﬁed that all independent non-executive
directors meet the criteria of King III.

The need for additional committees is evaluated regularly.
Hyprop’s remuneration and nomination committees are
combined. Discussions on agenda items related to nomination
committee matters are chaired by the chairman of the board,
Gavin Tipper.

Access to information

Access to the board
Shareholders are able to provide recommendations or direction
to the board at the annual general meeting, one-on-one
meetings, investor presentations and through investor polls.

There is transparency and full disclosure from board committees
to the board. Committee chairmen provide the board with a
verbal report on recent committee activities and the minutes of
committee meetings are available. In addition, the chairman of
the board and chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees attend the company’s annual general
meetings to answer questions from stakeholders.

Board and committee meetings

The investment committee meets on an ad hoc basis as and
when necessary.
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Unitholder information

The board meets at least four times a year, with ad hoc meetings
when necessary. Relevant information is supplied timeously in
advance, ensuring directors can make well-researched and
reasoned decisions.

Financial statements

Access to the advice and services of the company secretary and
to company records, information, documents and property is
unrestricted. Non-executive directors have unfettered access to
the external and internal auditors, and to management, at any
time. All directors are entitled, at Hyprop’s expense, to seek
independent professional advice on any matters concerning the
affairs of the company.

Governance

The board is satisﬁed that all committees fulﬁlled their
responsibilities during the year. Each committee operates under
an approved charter which is reviewed annually.

Risk management

The scope of the board effectiveness assessment includes
assessing the board itself, and reviewing individual directors’
performance and contributions. Board subcommittees will be
evaluated during the course of the next ﬁnancial year and the
board performed a self-assessment in July 2014.
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Corporate governance continued
Details of attendance at board and committee meetings for the review period (1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014) are shown below.
Board

Audit

Independent non-executive directors
GR Tipper (chairman)
EG Dube(c)
L Engelbrecht(a)
T Mokgatlha (appointed 28 August 2013)
MJ Lewin
LLS van der Watt

3/4
4/4
4/4
3/4
4/4
4/4

4/4

2/2(e)

4/4
3/3

2/2

Non-executive directors
KM Ellerine
L Norval
S Shaw-Taylor(b)

4/4
4/4
4/4

Executive directors
PG Prinsloo (CEO)(d)
LR Cohen (FD)

4/4
4/4

Executives
V Booysen
M de Klerk
K Eichhorn
N Greenstone
M Hattingh
D Nafte
S Riley
Y vd Merwe
N Catrakilis-Wagner
B Frylinck

Risk

Remuneration
and nomination

Social
and ethics

4/5
5/5
5/5

1/2(e)

2/2

4/4(e)
4/4(e)

2/2

5/5

2/2
2/2

4/5(e)
4/5(e)

1/2(e)
2/2(e)
2/2(e)
1/2(e)
1/2(e)
2/2(e)
2/2(e)
1/2(e)
2/2(e)
1/2(e)

2/2
2/2(e)
0/2
2/2

2/2
2/2
2/2(e)

(a)Chairman

audit committee
risk committee
(c)Chairman remuneration and nomination committee
(d)Chairman social and ethics committee
(e)By invitation
(b)Chairman

Compliance with laws, rules, codes and standards

Q Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998

The national legal executive and executive management ensure
the company complies with all current regulations and legislation.
In doing so they liaise closely with the company’s sponsor. Areas
of non-compliance are formally tabled through the risk
management process under the supervision of the risk committee.

Q Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995
Q Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993
Q Value Added Tax Act 89 of 1991
Q Financial Intelligence Centre Act 38 of 2001
Q Consumer Protection Act 68 of 2008
Q Safety at Sports and Recreational Events Act 2 of 2010

No areas of non-compliance were identiﬁed during the year.
Hyprop has established a board subcommittee to monitor
progress against the property sector charter, with particular focus
on transformation.

Q South African Securities Services Act 36 of 2004

Legislations/regulations with which the company is required to
comply include:
Q Property sector charter
Q Basic Conditions of Employment Act 75 of 1997
Q Companies Act 71 of 2008
Q Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Disease Act 130
of 1993
Q Competition Act 89 of 1998

As Hyprop is a listed REIT, it is required to comply with the JSE
Listings Requirements and rules that are speciﬁc to REITs in South
Africa.
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Q Income Tax Act 58 of 1962
Q Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000
Q Protection of Personal Information Act 4 of 2013

Anti-competitive behaviour
Hyprop has not been party to any legal actions for anticompetitive behaviour or monopoly practices during the period.
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King III application

Board requirement

Comment

Chapter 2: Boards and directors

2.3

The board should provide effective leadership
based on an ethical foundation.

In line with its charter, the board is the guardian of the values and
ethics of the group and provides effective leadership on an ethical
foundation. The group’s code of ethics sets out its commitment to
the highest level of ethical conduct, fair dealing and integrity in
business practice as an operational imperative.

2.4

The board should ensure the company is and is
seen to be a responsible corporate citizen.

See 2.3.

2.5

The board should ensure the company’s ethics
are managed effectively.

The board ensures Hyprop’s ethics are managed effectively. The social
and ethics committee assists the board in overseeing social and
ethical matters for the group. Hyprop’s code of ethics, to which all
members of the board, management and employees are required to
adhere, promotes ethical business practices. Employees and the public
can report any acts of fraud and unethical behaviour on a conﬁdential
fraud hotline.

2.6

The board should ensure the company has an
effective and independent audit committee.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors in line with King III. Members are elected by shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

2.7

The board should be responsible for the
governance of risk.

The risk committee is responsible for overseeing the group’s risk
management programme. It reports to the board which retains
ultimate responsibility for the control and management of risk.
The risk committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
company’s risk control systems and ensures that risk policies and
strategies are effectively managed. Speciﬁcally the role of the
committee is to assist the board in ensuring that:
Q The company has implemented an effective policy and plan for
risk management that will enhance its ability to achieve its
strategic objectives
Q Disclosure on risk is comprehensive, timely and relevant.

2.8

The board should be responsible for IT
governance.

The board, through the risk committee, is responsible for effectively
managing relevant IT risks.

2.9

The board should ensure Hyprop complies with
applicable laws and considers adhering to
non-binding rules, codes and standards.

In line with its charter, the board ensures Hyprop complies with
applicable laws and considers adherence to non-binding rules and
standards, assisted by the risk committee.
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Unitholder information

The board, in line with its charter, is responsible for aligning the
strategic objectives, vision and mission with risk and performance.
The group’s formal risk management process considers the full range
of risks including strategic and operational risk, encompassing
performance and sustainability. A social and ethics committee is
responsible for sustainability issues.

Financial statements

The board should appreciate that strategy, risk,
performance and sustainability are inseparable.

Governance

2.2

Risk management

In line with its charter, the board acts as the focal point for and
custodian of corporate governance by conducting its relationship
with management, shareholders and other stakeholders along sound
corporate governance principles. No one director has unfettered
powers of decision making.

Performance

The board should act as the focal point for and
custodian of corporate governance.

Hyprop in brief

2.1

2014 in perspective

Principle
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King III application continued

Principle

Board requirement

Comment

Chapter 2: Boards and directors continued
2.10

The board should ensure there is an effective risk- The outsourced internal audit service provider offers an independent,
based internal audit.
risk-based internal audit function. The internal auditor reports directly
to the audit committee and is invited to attend all audit committee
meetings.

2.11

The board should appreciate that stakeholders’
perceptions affect the company’s reputation.

The board recognises that engaging with appropriate individuals or
groups enhances our operations and enables us to manage risk and
reputation. Investor relations and stakeholder engagement are key
focus areas for the board.

2.12

The board should ensure the integrity of the
company’s integrated report.

The audit committee oversees integrated reporting and is responsible
for recommending the board to approve this report.

2.13

The board should report on the effectiveness of
the company’s system of internal controls.

The audit committee oversees internal audit, including the
appointment of this function, monitoring its performance and
approving the internal audit plan. It ensures the internal audit function
is subject to an independent quality review, as the committee deems
appropriate. Internal audit is outsourced and independent. It assists
management in assessing whether systems of internal control are
adequate and effective. Internal audit prepares a plan aligned to
Hyprop’s key risks.

2.14

The board and its directors should act in the best
interests of the company.

The board acknowledges its role as trustee on behalf of shareholders.
In terms of its charter, it acts in the best interests of the group by
ensuring individual directors adhere to legal standards of conduct; are
permitted to take independent advice in connection with their duties
following an agreed procedure; disclose real or perceived conﬂicts to
the board and deal with them accordingly; and deal in securities only
in line with the policy adopted by the board.

2.15

The board should consider business rescue
proceeding or other turnaround mechanisms as
soon as the company is ﬁnancially distressed as
deﬁned in the Act.

The board is responsible for initiating business rescue proceedings if
warranted. The audit committee reviews the going-concern principle,
as well as the solvency and liquidity principle, as set out in the
Companies Act.

2.16

The board should elect a chairman who is an
independent non-executive director. The chief
executive officer (CEO) should not also fulﬁl the
role of chairman of the board.

The chairman of Hyprop is an independent non-executive director.
His role is to provide strategic guidance as well as encourage and
allow adequate debate at board level. The company’s MoI provides
for one-third of directors to retire by rotation after a three-year term
of office. Directors standing for re-election by rotation at the
upcoming AGM include the chairman.

2.17

The board should appoint the CEO and establish
a framework for delegation of authority.

The board appointed Pieter Prinsloo as CEO and has approved a
framework for delegation of authority. The CEO is responsible for
strategy execution and the oversight of day-to-day operations.

2.18

The board should comprise a balance of power,
with a majority of non-executive directors. The
majority of non-executive directors should be
independent.

The majority (nine) of directors are non-executive, with six
categorised as independent.

2.19

Directors should be appointed through a formal
process.

There is a formal and transparent process for appointing directors.
The remuneration and nomination committee assists with the process
of identifying suitable candidates to be proposed to shareholders.
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Board requirement

Comment

Chapter 2: Boards and directors continued
The induction, and ongoing training and
development, of directors should be conducted
through formal processes.

There is a formal induction programme for new directors.
Inexperienced directors are developed through mentorship
programmes. Continuing professional development programmes are
implemented to ensure directors receive regular brieﬁngs on changes
in risks, laws and the environment.

2.21

The board should be assisted by a competent,
suitably qualiﬁed and experienced company
secretary.

CIS Company Secretaries Proprietary Limited, an independent
company secretarial practice, was appointed in compliance with the
Companies Act, JSE Listings Requirements and recommendations of
King III. The board deems its representative, Neville Toerien, to be
suitably qualiﬁed. The company secretary operates on an arm’s-length

Hyprop in brief

2.20

2014 in perspective

Principle

bases from the board and is not a member of the board.
The board was evaluated in July 2014. A subcommittee assessment
process will be implemented in the next ﬁnancial year.

2.23

The board should delegate certain functions to
well-structured committees but without abdicating
its responsibilities.

Without abdicating its own responsibilities, the board delegates
certain functions to speciﬁc committees:
Q Audit committee
Q Risk committee
Q Investment committee
Q Remuneration and nomination committee
Q Social and ethics committee

Risk management

The evaluation of the board, its committees and
individual directors should be performed every
year.

Performance

2.22

Each committee has a formal charter approved by the board and
reviewed regularly.
All policies and procedures are followed by subsidiary boards.

2.25

Companies should remunerate directors and
executives fairly and responsibly.

The board is responsible for ensuring Hyprop has an appropriate
remuneration strategy. The remuneration and nomination committee
has an independent role, making recommendations to the board for
its consideration and ﬁnal approval to ensure the group remunerates
directors (including fees for non-executive directors) and executives
fairly and responsibly; and that disclosure of directors’ remuneration is
accurate, complete and transparent. Remuneration is set out in the
remuneration report. Fees for board and committee members are
approved annually at the annual general meeting.

Companies should disclose the remuneration of
each individual director and prescribed officers.

The remuneration of directors and prescribed officers is disclosed on
pages 71 and 118 of the integrated report.

2.27

Shareholders should approve the company’s
remuneration policy.

Details of the remuneration policy are on page 70. The remuneration
policy is submitted to shareholders to consider and endorse by way
of a non-binding advisory vote at the annual general meeting.
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2.26

Financial statements

A governance framework should be agreed
between the group and its subsidiary boards.

Governance

2.24

70

Remuneration report
Philosophy
As an internally managed Real Estate Investment Trust, the skills
of our people are essential to our sustainability. Accordingly, our
remuneration philosophy supports our strategic objectives and
encourages individual performance. It emphasises the role of
our employees in building long-term value through fair and
balanced remuneration.
The policy is based on several key principles:
Q A critical success factor for Hyprop is to attract talented,
experienced and motivated individuals who can execute our
business strategy, vision and mission. Both short and longterm incentives are used to achieve this goal.
Q Delivery-speciﬁc short-term incentives (STIs) are considered
strong drivers of performance. A signiﬁcant portion of senior
management reward is variable, based on achieving realistic
performance targets, together with individual contributions
to the growth and development of the business, their division
and the wider company. The company rewards employees
who deliver superior performance in line with its strategic
goals. In exceptional circumstances, special bonuses may be
considered as additional awards.
Q Long-term incentives (LTIs) are aligned to the strategic
objectives of the company and the investment interests
of shareholders

Policy
The remuneration and nomination committee is responsible for
implementing the remuneration policy to ensure:
Q Salary structures and policies motivate superior performance,
and are linked to realistic performance objectives that support
sustainable long-term growth
Q Stakeholders are able to make an informed assessment of
reward practices and governance processes
Q Compliance with all applicable laws and regulatory codes

Non-executive directors
Remuneration for non-executive directors comprises a base fee,
predetermined annually and approved by shareholders at the
annual general meeting.
Our policy is to reward competitively for the role while
understanding the required time commitment. Fees are
benchmarked against a peer group of JSE-listed companies. There
are no contractual arrangements to compensate for loss of office.
The remuneration and nomination committee reviews these fees
annually and makes its recommendations to the board which, in
turn, proposes fees for approval by shareholders at the annual
general meeting.
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Non-executive directors do not receive STIs nor do they
participate in any LTIs schemes except if they previously held
executive office and are entitled to unvested beneﬁts from this
period. The company pays no pension contributions for nonexecutive directors.
Full details of non-executive directors’ fees are on page 71.

Executive directors and senior executives’
remuneration
Executive directors are permanently employed by the company
under agreements that include a notice period but no restraints
of trade. Hyprop aims to be an employer of choice: to attract
and retain individuals of high calibre, we offer competitive
remuneration packages and review these annually.
Our remuneration structure includes:
Q Base salary
At all levels, basic salaries are market-related, benchmarked
against industry norms and adjusted for an employee’s
experience, qualiﬁcations, responsibilities and nature of work.
These salaries are reviewed annually.
Q STIs
An annual performance bonus aligns short-term rewards with
annual performance and supports retention. Performance
reviews are weighted signiﬁcantly to output. Key performance
deliverables (KPDs), agreed by the executive committee, are
set annually at property and company levels and formally
measured. These include:
– Net income growth
– Performance against budget
– Increase in trading densities
– New/renewed leasing rental values achieved relative to
budget
– New/renewed leasing escalations achieved
– Tenant arrear collections and management
– Tenant deposit and bank guarantee management
– Documentation administration
Exceptional performance is rewarded with higher incentives.
Recommendations from general managers, regional executives
and executive directors are considered. The maximum bonus
for senior management is six months’ salary, at the committee’s
discretion. Bonuses for executive directors are aligned with
strategic objectives and are at the committee’s discretion.
Q LTIs
These reward long-term decisions intended to drive dividend
and capital growth. They are also designed to align employee
behaviour with shareholders’ interests.
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Weighting

Threshold

On target

Stretch

40%

95%

102,5%

110%

40%

95%

105%

120%

20%

*The peer group comprises the five largest South African REITs by market capitalisation listed on the JSE.
P Prinsloo

L Cohen

Nil
28 790
28 790

Nil
15 864
15 864

Balance 1 July 2013
Allocated during the year
Balance at 30 June 2014

Terms of service
Minimum terms and conditions applicable to the employment of
executive directors are governed by South African legislation.
Should an executive director’s services be terminated, the
committee oversees the settlement of terms, assisted by labour
law advisers.

Participants do not pay for the units. They are also not eligible for
dividends until the end of the initial vesting period.

Fees

Base
salary

Performance
bonus

Pension
contribution

Other
benefits

Total
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2013. The phantom share scheme has been terminated, except for four employees who have outstanding awards under this scheme, with the last expiring in March 2016

Financial statements

Non-executive directors
2 334 250
Gavin Tipper
439 000
439 000
Mike Lewin
223 000
223 000
Stewart Shaw-Taylor
268 000
268 000
Ethan Dube
223 000
223 000
Lindie Engelbrecht
399 500
399 500
Thabo Mokgatlha
222 750
222 750
Kevin Ellerine
188 000
188 000
Louis Norval
188 000
188 000
Louis van der Watt
183 000
183 000
Executive directors
10 395 690
PG Prinsloo
3 138 630 2 200 000
127 370 1 201 020*
6 667 020
LR Cohen
1 797 826 1 600 000
269 674
61 170*
3 728 670
*Other relates to settlements under the cash-settled unit appreciation right scheme (the phantom share scheme), which was replaced by the conditional unit plan in December

Governance

Remuneration of non-executive and executive directors

Risk management

The ﬁrst awards were offered to executives, senior managers,
operational and ﬁnancial managers and to staff with speciﬁc core,
critical and/or strategic skills in December 2013. Some 13%
(27 employees) of the total staff complement will participate in
the scheme, which is limited to 2% of the current shares in issue
with an initial vesting period of three years from January 2014.

Performance

Detail
Calculated as the simple growth in distribution per
share at the end of the performance period compared
to the prior ﬁnancial year.
Measured as growth in the share price from the start
to the end of the performance period.
This will be determined by the remuneration committee
in line with circumstances and projects at the time of
the award. It is measured over the performance period
of three years, and may include project-related or
general business activity. Where considered appropriate,
the committee has the discretion not to apply the
strategic component, in which case this 20% weighting
will be split equally between the other two performance
conditions. Achieving each of the performance
conditions and consequent vesting of performance units
occurs severally.

Hyprop in brief

Performance condition
Growth in distribution/
dividend per share
relative to peer group*
Share price performance
relative to peer group*
Strategic component

2014 in perspective

The employee incentive scheme, approved in 2013 has dual aims to retain key skills and reward performance. Performance conditions are
shown below:
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Approval of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on the goingconcern basis as the directors have every reason to believe the
company has adequate resources in place to continue
operations for the foreseeable future.

Pieter Prinsloo
Chief executive officer

Preparation of the ﬁnancial statements was supervised by Laurence
Cohen (CA)SA in his capacity as ﬁnancial director.
The ﬁnancial statements were approved by the board and signed
on its behalf by:

Hyprop in brief

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing
and reporting on the ﬁnancial statements in conformity with
International Standards on Auditing. Their report is set out on
page 74.

2014 in perspective

The ﬁnancial statements in the integrated report are the
responsibility of the directors. They are responsible for selecting
and adopting sound accounting practices, for maintaining an
adequate and effective system of accounting records, for
safeguarding assets and for developing and maintaining a
system of internal control that, among others, will ensure
the preparation of the ﬁnancial statements achieves fair
presentation. The ﬁnancial statements set out in this report
have been prepared by the directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. They are based on
appropriate accounting policies that have been consistently
applied and are supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.

Laurence Cohen
Financial director

Performance

Johannesburg
29 August 2014

Risk management
Governance

Declaration by company secretary
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Financial statements

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the company has
lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission
all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of
the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, and
that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Unitholder information

CIS Company Secretaries (Proprietary) Limited
Company secretary

Johannesburg
29 August 2014
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Hyprop Investments Limited
We have audited the consolidated and separate ﬁnancial
statements of Hyprop Investments Limited set out on pages 76
to 139, which comprise the statements of ﬁnancial position as at
30 June 2014, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash ﬂows for
the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of
signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the ﬁnancial statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these consolidated and separate ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South
Africa and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate
ﬁnancial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
and separate ﬁnancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated and separate ﬁnancial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the ﬁnancial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate ﬁnancial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and
separate ﬁnancial position of Hyprop Investments Limited as at
30 June 2014, and its consolidated and separate ﬁnancial
performance and consolidated and separate cash ﬂows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies Act
of South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate ﬁnancial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, we have read the
directors’ report, the audit committee’s report and the company
secretary’s certiﬁcate for the purpose of identifying whether
there are material inconsistencies between these reports and the
audited consolidated and separate ﬁnancial statements. These
reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based
on reading these reports, we have not identiﬁed material
inconsistencies between these reports and the audited
consolidated and separate ﬁnancial statements. However, we
have not audited these reports and accordingly do not express
an opinion on these reports.

Grant Thornton
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors
VR de Villiers
Partner
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
29 August 2014
42 Wierda Road West
Wierda Valley
2196
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Report of the audit committee
for the year ended 30 June 2014

The committee is governed by a formal charter that codiﬁes its
role and responsibilities, including the responsibility for reviewing
accounting, auditing and ﬁnancial reporting matters. The
committee reviews adherence to Hyprop’s systems of internal
controls and, where necessary, monitors improvements.

The committee comprises only independent non-executive
directors, in compliance with King III requirements and the South
African Companies Act. The external and internal auditors and
executive management are invited to attend every meeting.

Q
Q

All concerns and complaints received from within or outside the
group relating to accounting practices and internal ﬁnancial
controls, and the content or auditing of the company’s ﬁnancial
statements were considered by the audit committee and dealt
with as appropriate.

Lindie Engelbrecht
Audit committee chairman
29 August 2014

Risk management

During the period, the audit committee:
Q Monitored any proposed changes to accounting policies
Q Advised the board on any accounting implications of major
transactions
Q Reviewed the internal audit function
Q Recommended the appointment of external auditors for
approval by unitholders
Q Established guidelines for recommending the use of external
auditors for non-audit services to maintain independence
Q Monitored compliance with REIT requirements, in accordance
with JSE Listings Requirements

Q

Performance

Functions

Q

Thornton, after considering the report to the audit committee
motivating its independence and has recommended its
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
With the terms, nature, scope and proposed fee of the
external auditor for the year ended 30 June 2014
With the ﬁnancial statements and accounting practices used in
their preparation and will recommend the integrated report,
including the ﬁnancial statements, to the board for approval
With the company’s continuing viability as a going concern,
which it has reported on to the board for the board’s deliberation
That the company’s ﬁnancial director, Laurence Cohen, had
the necessary expertise and experience to carry out his duties,
as required by the JSE Listings Requirement 3.84(h)

Hyprop in brief

Members

The audit committee is satisﬁed:
Q With the independence of the external auditor, Grant

2014 in perspective

The audit committee has pleasure in submitting its report, as
required by section 94(7)(f) of the Companies Act, for the period
under review.

Governance
Financial statements
Unitholder information
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Directors’ report
for the year ended 30 June 2014

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report, which
forms part of the ﬁnancial statements for the year ended 30 June
2014.

Introduction
Hyprop is one of Africa’s leading listed property companies,
specialising in high-quality shopping centres. It is also one of
South Africa’s oldest listed property companies (1988) and
operates as an internally managed Real Estate Investment Trust
(REIT), based in Rosebank, Johannesburg.
Hyprop is listed on the JSE’s retail REIT sector and directly owns
12 prime shopping centres in major metropolitan areas across
South Africa.
The group’s growing presence in sub-Saharan Africa (excluding
South Africa) is held through Atterbury Africa, a joint venture
between Hyprop, Attacq and the Atterbury Group.

Strategy
Hyprop’s strategy is to invest in high-quality shopping centres in
sub-Saharan Africa.
The core portfolio consists of premier shopping centres in South
Africa, including super-regional Canal Walk; large regional centres,
Clearwater Mall, The Glen Shopping Centre, Woodlands
Boulevard, CapeGate Shopping Centre, Somerset Mall and
Rosebank Mall; and regional centre, Hyde Park Corner.

Held for sale
In line with its strategy, Hyprop is disposing of its stand-alone
office portfolio, as well as non-core retail assets, Stoneridge
Centre, Willowbridge and CapeGate Lifestyle. As a result, these
assets have been classiﬁed as held for sale.

Capital structure
At 30 June 2014, combined units comprised one ordinary share
and one debenture and were traded on the JSE only. Full
particulars of the authorised and issued share capital at
30 June 2014 are set out in note 14 to the ﬁnancial statements on
page 112, and full particulars on debentures are set out in note 17
on page 114.
Post-year-end and as part of the REIT conversion process,
Hyprop’s combined unit structure was converted to an all-share
structure. The necessary resolutions were passed by unitholders
and the new all-share structure became effective on 18 August
2014. Future distributions will be classiﬁed as dividends. Hyprop
became a REIT on 1 July 2013.
All rental income earned by the group, less property expenses
and interest on debt, is distributed to shareholders semi-annually.

Review of activities
The results of the group and the company are commented on in
the chairman, chief executive officer and ﬁnancial director’s
reports on pages 6 to 17 and set out in the ﬁnancial statements
on pages 76 to 139.

Directors’ interests
The interests of directors in the combined units of the company at 30 June 2014 were:
30 June 2014
beneficial
Direct
Indirect
Non-executive
Gavin Tipper
Louis Norval
Stewart Shaw-Taylor
Executive
Pieter Prinsloo
Laurence Cohen

30 June 2013
beneﬁcial
Direct
Indirect

30 June 2013
nonbeneﬁcial
Indirect

7 611 619

488 930

4 000
3 981 768
21 500

8 479
305 049
160 154

25 500
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30 June 2014
nonbeneficial
Indirect

465 203

305 049
147 154
3 981 768

8 479

8 063 822

488 930
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Grant Thornton will continue in office in accordance with
part C of section 90 of the Companies Act of South Africa.

An abridged curriculum vitae for each director is set out on
page 59.

Going concern

Change to company secretary

Beneﬁcial unitholders holding 5% or more

The directors consider that the group and company have
adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable
future and that it is appropriate to adopt the going-concern basis
in preparing the group and company ﬁnancial statements.
The directors have satisﬁed themselves that the group and
company are in a sound ﬁnancial position and that they have
access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet their foreseeable
cash requirements.

Special resolutions

30 June 2014

%

34 081 722
16 035 933
14 599 829
13 303 842
12 773 159
12 538 754

14,0
6,6
6,0
5,5
5,3
5,2

Disclosure of the company’s investments in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements and associates is included in notes 5, 6, 7 and 8,
respectively to the ﬁnancial statements.

Administration and management

Johannesburg
29 August 2014

Audit committee report

Unitholder information

The audit committee has fulﬁlled its responsibilities during the
year (refer to its report on page 75 for details). The committee has
further satisﬁed itself as to the independence of the external
auditors and their suitability for reappointment for the
ensuing year.

Financial statements

Property management and asset management are fully
internalised. No property management or asset management
fees were paid during the year.

In terms of subsidiaries, a newly incorporated subsidiary (Woolsure
Investments) passed a special resolution changing its name to
Hyprop Investments Employee Incentive Scheme with effect
from 20 February 2014.

Governance

Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates

The following special resolutions were passed by unitholders
during the year (at the annual general meeting on 5 December
2013) and, where necessary, have been registered by the
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC):
Q Special resolution providing authority for the provision of
ﬁnancial assistance to group interrelated entities (in terms of
section 45 of the Companies Act)
Q Special resolution providing approval for fees payable to nonexecutive directors for the year ended 30 June 2014
Q Special resolution providing authority to repurchase combined
units
Q Special resolution providing approval for a new memorandum
of incorporation.

Risk management

Company
Government Employees
Pension Fund
Stanlib
Coronation Fund Managers
Investment Solutions
Old Mutual
Investec

No material contracts in which the directors have an interest
were entered into during the year, other than the transactions
detailed in note 34 to the ﬁnancial statements.

Performance

Following the acquisition of the business of Probity Business
Services (Proprietary) Limited by Computershare Investor Services
(Proprietary) Limited (Computershare), CIS Company Secretaries
(Proprietary) Limited, a subsidiary of Computershare, was
appointed as company secretary of Hyprop, with effect from
2 June 2014.

Directors’ interest in contracts

Hyprop in brief

Auditors

During the year, the only change to the directorate was the
appointment of Thabo Mokgatlha as an independent nonexecutive director and member of the audit committee, effective
28 August 2013. Directors resigning by rotation at the upcoming
annual general meeting are LR Cohen, KM Ellerine, S Shaw-Taylor
and GR Tipper, and being eligible, they offer themselves for
re-election.

2014 in perspective

Directorate
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Statements of financial position
at 30 June 2014

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property
Development property
Straight-line rental income accrual
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in associate
Goodwill
Loan receivable
Derivative instruments
Current assets
Loan receivable
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets classiﬁed as held for sale
Investment property
Investment in subsidiary
Listed property securities
Investment in associate

2
2
2
3
5
8
9
10
19
10
11
12
13

Total equity and liabilities
Net asset value per combined unit (R)
Net tangible asset value per combined unit (R)
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GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

24 931 191
21 795 442
1 849 000
353 740
82 692

20 282 124
18 287 042
1 187 000
308 686
63 065

22 484 674
20 176 936
1 849 000
353 740
56 672
15 348

19 945 129
18 287 042
1 187 000
308 686
62 899
12 059

600
4 280
812 459
32 978
228 525
47 486
103 686
77 353
1 705 236
1 705 236

108
12 059
384 307
39 857
298 996
224 175
74 821
2 400 822

32 978
211 560
47 674
102 629
61 257
2 463 500
1 705 236
758 264

2 279 253
121 569

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity capital and reserves
Share capital
Accumulated loss
Non-distributable reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Equity and reserves attributable to Hyprop unitholders
Non-controlling interest (African Land)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Debentures and debenture premium
Interest-bearing liabilities
Derivative instruments
Deferred taxation
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing liabilities
Taxation
Combined unitholders for distribution
Total liabilities

GROUP
June 2014
R000

14
16
15

17
18
19
20
21
18

47 586
39 857
407 518
117 600
219 293
70 625
2 279 253

2 279 253

26 864 952

22 981 942

25 159 734

22 631 900

12 905 543
1 661
(7 619)
12 770 190
8 074
12 772 306
133 237

10 814 409
1 661
(5 373)
10 817 808
313
10 814 409

12 616 474
1 661
(7 035)
12 621 848

10 810 740
1 661
(5 195)
10 814 274

12 616 474

10 810 740

10 992 517
5 719 119
5 185 822
41 829
45 747
2 966 892
367 686
2 013 031
298
585 877
13 959 409

10 341 977
5 822 497
4 436 486
52 984
30 010
1 825 556
353 802
948 000
5 923
517 831
12 167 533

9 608 726
5 730 187
3 792 566
39 811
46 162
2 934 534
335 626
2 013 031

10 009 660
5 822 497
4 103 914
52 984
30 265
1 811 500
345 669
948 000

585 877
12 543 260

517 831
11 821 160

26 864 952

22 981 942

25 159 734

22 631 900

76,02
76,00

68,43
68,38

75,42
75,42

68,42
68,42
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Statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2 421 819
2 339 499
45 055
37 265
(809 799)
1 612 020
(56 404)
1 555 616
(401 484)
19 678
(421 162)

1 093 916
1 003 098
15 879
74 939
(342 898)
751 018
(27 652)
723 366
(195 589)
9 674
(205 263)

532 760
1 403 721
1 198 105
(15 879)
(2 842)
224 337
28 061
90

1 154 132
1 492 693
1 613 720
(45 055)
(82 266)
6 294
194 729
4 460
168 869
21 400

527 777
1 403 721
1 198 105
(15 879)
(2 842)
224 337
28 061
90

13
13

1 199 756
1 532 852
1 655 897
(45 055)
(82 266)
4 276
190 760
4 460
168 869
17 431

17

102 806

9
5
33

(7 779)

22
23
24
2
13/4
19

27

27 971
49 119

(7 779)
102 895
3 121 290
(1 147 443)
1 973 847
462

1 009
2 014 670
(517 831)
1 496 839
4 262

1 974 309
(17 719)
(1 982)
(15 737)

1 501 101
2 239 008
(1 927)
2 240 935

36 943
1 820 044
(15 959)
(62)
(15 897)

2 134
1 493 990
2 240 894

1 956 590

3 740 109

1 804 085

3 734 884

2 930 899
(1 147 798)
1 783 101

1 009
2 009 687
(517 831)
1 491 856

2 240 894

319

1 965 484

3 740 428

1 804 085

3 734 884

Total proﬁt for the year/period attributable to:
Unitholders of the company
Non-controlling interest

1 948 487
8 103

3 740 109

1 804 085

3 734 884

Proﬁt for the year/period
Total comprehensive income for the year/period attributable to:
Unitholders of the company
Non-controlling interest

1 956 590

3 740 109

1 804 085

3 734 884

1 956 248
9 236

3 740 428

1 804 085

3 734 884

Total comprehensive income for the year/period

1 965 484

3 740 428

1 804 085

3 734 884

1 273,0
504,0
472,0

1 751,4
395,5
213,0

Basic and diluted earnings per combined unit (cents)
Basic and diluted headline earnings per combined unit (cents)
Distribution per combined unit (cents)

28
28
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Unitholder information

8 894

Total comprehensive income for the year/period

Financial statements

15

102 806
(5 682)

Governance

8
5

27 971
49 119

Risk management

Proﬁt for the year/period
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassiﬁed subsequently to proﬁt or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

1 099 489
1 008 671
15 879
74 939
(347 277)
752 212
(27 729)
724 483
(191 723)
17 234
(208 957)

Performance

Net operating income
Change in fair value
Investment property
Straight-line rental income accrual
Listed property securities (on disposal)
Derivative instruments
Proﬁt on disposal
Investment property
Listed property securities
Associate
Sycom rights offer nil paid letters
Amortisation of debenture premium
Impairment of intercompany loan
Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of investment in subsidiary
Gain on bargain purchase (African Land)
Non-core income
Income before debenture interest and taxation
Debenture interest
Net income before share of income from associate
Share of income from associate
Dividends received
Net income before taxation
Taxation
Current taxation
Deferred taxation

2 514 779
2 432 459
45 055
37 265
(837 822)
1 676 957
(82 480)
1 594 477
(394 721)
65 645
(460 366)

Hyprop in brief

Revenue
Investment property income
Straight-line rental income accrual
Listed property securities income
Property expenses
Net property income
Other operating expenses
Operating income
Net interest
Received
Paid

COMPANY
COMPANY
Year to Six months to
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000

2014 in perspective

Note

GROUP
GROUP
Year to Six months to
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000
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Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group

Balance at
31 December 2012
Proﬁt for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of taxation
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve

Share
capital
R000

Nondistributable
reserve
(NDR)
R000

1 661

6 549 024

(6)

523 302
3 740 109

1 661

Balance at 30 June 2014
Note

1 661
14

12 768 541
16

Share
capital
R000

Nondistributable
reserve
(NDR)
R000

Balance at 31 December 2012
Proﬁt for the period
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve

1 661

7 104 571

Balance at 30 June 2013
Proﬁt for the year
Share-based payment
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve

1 661

10 814 274

Balance at 30 June 2014
Note

1 661 12 620 199
14
16

(4 268 784)

10 817 808

313

(5 373)
1 948 487

(1 133) (1 950 733)

10 814 409
1 956 590
128 540
8 894
1 649
(4 539)
(4 539)
1 133

8 074
15

133 237 12 905 543
5

8 894
1 649
1 950 733

Company

Total
R000
7 073 981
3 740 109
319

319
4 268 784

Balance at 30 June 2013
Proﬁt for the year
Non-controlling interest arising on business combination
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation
Share-based payment
Dividends declared
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve
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Foreign Retained
Sharebased currency income/
Nonpayment translation (accumulated controlling
reserve
reserve
loss) interest
(FCTR)
(SBPR)
R000
R000
R000
R000

1 649
16

(7 619)

8 103
128 540

Foreign Retained
Sharebased currency income/
Nonpayment translation (accumulated controlling
reserve
reserve
loss) interest
(FCTR)
(SBPR)
R000
R000
R000
R000

3 709 703

(30 376)
3 734 884
(3 709 703)

7 075 856
3 734 884

(5 195)
1 804 085

10 810 740
1 804 085
1 649

1 649
1 805 925

Total
R000

(1 805 925)
1 649
16

(7 035)

12 616 474

81

Statements of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2014

29.2
22

29.3
29.4

3

(3 321)
(1 079 397)
(7 607)
(1 392 333)
(381 042)
8 789
(13 541)
139 000
65 856
(735 757)

(49 773)
660 705
17 234
(215 147)
388

180 848
1 684 275
19 678
(443 291)

(53 043)
661 705
9 674
(211 453)

(512 969)
16
(241 730)
(175 010)
131 074

(1 079 752)
(62)
(925 409)
(380 894)
8 789
(20 051)
139 000
65 856
(747 769)
(11 068)

(512 969)

27 971

27 971

(225 800)

(88)
1 179 506
1 190 574

35
198 450
198 450

26 498
(5 770)
738 148
738 148

700
35
(23 245)
(23 245)

(93 053)
167 874

(6 413)
70 625

(91 449)
162 074

(11 068)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Translation effects on cash and cash equivalents of
foreign entities
Cash and cash equivalents transferred to non-current assets
held for sale

5 342
74 821

13

(2 955)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period

12

77 353

Risk management

(475 550)
29.5

17

(15 161)
(174 941)
131 074

Performance

33.6

218 169
1 725 345
65 645
(482 496)

Hyprop in brief

Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income from associate
Dividends paid
Distribution to Hyprop combined unitholders
Taxation paid
Cash applied to investing activities
Acquisition of and additions to investment property
Proceeds on disposal of investment property
Additions to building appurtenances and tenant installations
Proceeds on sale of assets held for sale
Proceeds on disposal of listed property securities
Acquisition of subsidiary
Equity loan advanced to subsidiary
Loan to Atterbury Africa
Dividends received
Intergroup loans
Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities
Increase/(decrease) in long-term and short-term loans
Purchase of Hyprop units (long-term staff incentive
scheme (CUP))

COMPANY
COMPANY
Year to Six months to
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000

2014 in perspective

Note

GROUP
GROUP
Year to Six months to
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000

145

61 257

70 625

Governance

(2 955)
74 821

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

1.

Accounting policies and presentation of annual ﬁnancial statements
1.1

Statement of compliance
The annual ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the SAICA
Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued
by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and the requirements of the Companies Act of
South Africa, 2008.

1.2

Basis of preparation
The annual ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of investment
properties, investment property classiﬁed as held for sale and certain ﬁnancial instruments which were measured at fair value
and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.
Fair value adjustments do not affect the determination of distributable earnings, but have an effect on the net asset value per
combined unit to the extent that such adjustments are made to the carrying values of assets and liabilities.
The accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the previous year.
Various new accounting standards, or revisions to current accounting standards, have been issued with effective dates applicable
to future annual ﬁnancial statements. Refer to note 1.24 for further information.

1.3

Basis of consolidation
The group annual ﬁnancial statements comprise the consolidated annual ﬁnancial statements which incorporate the annual
ﬁnancial statements of the company and entities controlled by the company.
Control is achieved when the company:
Q Has power over the investee
Q Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
Q Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
The consolidated annual ﬁnancial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash ﬂows of the group
and all entities controlled by the group. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as applicable.
All intragroup transactions, unrealised proﬁts and balances between group enterprises are eliminated on consolidation.
1.4

Business combinations
The group applies the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the group
to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.
The group recognises identiﬁable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they
have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s annual ﬁnancial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition date fair values.
Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identiﬁable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the sum of (a) fair
value of consideration transferred, (b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and (c) acquisition
date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition date fair values of identiﬁable net assets.
If the fair values of identiﬁable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, the excess amount (ie gain on bargain purchase) is
recognised in proﬁt or loss immediately.
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1.5

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
proﬁt or loss on disposal.

2014 in perspective

Goodwill
Goodwill is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group’s cash-generating units that is expected to
beneﬁt from the synergies of the combination.

1.6

Hyprop in brief

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated ﬁrst to the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Investments in subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the group has control.

Risk management

The company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the company’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:
Q The size of the company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders
Q Potential voting rights held by the company, other vote holders or other parties
Q Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
Q Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Performance

When the company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

In the separate annual ﬁnancial statements of the company, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost and adjusted
for impairment if applicable.
Interests in joint operations
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement which exists when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the IFRS applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
In the separate annual ﬁnancial statements of the company, interests in joint operations are accounted for in the same manner.
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When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its
interest in a joint operation:
Q Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly
Q Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly
Q Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
Q Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation
Q Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Financial statements

When a group entity transacts with its joint operation, proﬁts and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint operation
are recognised in the group’s consolidated annual ﬁnancial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint operation
entity that are not related to the group.

Governance

1.7
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2014

1.8

Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an enterprise over which the company can exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence, through participation in the ﬁnancial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but where the company does not have control nor joint control over those
policies.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The results, assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in the annual ﬁnancial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classiﬁed as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and thereafter it is adjusted to recognise the investor’s
share of the post-acquisition proﬁts or losses of the investee after the date of acquisition, distributions received and any
adjustments that are required. The proﬁts or losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture.
When the reporting period of the investor is different from that of the associate or joint venture, the associate or joint venture
prepares, for the use of the investor, annual ﬁnancial statements as at the same date as the ﬁnancial statements of the investor.
Where a group entity transacts with an associate or joint venture of the group, proﬁts and losses are eliminated to the extent
of the group’s interest in the relevant associate or joint venture.
In the separate annual ﬁnancial statements of the company, investments in associates or joint ventures are accounted for at
cost and adjusted for impairment if applicable.

1.9

Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Building appurtenances and tenant installations are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
Depreciation is provided on all building appurtenances and tenant installations to write down the cost, less residual value, by
equal instalments over their useful lives as follows:
Q Tenant installations – period of lease
Q Building appurtenances – three to 10 years.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised when it is probable that future economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the group and its cost can
be reliably measured. All other expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Gains and losses on
the disposal of building appurtenances and tenant installations are recognised in proﬁt or loss and are calculated as the difference
between the sale price and the carrying value of the item sold.

1.10 Investment property and development property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under development
for such purposes).
Investment property is initially recognised at cost including transaction costs. Cost includes initial costs, as well as costs incurred
subsequently to extend or refurbish investment property.
Investment property is subsequently measured at fair value as determined on a semi-annual basis by an independent registered
valuer. The valuations are done on an open-market basis and valuers use the discounted cash ﬂow method. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are included in net proﬁt or loss for the period in which they arise. These gains or losses are
transferred to non-distributable reserves in the statement of changes in equity.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic beneﬁts are expected from the property. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is
included in proﬁt or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

Investment property under development is categorised as being under development until development work ceases and the
property becomes income producing, at which time the categorisation “under development” will cease and the property will
be included with other investment property.
1.11

Performance

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale
rather than through continuing use, are classiﬁed as held for sale. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the non-current asset or disposal group is available for sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such assets. For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be
committed to a plan to sell the asset or disposal group.

Hyprop in brief

Investment property under development is recorded at fair value. If the fair value cannot be reasonably determined it is stated
at cost.

2014 in perspective

Realised gains or losses arising on the disposal of investment properties are recognised in net proﬁt or loss for the year and
transferred to non-distributable reserves in the statement of changes in equity.

Investment property classiﬁed as held for sale is measured in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property at fair value with gains
and losses on subsequent measurement being recognised in proﬁt or loss.

1.12

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a ﬁnancial asset of one entity and a ﬁnancial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

The group derecognises a ﬁnancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
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Offset
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of ﬁnancial position, when the
group has an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset,
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial statements

Derecognition of financial instruments
The group derecognises a ﬁnancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ﬂows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash ﬂows on the ﬁnancial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the ﬁnancial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred ﬁnancial assets that is created or retained by the
entity is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Governance

Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial position when the group becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The group classiﬁes ﬁnancial instruments, or their component parts, on initial
recognition as a ﬁnancial asset, a ﬁnancial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement. Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. All transaction costs relating to ﬁnancial
instruments measured at fair value through proﬁt or loss are immediately expensed.

Risk management

Disposal groups and non-current assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets and liabilities on the statement
of ﬁnancial position. Prior periods are not reclassiﬁed.
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Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are measured as follows:

Financial assets
1.12.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are subject to insigniﬁcant risk of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost. Interest
earned on cash invested with ﬁnancial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
1.12.2

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are carried at amortised cost less any accumulated impairments. An estimate is made for
credit losses based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Doubtful debts are provided for in the year in
which they are identiﬁed, with such movement taken to proﬁt or loss for the period. Short-term receivables are
measured at original invoice amount when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

1.12.3

Loans receivable
Loans receivable are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest earned
is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

1.12.4

Listed property securities
Listed property securities are classiﬁed at fair value through proﬁt or loss and are subsequently measured at fair value
less the accrual for distributions receivable. This accrual is included in receivables. No deduction is made for transaction
costs which may be incurred on sale or disposal. Gains or losses are transferred to non-distributable reserves in the
statement of changes in equity.

Financial liabilities
1.12.5 Trade payables
Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost. Short-term payables are measured at the original invoice
amount when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
1.12.6

Other ﬁnancial liabilities
Non-derivative ﬁnancial liabilities comprising long-term interest-bearing loans, other than debentures, are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of
borrowings, is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

1.12.7

Debentures
Debentures are designated as ﬁnancial liabilities measured at amortised cost. The debenture premium is amortised over
the period over which the debentures will be repaid. The portion recorded in proﬁt and loss for the amortisation of
debentures is removed for distribution purposes.

Derivative instruments
The entity uses derivative ﬁnancial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk arising from its ﬁnancing activities.
Derivative instruments are adjusted to fair value at each reporting date and have been designated by the group as instruments
held for trading and accounted for at fair value through proﬁt or loss. Gains or losses are transferred to non-distributable
reserves in the statement of changes in equity.
The group holds interest rate swap instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the entity
would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.
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1.13

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.

Performance

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the group’s non-ﬁnancial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount and
is recognised in proﬁt or loss.

Hyprop in brief

Impairment
Financial assets
Financial assets other than those at fair value through proﬁt or loss are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any evidence of impairment. A ﬁnancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash ﬂow of that asset. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in proﬁt or loss.

2014 in perspective

Combined units
Each ordinary share issued is irrevocably linked to a debenture. The debentures are redeemable at the option of the holders and
accrue interest half yearly. The debentures are classiﬁed as a liability, and the interest that accrues as debenture interest is
expensed through proﬁt or loss. The debentures issued are initially recognised at fair value. Debenture capital is subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The fair value of the equity portion, which is insigniﬁcant, is
allocated to share capital.

An impairment loss is reversed, with the exception of goodwill, if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount and there is an indication that the impairment loss no longer exists.

1.14

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classiﬁed as equity.

Risk management

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction from equity.
Treasury shares
Company shares held by the Hyprop Investments Employee Incentive Scheme (Proprietary) Limited (incorporated for the
beneﬁt of employees) that have not yet vested and shares held by subsidiaries are classiﬁed as treasury shares on consolidation
and presented as a deduction from equity. These shares are held at cost.

Statement of comprehensive income presentation
Both distributions and unrealised losses on own shares are eliminated from group proﬁt for the year.

When calculating the diluted earnings per share, the number of shares at year-end that have a dilutive effect is included in the
weighted average number of shares.
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Earnings per share
In calculating the basic earnings per share, the treasury shares are deducted from the weighted average number of shares in
issue.

Financial statements

Statement of financial position presentation
On purchase, the cost of the shares acquired is deducted from equity. Subsequently, any gain or loss on the sale or cancellation
of the company’s own equity instruments is recognised directly in equity.

Governance

1.15
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1.16

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the group at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognised in proﬁt or loss.
Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated
to the group’s presentation currency (rand) at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to rand at the dates of the transactions (an average rate is used).
Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR)
Foreign currency differences on translation of the ﬁnancial position and results of a foreign operation into the group’s
presentation currency are recognised in the FCTR. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount
in the FCTR is transferred to proﬁt and loss as part of the proﬁt or loss on disposal.

1.17

Employee beneﬁts
Short-term benefits
The cost of short-term employee beneﬁts is recognised during the period in which the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee beneﬁts are measured on an undiscounted basis. The accrual for employee entitlements to salaries,
bonuses and annual leave represents the amount which the group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay as a
result of employees’ services provided up to the reporting date.
Defined contribution plan
A deﬁned contribution plan is a post-employment beneﬁt plan under which the group pays contributions to a separate entity
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the beneﬁts relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as an employee beneﬁt expense over the period the related services are rendered.
Long-term benefits
Phantom share scheme
The group operates a scheme that was formulated to reward employees who make a meaningful and sustainable contribution
to the ﬁnancial performance of Hyprop.
A liability is recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial position. The liability is remeasured at each reporting period to reﬂect the
revised fair value, adjusted for changes in assumptions (refer to note 26).
Changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised in proﬁt or loss.

Equity-settled share-based employee remuneration
The group operates equity-settled share-based conditional unit plans for its employees.
All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at their fair values. Where
employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair value of employees’ services is determined indirectly by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
non-market vesting conditions.
All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in proﬁt or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity.
New shares are not issued. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of shares expected to vest.
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1.18

Turnover rentals are included in revenue when the amounts can be reliably measured.

2014 in perspective

Revenue
Property portfolio revenue
Property portfolio revenue comprises operating lease income and operating cost recoveries from the letting of investment
properties. Operating lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Listed property securities revenue
Distributions from listed property securities are recognised on an accrual basis over the effective holding period.

1.19

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing costs incurred on funds speciﬁcally borrowed
in respect of the qualifying asset. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost capitalised. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

1.20 Taxation
1.20.1 Current taxation
The charge for current taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-taxable or
disallowable and any adjustment for tax payable or receivable for previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.
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A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
proﬁt will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax beneﬁt
will be realised.

Financial statements

1.20.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for ﬁnancial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following
temporary differences:
Q The initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable proﬁt
Q Goodwill that arises on initial recognition in a business combination
Q Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Governance

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Risk management

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Performance

Qualifying assets are those that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use.

Hyprop in brief

Interest received
Interest earned on cash invested with ﬁnancial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
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The effect on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates is recognised in the proﬁt or loss for the period, except to the
extent that it relates to items previously charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.
1.20.3 Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in proﬁt or loss for the period.
Income tax is recognised in proﬁt or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income respectively. The
charge for current tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items which are disallowed and any tax
payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
1.21

Segment reporting
The group determines and presents operating segments based on information that is provided internally to the chief operating
decision maker (executive management committee (Exco) and to the board of directors).
Segment results that are reported to Exco include items directly attributable to a segment or a region, as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis.
On a primary basis the operations are organised into the following business segments: super-regional malls, large regional malls,
value/lifestyle centres, offices and listed property securities.

1.22 Earnings and headline earnings per combined unit
Earnings per combined unit are calculated on the weighted average number of units in issue for the year and are based on proﬁt
attributable to unitholders. Headline earnings per combined unit are calculated in terms of the requirements set out in Circular
2/2013 issued by SAICA.
1.23 Key estimations and uncertainties
Estimates and assumptions are an integral part of ﬁnancial reporting and as such have an impact on the amounts reported for
the group’s income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Judgement in these areas is based on historical experience and reasonable
expectations relating to future events.
Information on the key estimations and uncertainties that have the most signiﬁcant effect on amounts recognised are set
out below:
Investment property
The valuation of investment properties requires judgement in the determination of future cash ﬂows and appropriate discount
rates and capitalisation rates.
For more information, refer to note 2.
Building appurtenances
The determination of the useful life and residual values is subject to management estimates. Management reviews the
depreciation rates and residual values on an annual basis to take account of any changes in circumstances.
For more information, refer to note 3.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of ﬁnancial instruments measured at fair value that are quoted in active markets
are based on bid prices for assets. When quoted prices are not available, fair values are determined using valuation techniques
that refer as far as possible to observable market inputs, either directly or indirectly.

For more information, refer to notes 4, 10, 11, 19 and 21.
Interests in co-ownerships
Judgement is required to identify the relevant activities of the co-ownerships. Interests in co-ownerships are seen as interests
in joint operations. There is a sharing of control of the co-ownership and decisions regarding major capital expenditure projects
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Trade receivables
Management identiﬁes impairments of trade receivables on an ongoing basis. Impairment adjustments are raised against trade
receivables when collectability is considered doubtful.

Deferred taxation
Deferred tax assets are raised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁt will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised. Assessment of future taxable income is performed in the form of estimated future cash ﬂows
using a suitable growth rate.

Phantom share scheme liability
The liability is calculated based on the year-end market value of the Hyprop combined unit. The actual payment is based on a
30-day volume weighted average price to 30 March.
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Amortisation of debenture premium
The risk adjustment applied to the discount rate used in the amortisation of debenture premium requires a measure of
judgement.

Financial statements

For more information, refer to note 20.

Governance

For more information, refer to note 11.

Risk management

Impairment of assets
The group tests whether assets have suffered any impairment in accordance with the impairment accounting policy. Recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on estimated future cash ﬂows discounted to their present
values using the appropriate rates. Estimates are based on forecasts.

Performance

In terms of the co-ownership agreements for Canal Walk, The Glen and Stoneridge, material capital expenditure requires mutual
consent of the co-owners. In view of the signiﬁcant increases in development costs, most capital expenditure that is undertaken
is material and accordingly these centres are not considered to be solely controlled by Hyprop. The interests in these centres
are therefore treated as joint operations.

Hyprop in brief

The impact of discounting is not material for short-term loans and trade debtors and creditors.

2014 in perspective

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of a ﬁnancial instrument on initial recognition assumes that the asset or liability is exchanged in an orderly
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability between market participants, at the measurement date under current market
conditions.
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Business combinations
Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various elements of a business combination (see
note 1.4). Particularly, the fair value of contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many variables including the
acquiree’s future proﬁtability. Management assessed the acquisition of the interest in African Land Investments Limited and
classiﬁed the acquisition as a business combination (refer to note 33).
Business combination versus asset acquisition
Management assessed the property acquired (the acquisition of Somerset Mall) and has concluded in its view that the acquisition
is a property acquisition in terms of IAS 40 Investment Property and is therefore accounted for in terms of that standard. In the
opinion of management, the property acquired did not constitute a business as deﬁned in terms of IFRS 3 Business Combinations,
as there were not adequate processes identiﬁed within the property to warrant classiﬁcation as businesses.
1.24 New standards and interpretations
At the date of approval of these annual ﬁnancial statements, certain new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been early adopted by the group.
Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the group’s accounting policies for the ﬁrst period
beginning after the effective date of the relevant pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and
interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the group’s annual ﬁnancial statements or those for which the impact has
not yet been assessed, is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
expected to have a material impact on the group’s annual ﬁnancial statements.
IFRS 2 Share-based Payments
Amendments added the deﬁnitions of performance conditions and service conditions and amended the deﬁnitions of vesting
conditions and market conditions.
The effective date of these amendments is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the amendments to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of these amendments has not yet been estimated.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations
Amendments to the measurement requirements for all contingent consideration assets and liabilities including those accounted
for under IFRS 9 and amendments to the scope paragraph for the formation of a joint arrangement.
The effective date of these amendments is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the amendments to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of these amendments has not yet been estimated.
IFRS 8 Operating Segments
Amendments to certain disclosure requirements regarding the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria, as well as those to certain reconciliations.
The effective date of these amendments is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the amendments to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of these amendments has not yet been estimated.
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Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from hybrid contracts that have a ﬁnancial asset host.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The group expects to adopt the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2019 annual ﬁnancial statements and the standard will be
applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.

Risk management

IFRS 9 incorporates the guidance in IAS 39 dealing with fair value measurement and accounting for derivatives embedded in a
host contract that is not a ﬁnancial asset, as well as the requirements of IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives.

Performance

IFRS 9 has retained in general the requirements of IAS 39 for ﬁnancial liabilities, except for the following two aspects:
Q Fair value changes for ﬁnancial liabilities (other than ﬁnancial guarantees and loan commitments) designated at fair value
through proﬁt or loss, that are attributable to the changes in the credit risk of the liability, will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the fair value change is recognised in proﬁt or loss. However, if this
requirement creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in proﬁt or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in
proﬁt or loss. The determination as to whether such presentation would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch is made
on initial recognition and is not subsequently reassessed
Q Derivative liabilities that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, are measured at fair value

Hyprop in brief

Under IFRS 9 there are two options in respect of the classiﬁcation of ﬁnancial assets, namely ﬁnancial assets measured at
amortised cost or at fair value. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when the business model is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash ﬂows and when they give rise to cash ﬂows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. All other ﬁnancial assets are measured at fair value.

2014 in perspective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
This new standard is the ﬁrst phase of a three-phase project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. To date, the standard includes chapters for classiﬁcation, measurement and derecognition of ﬁnancial assets and
liabilities and hedge accounting, which have been issued. Chapters dealing with impairment methodology are still being
developed. Further, in November 2011, the IASB tentatively decided to consider making limited modiﬁcations to IFRS 9’s ﬁnancial
asset classiﬁcation model to address application issues.

The impact of this standard has not yet been estimated as the standard is not yet ﬁnalised.

Governance

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Investments
The amendment to IFRS 10 clariﬁes the exception to the principle that all subsidiaries must be consolidated. Entities meeting the
deﬁnition of “Investment entities” must be accounted for at fair value under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, or IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The impact of the amendment has not yet been estimated.

Financial statements

The group expects to adopt the amendment to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendment will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
The amendment to IFRS 12 requires new disclosures for investment entities (as deﬁned in IFRS 10).

The group expects to adopt the amendment to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendment will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of the amendment has not yet been estimated.
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The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify the measurement requirements for short-term receivables and payables and clarify that the
portfolio exception applies to all contracts within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9.
The effective date of these amendments is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the amendments to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of these amendments has not yet been estimated.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The amendments to IFRS 15 set out new guidance on recognition of revenue that requires recognition in a manner that depicts
the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that reﬂects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled
to in exchange for those goods or services.
The effective date of this standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
The group expects to adopt the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2018 annual ﬁnancial statements and the standard will be
applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of this standard has not yet been estimated.
IAS 19 Employee Beneﬁts
IAS 19 amendments to Deﬁned Beneﬁt Plans: Employee Contributions whereby the requirements in IAS 19 for contributions
from employees or third parties that are linked to service have been amended.
The effective date of these amendments is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the amendments to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The amendments will have no impact on the annual ﬁnancial statements.
IAS 24 Related-Party Disclosures
The amendment to IAS 24 clariﬁes the deﬁnition of a related party.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the amendment to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendment will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of the amendment has not yet been estimated.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

95

The effective date of these amendments is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

2014 in perspective

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The amendments to IAS 27 clarify the requirement to account for interests in “Investment entities” at fair value under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, or IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, in the separate ﬁnancial statements
of a parent.

The group expects to adopt the amendments to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
The amendment to IAS 36 clarify the required disclosures of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if
that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Hyprop in brief

The impact of these amendments has not yet been estimated.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Performance

The group expects to adopt the amendment to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendment will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.
The impact of the amendment has not yet been estimated.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Risk management

IAS 40 Investment Property
The amendment to IAS 40 clariﬁes the interrelationship between IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying property as investment
property or owner-occupied property.

The group expects to adopt the amendment to the standard for the ﬁrst time in the 2015 annual ﬁnancial statements and the
amendment will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.

Governance

The impact of the amendment has not yet been estimated.

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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2.

Investment property

2.1

2.2

2.3

Net carrying value
Historical cost
Accumulated fair value movements
Development property
Assets classiﬁed as held for sale
Movement for the year
Investment property at valuation at 1 July/1 January
Capital expenditure
Acquired through business combination
(African Land)
Foreign currency translation difference
(African Land)
Change in fair value
Disposals
Interest capitalised
Straight-line rental income accrual
Development property
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale

Note

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

11 188 875
8 285 167
(1 187 000)

13 903 126
9 853 810
(1 849 000)
(1 731 000)

11 188 875
8 285 167
(1 187 000)

13

15 479 455
9 895 987
(1 849 000)
(1 731 000)
21 795 442

18 287 042

20 176 936

18 287 042

18 287 042
2 681 042

17 135 433
160 193

18 287 042
2 680 894

17 135 433
160 193

1 198 105

1 613 720
(4 329)
37 664
(45 055)
(662 000)
(1 731 000)

1 198 105

33.2

1 557 394

23

18 787
1 655 897
(4 329)
37 664
(45 055)
(662 000)
(1 731 000)

13

6 190
(15 879)
(197 000)

6 190
(15 879)
(197 000)

Investment property at valuation

21 795 442

18 287 042

20 176 936

18 287 042

Reconciliation to independent valuation
Investment property at valuation at year-end
Straight-line rental income accrual
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Centre management assets

21 795 442
353 740
82 692
(1 470)

18 287 042
308 686
63 065
(3 297)

20 176 936
353 740
56 672
(1 470)

18 287 042
308 686
62 899
(3 131)

22 230 404

18 655 496

20 585 878

18 655 496

7,2%

7,6%

7,2%

7,6%

Independent valuation(1)
Capitalisation rate used to determine interest
capitalised
(1)

Excludes development property and property held for sale

Included in investment property held for sale is property under leasehold in respect of Willowbridge North. The lessor is
Transnet Limited and the lease term runs until 30 June 2033.
2.4

Investment property pledged as security
The following properties have been pledged as security by means of mortgage bonds (refer to note 18):
To The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited to secure borrowing facilities totalling R880 million and to Standard Finance
(Isle of Man) Limited to secure borrowing facilities of USD60 million
1. A 75,15% undivided share in The Glen
2. A 40% undivided share in Canal Walk
The market value of the bonded properties (75,15% and 40% respectively) at year-end was R5,1 billion.
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2.

Investment property continued
Investment property pledged as security continued
To Rand Merchant Bank (a division of FirstRand Bank Limited) to secure borrowing facilities totalling R962 million and
USD30 million
1. A 40% undivided share in Canal Walk
The market value of the bonded property (40% thereof) at year-end was R3 billion.

Hyprop in brief

To Nedbank Limited to secure borrowing facilities totalling R3,6 billion
1. CapeGate
2. Atterbury Value Mart
3. Woodlands Boulevard
4. Clearwater Mall
5. Willowbridge South

2014 in perspective

2.4

The market value of these properties at year-end was R8,9 billion.
To The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited to secure borrowing facilities of USD57,5 million
1. Manda Hill Centre, Lusaka, Zambia

2.5

Investment property valuation
Valuation process
It is the policy of the group to obtain an independent valuation of the investment property portfolio on a six-monthly basis.
More than one independent valuer may be used to provide the valuation. Investment property is reﬂected at fair value at
30 June 2014.

Changes in discount rates attributable to changes in market conditions can have a signiﬁcant impact on property valuations.
A 25 basis point increase in the average discount rate will decrease the value of investment property by R751 million (3%).
A 25 basis point decrease in the capitalisation rate will increase the value of investment property by R962 million (4%).

Financial statements

The most signiﬁcant inputs to the valuation process, all of which are unobservable, are the estimated rental values, assumptions
regarding vacancy levels, the discount rate and the reversionary capitalisation rate. The estimated fair value increases if the
estimated rental increases, vacancy levels decline or if discount rates (market yields) and reversionary capitalisation rates decline.
The valuations are sensitive to all four assumptions. The inputs used in the valuations at 30 June 2014 were:
Q The range of reversionary capitalisation rates applied to the portfolio were between 6,75% and 9,5% with the weighted
average being 7,29% (June 2013: 7,17%)
Q The discount rates applied range between 11,75% and 14,50% with the weighted average being 12,52% (June 2013: 12,31%)
Q The permanent vacancy factor applied for shopping centres ranged between 0,5% and 2,5% (offices 2,5% and 5%)

Governance

The signiﬁcant inputs and assumptions in respect of the valuation process are developed in close consultation with management.
The valuation process and fair value changes are reviewed by the audit committee and the board of directors at each reporting
date. The directors conﬁrm that there have been no material changes to the assumptions applied by the registered valuers. The
average annualised resultant portfolio yield produced by the valuers was 7,2%. The average annualised resultant yield range
across all properties was 6,6% to 9,2%.

Risk management

The South African portfolio was valued at R24,2 billion at 30 June 2014, excluding minority interests (including development
property and property held for sale). The portfolio was valued by two independent, professionally qualiﬁed property valuers:
The valuation division of Old Mutual Investment Group South Africa, led by Trevor King (BSc DipSurv MRICS, Valuer), Professional
Registered Valuer (SA), member of the South African Council for the Valuers Profession, Chartered Valuation Surveyor and
Associate of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (UK), and the valuation division of Jones Lang LaSalle (Proprietary)
Limited, led by Roger Long (BSc MBA FRICS MIV(SA)), Professional Registered Valuer, member of the South African Council for
the Property Valuers Profession, Chartered Valuation Surveyor and Associate of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,
using the discounted cash ﬂow method.

Performance

The market value of the bonded property at year-end was USD153 million

Unitholder information
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2.

Investment property continued
2.5

Investment property valuation continued
Valuation techniques underlying management’s estimation of fair value
The valuations were determined using discounted cash ﬂow projections, based on signiﬁcant unobservable inputs. These inputs
include:
Future rental cash ﬂows:
Based on the location, type and quality of the properties and
supported by the terms of any existing lease or other contracts
or external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties.
Discount rates:

Reﬂecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of cash ﬂows.

Vacancy rates:

Based on current and expected future market conditions after
expiry of any current leases.

Maintenance costs:

Including necessary investments to maintain functionality of the
property for its expected useful life.

Capitalisation rates:

Based on location size and quality of the properties and taking
into account market data at the valuation date.

Terminal value:

Taking into account assumptions regarding maintenance costs,
vacancy rates and market rents.

Stoneridge (held for sale):

Directors’ valuation.

For Rosebank Mall (property under development)
(total value: R1,8 billion):

The valuation was based on a discounted cash ﬂow model taking
into account the following factors (in addition to the inputs
noted above).

Cost to complete:

These are largely based on actual costs to complete by reference
to total budgeted project cost and costs spent to date.

Completion dates:

The date of completion is September 2014.

There was no change to the method of valuation applied compared to the prior year.
Manda Hill
Manda Hill Centre was valued at R1,6 billion (USD153 million) at 30 June 2014 by the valuation division of Jones Lang LaSalle led by
Roger Long, using the cap rate method. The average annualised resultant yield produced by the valuer was 7,5%. The vacancy
factor at Manda Hill was 0,5%.
A 25 basis point increase in the capitalisation rate will decrease the value of Manda Hill by R43,4 million (3%) and a 25 basis point
decrease in capitalisation rate will increase the value of Manda Hill by R65,1 million (4%).
Fair value hierarchy
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.
In addition, for ﬁnancial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signiﬁcance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety. The three levels are explained as follows:
Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the
measurement date. These quoted prices are unadjusted.
Level 2 – inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

99

2.

Investment property continued
Investment property valuation continued
Group and company

Recurring fair value
measurements – level 3
June 2013
Valuation
R000

Super regional
Large regional
Regional
Value centres
Stand-alone office
Development property(2)

6 064 000
11 380 269
1 769 000
1 290 000
90 000
1 849 000

5 627 200
8 545 094
1 556 000
2 178 200
749 000
1 187 000

Total company
Manda Hill

22 442 269
1 618 506

19 842 494

Total group

24 060 775

19 842 494

Mall and the Mall offices are classified as development property and the total cost to completion amounts to R287,5 million

Group and company

Nonrecurring
fair value
measurements
– level 3

Assets held for sale

1 731 000

Total group and company

1 731 000

Governance

There are interrelationships between unobservable inputs. Expected vacancy rates may impact the yield, with higher vacancy
rates resulting in higher yields. For investment property under construction, increases in construction costs that enhance the
property’s rental stream may result in an increase in property values. An increase in future rental income may be linked with
higher costs. If the remaining lease term increases, the yield may decrease.

Risk management

June 2014
Valuation
R000

Performance

(2) Rosebank

Hyprop in brief

June 2014
Valuation
R000

2014 in perspective

2.5

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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3.

Building appurtenances and tenant installations

Note
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Cost
Building appurtenances
Tenant installations
Accumulated depreciation
Building appurtenances
Tenant installations
Net carrying value
Building appurtenances
Tenant installations
Movement for the period
Net carrying value – 1 July/1 January
Capital expenditure
Acquired through business combination
(African Land)
Foreign currency translation difference
Disposals
Classiﬁed as held for sale
Depreciation

33.2

13

Net carrying value

4.

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

104 518
37 216

74 520
70 116

54 620
35 434

74 137
70 116

141 734

144 636

90 054

144 253

43 684
15 358

40 211
41 360

18 774
14 608

39 994
41 360

59 042

81 571

33 382

81 354

60 834
21 858

34 309
28 756

35 846
20 826

34 143
28 756

82 692

63 065

56 672

62 899

63 065
13 541

55 356
14 819

62 899
20 051

55 206
14 749

35 447
428
(2 468)
(7 390)
(19 931)

(7 110)

(2 457)
(7 390)
(16 431)

(7 056)

82 692

63 065

56 672

62 899

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt and loss (listed property securities)
GROUP
June 2014
R000
Movement for the year
Balance at beginning of year
Change in fair value
Transfer to asset held for sale

2 282 095
(2 842)
(2 279 253)

Balance at end of year
Hyprop’s % interest: number of units held
Sycom Property Fund – units held: nil
(2013: 84 225 688)

GROUP
June 2013
R000

2 282 095
(2 842)
(2 279 253)

0

0

Stock exchange

% held

% held

% held

% held

JSE

0

29,9

0

29,9

The remaining Sycom units were sold during the year.
In the prior year Hyprop had pledged 75 328 391 Sycom units as security against a loan facility provided by Rand Merchant Bank (RMB).
Subsequent to the Somerset Mall transaction, RMB released the pledged Sycom units. Refer to notes 13 and 18.
The investment in Sycom was reclassiﬁed to non-current assets held for sale in the prior year. Refer to note 13.
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5.

Subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries
Details of the group’s subsidiaries at the end of the year are as follows:

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power held
by the group

30 June 2014

30 June 2013

100%

Hyprop Investments
(Mauritius) Limited

Acquiring indirect development or
income producing property investments
in sub-Saharan Africa (excluding SA)

Mauritius

100%

Acquiring income producing investment
property in sub-Saharan Africa
(excluding SA)

South Africa

87%

Marketing services

South Africa

100%

Attfund Retail Limited

Deregistered on 27 June 2014

South Africa

Hyprop Investments
Employee Incentive Scheme
(Proprietary) Limited

To hedge the obligation of the
company to deliver Hyprop units to
employees, arising from the allocations
to employees in terms of the Hyprop
Employee Incentive Scheme
Company formed to further
sustainability, enterprise development,
socio-economic development and
corporate social initiatives of Hyprop

South Africa

100%

South Africa

100%

African Land Investments
Limited
Word4Word Marketing
(Proprietary) Limited

Hyprop Foundation NPC

GROUP
June 2014
R000

Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited
Cost allocated to Word4Word
Impairment
Balance after impairment

Total investment in subsidiaries

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

*

*

758 264
(758 264)
0
29 566
(25 286)

29 566
(17 507)

4 280

12 059

Unitholder information

Attfund Retail Limited – dormant subsidiary
The company was deregistered on 27 June 2014.
Hyprop Investments Employee Incentive Scheme
(Proprietary) Limited
Cost
The company was incorporated on 19 September 2013.
Hyprop Foundation NPC
The company was incorporated on 17 September 2013.

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

11 068

15 348

Financial statements

Balance at end of year

100%

Governance

Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
The company acquired 100% of the issued capital in Hyprop
Investments (Mauritius) Limited for USD1. Hyprop
Investments (Mauritius) Limited holds a 37,5% interest in
Atterbury Africa. Refer to note 7.
African Land Investments Limited
The company acquired 87% of African Land Investments
on 5 December 2013. African Land Investments Limited
indirectly holds a 100% interest in Manda Hill Centre
Limited. Refer to note 33.
Cost
Transfer to asset held for sale

GROUP
June 2013
R000

100%

Risk management

Principal activity

Performance

Name of subsidiary

Hyprop in brief

Place of
incorporation
and operation

2014 in perspective

5.1

12 059

*Amounts less than R1 000
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5.

Subsidiaries continued
5.1

Investment in subsidiaries continued
Subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests
Set out below is summarised ﬁnancial information for African Land Investments Limited, in which Hyprop had an 87% share
at year-end. The amounts disclosed are based on those included in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, before the
elimination of intercompany balances.
African Land
Investments Limited
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000
Summarised statement of ﬁnancial position
Current assets
Current liabilities

7 393
(22 404)
(15 011)

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

1 644 235
(603 259)
1 040 976

Net assets

1 025 965

Non-controlling interests
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Revenue
Net proﬁt

133 237

Total comprehensive income

62 393

77 953
62 393

Proﬁt allocated to non-controlling interest
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

8 103
4 539

Summarised cash ﬂows
Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities

(695 086)
(818 440)
1 501 920

Signiﬁcant restrictions
None
5.2

Dividends received from subsidiaries
COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

African Land Investments Limited
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited
Hyprop Investments Employee Incentive Scheme
(Proprietary) Limited

30 308
4 770
1 500

1 434
700

Total dividends received

36 943

GROUP
June 2014
R000
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GROUP
June 2013
R000

365
2 134
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6.

Joint operations

Net property income

Net property income

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

6 064 000
12 923
52 340

5 627 200
212
50 725

6 064 000
12 923
52 340

5 627 200
212
50 725

545 252
(165 998)

244 917
(66 519)

545 252
(165 998)

244 917
(66 519)

379 254

178 398

379 254

178 398

2 059 269
2 102
22 982

1 854 094
8 857
23 027

2 059 269
2 102
22 982

1 854 094
8 857
23 027

214 218
(71 020)

99 038
(35 436)

214 218
(71 020)

99 038
(35 436)

143 198

63 602

143 198

63 602

(1)

Net property income

421 200
1 969
41 861

32 096
(16 926)

32 096
(16 926)

15 170

15 170

Centre – transferred to non-current assets held for sale, refer to note 13

Governance

(1) Stoneridge

421 200
1 969
41 861

Risk management

Stoneridge – 90% – Gauteng, South Africa
Carrying value of investment property
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net property income
Investment property income
Property expenses

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

Performance

The Glen – 75,15% – Gauteng, South Africa
Carrying value of investment property
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net property income
Investment property income
Property expenses

GROUP
June 2013
R000

Hyprop in brief

Canal Walk – 80% – Western Cape, South Africa
Carrying value of investment property
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net property income
Investment property income
Property expenses

GROUP
June 2014
R000

2014 in perspective

The following is a summary of Hyprop’s undivided share in co-owned shopping centres at year-end:

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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7.

Joint venture – Atterbury Africa
Hyprop’s wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited, has a 37,5% interest in Atterbury Africa, a Mauritius-based
property investment company. The investment was made on 20 November 2012. Hyprop has 50% of the voting rights on the board
of Atterbury Africa. Hyprop accordingly has joint control of Atterbury Africa.

Initial investment in equity
Share in equity-accounted results
#Less

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

#

#

#

#

^

^

^

^

(766)
6 604
6 863
(21 373)
11 793
(70 540)
4 506
41 318

(283)

than R1 000

ˆNil
As at 30 June 2014, Hyprop Mauritius’ 37,5% share of
Atterbury Africa’s liabilities exceeded its assets by R15 million
(2013: R6,9 million).
Summarised ﬁnancial information of Atterbury Africa is as follows
(all ﬁgures reﬂect 100% of Atterbury Africa):
Summarised statements of comprehensive income
Share of losses of associates
Other income
Administrative expenses
Depreciation
Interest income
Finance cost
Fair value gain on investment property
Share of proﬁts of joint venture

(3 852)
(2 465)
1 806
(14 366)
22 766

(Loss)/proﬁt before taxation
Taxation

(21 595)

3 606
539

(Loss)/proﬁt for the year/period

(21 595)

4 145

Other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive loss of associate

(736)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year/period

(22 331)

4 145

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company
Non-controlling interests

(19 036)
(3 295)

5 955
(1 810)

Summarised statements of ﬁnancial position
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment property
Investment in associates
Investment in joint venture
Loan receivable
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

1 339 381
883 617
5 388
218 575
231 572
229
180 171
36 404
143 767

536 747
274 059
187 208

Total assets

1 519 552

587 288
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8
50 541
16 074
34 467
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7.

Joint venture – Atterbury Africa continued

8.

57 098
(18 363)
75 029
432
502 053
502 053
28 137
28 137

1 519 552

587 288

39 999

18 363

92 671

213 231

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Performance

Unrecognised share of losses of Atterbury Africa
Commitments and contingent liabilities relating to
Atterbury Africa
Guarantees

153 287
(39 999)
190 880
2 406
1 288 689
1 288 689
77 576
77 576

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

Hyprop in brief

Total equity and liabilities

GROUP
June 2013
R000

2014 in perspective

Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Shareholders’ deﬁcit
Non-controlling interest
Foreign currency translation reserve
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

GROUP
June 2014
R000

Investments in associates
Details of the group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of associate

Principal activity

Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited

Property investment company
Graphic design and
advertising company

It’s Called Advertising (Proprietary) Limited(1)
(1)

Place of
incorporation
and operation

30 June 2014

South Africa
South Africa

30 June 2013
20%

40%

Risk management

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the group

40%

Governance

40% of It’s Called Advertising (Proprietary) Limited is owned by Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited. Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary)
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hyprop. Refer to note 5

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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8.

Investments in associates continued
Summarised ﬁnancial information of the group’s associates is set out below:
Reconciliation to the statements of financial position
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited(2)
Total assets
Total liabilities

1 054 935
1 035 088

Net assets

19 847

Group’s share of net assets of Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited

3 969

It’s Called Advertising (Proprietary) Limited
Total assets
Non-current assets
Current assets
Total liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets

546
1 499

1 553
224
1 329
1 283
417
866
270

600

108

Group’s share of net assets of associates
Loan advanced (Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited)
Transfer to non-current asset held for sale

600

4 077
117 600
(121 569)

Investment in associates

600

108

Group’s share of net assets of It’s Called Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited

2 045
159
1 886
546

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Reconciliation to the statements of comprehensive income
Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited(2)
Total revenue
Total proﬁt for the year/period
Group’s share of proﬁts of Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited
It’s Called Advertising (Proprietary) Limited
Total revenue
Total proﬁt for the year/period
Group’s share of proﬁts of It’s Called Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited
Group’s share of proﬁts
(2)

55 585
38 649
3 969
7 618
1 154

1 744
334

462

293

462

4 262

In December 2013, Attacq exercised its option to acquire Hyprop’s 20% interest in Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited, which owns Garden Route Mall.
The shares and loan account in Mantrablox were sold for R139 million, realising a profit of R17,4 million. Refer to note 13
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9.

Goodwill
GROUP
June 2013
R000

Goodwill arising on acquisition
Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited
Impairment – current year

12 059
(7 779)

12 059

Balance

4 280

12 059

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

The valuation of Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited was determined using the discounted cash ﬂow method over ﬁve years
and was based on the following key inputs and assumptions:
Q Budgets and forecasts prepared by management of Word4Word
Q Income and expenses were increased by an average rate of 5% per annum (2013: 7%)
Q Future cash ﬂows were discounted at 18% (2013: 18%) which is a comparable rate for companies of this nature.

Hyprop in brief

The group tests goodwill annually for impairments.

2014 in perspective

GROUP
June 2014
R000

The determination of the recoverable amount of goodwill was based on its value in use. Refer to note 5.

GROUP
June 2013
R000

812 459

336 909

47 145

47 398

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

47 145

47 398

Risk management

Atterbury Africa Limited – rand equivalent of US dollar loan
The loan repayment date is 30 June 2020 and represents Hyprop’s
shareholder loan funding to Atterbury Africa.

GROUP
June 2014
R000

The loan is secured and bears interest at an initial rate of 8%,
escalating at 4% per annum.

117 600

188

Financial statements

47 674

165 186

47 674

47 586
117 600

Unitholder information

The loan was advanced to Abland in 2008 to facilitate the
acquisition by Abland of its 10% interest in Stoneridge.
Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited
In December 2013, Attacq exercised its option to acquire
Hyprop’s 20% interest in Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited, which
owns Garden Route Mall. The shares and loan account in
Mantrablox were accordingly sold in December 2013.
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited – wholly owned
subsidiary of Hyprop
The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and is repayable on
demand.
Attacq loan
The loan relates to Attacq’s portion of a claim relating to the
African Land acquisition. The loan bears interest at 8,3% per
annum and is repayable when the claim is settled, which is
anticipated to be within the next 12 months.

Governance

Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited has a 37,5% equity
interest in Atterbury Africa.
Portion 113 Weltevreden (Proprietary) Limited, a company
associated with Abland (Proprietary) Limited (Abland)
The above loan is repayable on 23 September 2014, bears interest
at a rate linked to the three-month JIBAR rate, interest is payable
monthly in arrears.

Performance

10. Loan receivable

47 674

165 186

188

341

341

859 945

384 307

Reconciliation to the statements of ﬁnancial position
Long-term loan receivable
Short-term loan receivable

812 459
47 486

384 307

Total

859 945

384 307

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

108

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2014

11. Trade and other receivables
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

32 750
(18 557)

22 820
(8 869)

89 493

19 213
(8 974)
113 262
100 674

88 678

19 213
(8 974)
113 262
95 792

103 686

224 175

102 629

219 293

Movements on allowance for doubtful debts
Opening balance – 1 July/1 January
Allowance for doubtful debts
Receivables written off during the year

(8 974)
(12 577)
2 994

(10 239)
(2 334)
3 599

(8 974)
(2 889)
2 994

(10 239)
(2 334)
3 599

Closing balance – 30 June

(18 557)

(8 974)

(8 869)

(8 974)

3 426
1 172
1 847
12 112

4 661
1 618
828
1 867

3 426
1 172
1 034
3 237

4 661
1 618
828
1 867

18 557

8 974

8 869

8 974

Ageing of receivables past due but not impaired
30 days
60 days
90+ days

2 507
1 489
1 309

1 796
1 446
1 160

2 265
1 489
1 309

1 796
1 446
1 160

Total

5 305

4 402

5 063

4 402

Rent receivable
Allowance for doubtful debts
Listed property securities – accrued distribution
Other receivables

Ageing of impaired receivables
Current
30 days
60 days
90+ days

No interest is charged on trade receivables if payment is received within seven days from the date of invoice. Thereafter interest is
charged at prime plus 2%. The allowance for doubtful debts has been determined on a tenant by tenant basis, taking into account
the circumstances of each tenant. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivable. Save for national tenants, a deposit in the form of cash or bank guarantee is obtained from the tenant in terms of Hyprop’s
deposit policy. Furthermore, and only if required, a deed of suretyship will be obtained from a tenant.
Management believes that there are no signiﬁcant trade receivables that are doubtful that have not been provided for as doubtful
debts or written off.

12. Cash and cash equivalents
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Cash held on call account as security for municipal and
other guarantees
Bank balances and cash

8 620
68 733

4 088
70 733

8 620
52 637

4 088
66 537

Balance at end of year

77 353

74 821

61 257

70 625
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13. Non-current assets classiﬁed as held for sale
GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Sycom Property Fund
Hyprop owned 84 225 688 Sycom units in 2013, being
29,9% of the units in issue.

Hyprop in brief

During March 2013, Hyprop and Sycom Property Fund
Managers Limited (SPFM) entered into an agreement
whereby Hyprop acquired 100% of Somerset Mall from
Sycom for a purchase consideration of R2,3 billion.
The purchase consideration was discharged by
Hyprop transferring to SPFM 81 500 000 Sycom units
(the Somerset Mall transaction).

2 279 253
(82 266)
168 869
(2 300 000)
(65 856)

Investment in associate – Mantrablox
In December 2013, Attacq exercised its option to acquire
Hyprop’s 20% interest in Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited.
Refer to notes 8 and 10.
Opening balance – 1 July 2013
Proﬁt on disposal
Proceeds on sale
Transfer to held for sale

2 279 253

2 279 253

2 279 253

121 569
17 431
(139 000)
121 569

21 400
(139 000)
117 600

Governance

Classiﬁed as held for sale in the statements of ﬁnancial
position – investment in associate

121 569

5.1

758 264
758 264

Financial statements

Classiﬁed as held for sale in the statements of ﬁnancial
position – investment in subsidiary

2 279 253

Risk management

Classiﬁed as held for sale in the statements of ﬁnancial
position – listed property securities

2 279 253
(82 266)
168 869
(2 300 000)
(65 856)

Performance

The effective date of the transaction was 1 October
2013. The remaining Sycom units held by Hyprop were
sold in December 2013 and January 2014.
Opening balance – 1 July 2013
Change in fair value
Proﬁt on disposal
Acquisition of Somerset Mall
Cash proceeds
Transfer to held for sale

Investment in subsidiary
Subsequent to year-end, Hyprop and Attacq
restructured their investment in African Land. The
restructure of African Land was effective 1 July 2014.
Hyprop’s effective economic interest in Manda Hill
reduced from 87% to 68,75%, as a consequence of the
restructure. Refer to note 38.
Transfer to held for sale

2014 in perspective

Note

GROUP
June 2014
R000

Unitholder information
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13. Non-current assets classiﬁed as held for sale continued
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

Investment property
Stoneridge
The centre was valued by the directors at 30 June 2014 at
R480 million (100%), being the fair value of the
investment property.
Hyprop’s share (90%) of the assets and liabilities of
Stoneridge are reﬂected at 30 June 2014 at their carrying
amounts as follows:
Assets
Investment property
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Trade and other payables

437 965
432 000
2 053
3 291
621
797
797

437 965
432 000
2 053
3 291
621
797
797

Classiﬁed as held for sale in the statements of ﬁnancial
position – investment property

437 168

437 168

600 710
594 000
1 996
3 711
1 003
20 299
20 299

600 710
594 000
1 996
3 711
1 003
20 299
20 299

580 411

580 411

The assets and liabilities of CapeGate Lifestyle Centre are
reﬂected at 30 June 2014 at their carrying amounts as
follows:
Assets
Investment property
Trade and other receivables
Liabilities
Trade and other payables

341 935
338 000
3 935
13 147
13 147

341 935
338 000
3 935
13 147
13 147

Classified as held for sale in the statements of financial
position – investment property

328 788

328 788

Willowbridge
The centre was valued by the directors at 30 June 2014 at
R594 million, being the fair value of the investment
property.
The assets and liabilities of Willowbridge Shopping
Centre are reﬂected at 30 June 2014 at their carrying
amounts as follows:
Assets
Investment property
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Classiﬁed as held for sale in the statements of ﬁnancial
position – investment property
CapeGate Lifestyle Centre
The centre was valued by the directors at 30 June 2014 at
R338 million, being the fair value of the investment
property.
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June 2013
R000
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13. Non-current assets classiﬁed as held for sale continued
GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Stand-alone office parks
The office parks were valued by the directors at
30 June 2014 at R367 million, being the fair value of
the investment properties.

Classified as held for sale in the statements of financial
position – investment property

358 869

358 869

1 758 991
1 731 000
7 390
17 646
2 955
53 755
53 755

1 758 991
1 731 000
7 390
17 646
2 955
53 755
53 755

Total investment property classiﬁed as held for sale
Assets
Investment property
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Classified as held for sale in the statements of financial
position

2
3

1 705 236

2 400 822

1 705 236

Risk management

378 381
367 000
3 341
6 709
1 331
19 512
19 512

Performance

378 381
367 000
3 341
6 709
1 331
19 512
19 512

Hyprop in brief

The assets and liabilities of the office parks are reﬂected
at 30 June 2014 at their carrying amounts as follows:
Assets
Investment property
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Trade and other payables

2014 in perspective

Note

GROUP
June 2014
R000

2 279 253

Governance
Financial statements
Unitholder information
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14. Share capital
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Issued
243 256 092 no par value ordinary shares (2013: 243 113 169)
Less: 153 659 no par value ordinary treasury shares (2013: 0)(2)

1 661

1 661

1 661

1 661

Balance at end of year – 243 102 433 no par value ordinary shares

1 661

1 661

1 661

1 661

Reconciliation – number of shares in issue
Balance at beginning of year
Issued during the year(1)
Less: treasury shares(2)

243 113 169
142 923
(153 659)

243 113 169

243 113 169
142 923

243 113 169

Balance at end of year

243 102 433

243 113 169

243 256 092

243 113 169

Authorised
500 000 000 no par value ordinary shares (2013: 500 000 000)

142 923 new combined units were issued during the year at an issue price of R73,43 per unit. The new combined units were issued under a general
authority, as part consideration for the acquisition of Hyprop’s interest in African Land
(2) Shares held in treasury are in respect of combined units purchased to hedge the company’s obligation in terms of the long-term Hyprop Employee
Incentive Scheme (conditional unit plan (CUP)). Refer to notes 17 and 26
(1)

Each share is irrevocably linked to one debenture, together comprising one combined unit. Refer to note 17.
On initial recognition the “fair value” portion of the equity instrument is allocated to share capital. However, since 100% of the
distribution attributable to the combined unit is paid to unitholders as interest on debentures (no dividends are paid on the share
component of the combined unit), the income stream attributable to the share is zero and therefore no value is attributed to the
share on initial recognition.
Subsequent to year-end, the capital structure of the company was restructured. Refer to note 38.

15. Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve arose from the conversion of Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited and African Land
Investments Limited from their functional currency, US dollars, to South African rand on consolidation. Refer to note 5.
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

Opening balance
Movement
Non-controlling interest

313
8 894
(1 133)

(6)
319

Closing balance

8 074

313

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

The closing exchange rate at 30 June 2014 was R10,58:USD1 (30 June 2013: R9,87:USD1) and the average exchange rate for the 12 months
ended 30 June 2014 was R10,37:USD1 (2013: R9,2:USD1).
The average rate for the period from the acquisition of African Land to year-end was R10,66:USD1.
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16. Reserves
Non-distributable reserves
GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

10 814 061
616 759
(8 851)
139 413
276 630
17 431
(15 856)
1 256 148
125 344
(555 433)
102 895

9 158 164
699 025
(13 127)
134 953
107 761

10 216 772
616 759
(6 833)
139 413
276 630
21 400
(15 897)
1 256 148
121 375
25 400

8 603 052
699 025
(13 127)
134 953
107 761

(25 286)

(17 507)

12 620 199

10 814 274

1 649
1 649
12 770 190

1 649
1 649
10 817 808

12 621 848

10 814 274

Relates to the amortised share-based payment cost in terms of the Hyprop Employee Incentive Scheme (CUP)

Risk management

(1)

10 817 808

Performance

Total

1 153 342
121 375
25 400

(5 682)

12 768 541
16.2 Share-based payment reserve(1)
Share-based payment

1 153 342
125 344
(547 654)

Hyprop in brief

Revaluation of: Investment property
Listed property securities
Derivative instruments
Realised surplus on disposal of: Investment properties
Listed property securities
Associate
Other
Amortised debenture premium
Non-distributable reserves of associate
Impairment of goodwill
Gain on bargain purchase (African Land)
Impairment of intercompany loan
Impairment of investment in subsidiary (Word4Word
Marketing (Proprietary) Limited)

GROUP
June 2014
R000

2014 in perspective

16.1

Governance
Financial statements
Unitholder information
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17. Debentures and debenture premium

Issued
243 256 092 (2013: 243 113 169) unsecured unsubordinated
variable rate debentures of 493 cents each
Premium on debentures
Upon issue of combined units
Debentures included in treasury shares(1)
Debenture premium amortised

Movement for the period
Balance at 1 July/1 January
New issue of combined units
Transferred to treasury shares(1)
Current period premium amortisation
Balance at end of period
(1)

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

1 199 253
4 519 866
5 787 082
(11 068)
(1 256 148)

1 198 548
4 623 949
5 777 291

1 199 253
4 530 934
5 787 082

1 198 548
4 623 949
5 777 291

(1 153 342)

(1 256 148)

(1 153 342)

5 719 119

5 822 497

5 730 187

5 822 497

5 822 497
10 496
(11 068)
(102 806)

5 871 616

5 822 497
10 496

5 871 616

(49 119)

(102 806)

(49 119)

5 719 119

5 822 497

5 730 187

5 822 497

Debentures held in treasury are in respect of combined units purchased to hedge the company’s obligation in terms of the long-term Hyprop
Employee Incentive Scheme (the conditional unit plan (CUP)). Refer to notes 14 and 26

The debentures are irrevocably linked to the ordinary shares of the company and can only be traded together with the shares.
In terms of the Hyprop Debenture Trust Deed, interest on the debentures is calculated in accordance with a distributable earnings
formula.
Interest payable on the debentures is determined in arrears once the distributable earnings have been determined in accordance with
the Debenture Trust Deed. In aggregate, not less than 100% of distributable earnings must be distributed to debenture holders
through the payment of debenture interest. The board, in terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, is permitted to exercise its discretion
to round any fraction of a cent in distributable earnings per combined unit down to the nearest whole cent. Debenture interest is
paid to unitholders within three months of the expiry of a ﬁnancial period.
The right of redemption of the debentures may be exercised only by special resolution of the debenture holders passed within
90 days after 25 January 2023 or every 10th anniversary thereafter.
The debentures are redeemable at their par value on the last Friday in December of the ﬁfth year after which the debenture special
resolution is passed.
The debenture premium is measured at amortised cost based on the remaining period to redemption. A risk-free bond rate (based
on the R186 government bond of 8,3%) (2013: 7,87%) is used and adjusted for risk factors applicable to the company.
The Hyprop Debenture Trust Deed is available for inspection by combined unitholders or their duly authorised agents at the registered
office of the company.
Subsequent to year end, the capital structure of the company was restructured to do away with the debentures and capitalise them
to stated capital. Refer to note 38.

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

115

18. Interest-bearing borrowings

Rand Merchant Bank (a division of
FirstRand Bank Limited)
Fixed for the full term at an average rate
of 10,1%

200 000

722 914#
656 186
1 536 380

722 913
655 087
1 375 914

722 914#
656 186
1 536 380

722 913
655 087
1 375 914

R3,0 billion
(40% of
Canal Walk)

September JIBAR + 1,75%
2014

200 000#

200 000

200 000#

200 000

880 000

Base rate
October 2013
+ 1,60%
December
2014 JIBAR + 0,8%

393 117#

May 2018 LIBOR + 3,2%

172 272

December
2016 LIBOR + 4,75%

603 259

450 000#

450 000#
393 117#

R3,0 billion
(40% of
Canal Walk)
USD30 million

R5,1 billion
(40% of Canal
Walk, 75,15% of
The Glen)

October LIBOR + 3,17%
2017

November
2018 LIBOR + 2,85%

417 639

256 421

200 086

Financial statements

USD20 million

R5,1 billion
(40% of
Canal Walk,
75,15% of
The Glen)

Governance

USD40 million

USD153 million

76 151

Risk management

Standard Finance (Isle of Man) Limited
The drawn down amount of R192,7 million
(USD18,5 million) is ﬁxed for the full term at
an average rate of 4,5%

April 2015 Prime – 1,8%
August 2016 Prime – 1,8%
June 2018 Prime – 1,8%

R5,1 billion
(40% of
Canal Walk,
75,15% of
The Glen)

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
The drawn down amount of R603,3 million
(USD57,5 million) is ﬂoating
USD57,5 million
Standard Finance (Isle of Man) Limited
The drawn down amount of R417,6 million
(USD39,6 million) is ﬁxed for the full term at
an average rate of 4,2%

GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
June 2013 June 2014 June 2013
R000
R000
R000

Performance

US dollar bank facilities
RMB
The drawn down amount of R172,3 million
(USD16,2 million) is ﬁxed for the full term
at 4,7%

GROUP
June 2014
R000

R8,9 billion
903 642
1 203 935
1 540 304

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

The drawn down amount of R450 million
was ﬁxed for the full term at 9,4%
The drawn down amount of R393 million is
ﬂoating

Interest
rate

Hyprop in brief

SA rand bank facilities
Nedbank
R2,3 billion of the Nedbank loans are ﬁxed
at an average rate of 8,7% and have an
average maturity of 4,2 years

Capital
repayment
date

2014 in perspective

Facility
(drawn
down)
R000

Secured
by investment
property
at fair
value

Unitholder information
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18. Interest-bearing borrowings continued
Facility
(drawn
down)
R000

Secured
by investment
property
at fair
value

Debt capital market funding
Corporate bonds
Six-year bond – ﬁxed until October 2018
at 9,34%
Five-year bond – ﬁxed for the full term
at 7,3%
Five-year bond – ﬁxed at an average rate of
7,7% and an average maturity of 3,1 years
Three-year bond(1)

Capital
repayment
date

Interest
rate

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
June 2013 June 2014 June 2013
R000
R000
R000

450 000

450 000

November
Base rate
2019
+ 1,54%
September
2017 JIBAR + 1,50%

300 000

300 000

300 000

300 000

May 2018 JIBAR + 1,45%
July 2015 JIBAR + 1,34%

450 000
400 000

450 000
400 000

450 000
400 000

450 000
400 000

July 2014 JIBAR + 0,22%
August 2014 JIBAR + 0,21%

499 000#
198 000#

300 000#
198 000#

499 000#
198 000#

300 000#
198 000#

Total interest-bearing borrowings

7 198 853

5 384 486

5 805 597

5 051 914

Reconciliation to the statements
of ﬁnancial position
Long term
Short term

5 185 822 4 436 486 3 792 566
2 013 031# 948 000# 2 013 031#

4 103 914
948 000#

Total interest-bearing borrowings

7 198 853

5 051 914

Commercial paper
Three-month commercial paper(1)
Three-month commercial paper

(1)

5 384 486

5 805 597

The three-year bond and R300 million of the commercial paper are fixed at an average rate of 9,1% and have an average maturity of 4,1 years

At year-end, interest rates were ﬁxed in respect of 71,4% (June 2013: 87%) of borrowings, at a weighted average rate of 7,5% (June 2013: 8,1%).
The gearing ratio at year-end was 28,4% (June 2013: 22,9%).

19. Derivative instruments
Derivative instruments comprise interest rate swaps.
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Opening balance as at 1 July/1 January
Fair value adjustment

(13 127)
4 276

(237 464)
224 337

(13 127)
6 294

(237 464)
224 337

Closing balance 30 June

(8 851)

(13 127)

(6 833)

(13 127)

Interest rate swap

8 080

15 988

8 080

15 988

Interest rate swap

(22 041)

(16 973)

(22 041)

(16 973)

Interest rate swap

23 561

23 869

23 561

23 869

Interest rate swap

(5 492)

(1 771)

(3 474)

(1 771)

Interest rate swap

1 337

Interest rate swap

(14 296)

(34 240)

(14 296)

(34 240)

(8 851)

(13 127)

(6 833)

(13 127)

32 978
(41 829)

39 857
(52 984)

32 978
(39 811)

39 857
(52 984)

(8 851)

(13 127)

(6 833)

(13 127)

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
Assets
Long term
Liabilities
Long term
Rand Merchant Bank
Assets
Long term
Liabilities
Long term
Nedbank Limited
Assets
Long term
Liabilities
Long term

Reconciliation to the statements of ﬁnancial position
Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities
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19. Derivative instruments continued

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

124 284
(78 122)
(16)
(399)

110 113
(76 134)
(10 964)
6 995

124 284
(78 122)

110 113
(76 134)
(10 964)
7 250

45 747

30 010

46 162

30 265

30 010

30 265

10 964
(7 250)

2 271 159
(2 021 082)
(126 854)
(6 611)
(5 424)
(81 986)
5 518
(4 455)

46 162

30 265

20. Deferred taxation

Arising on:
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Taxation loss
Income received in advance
Other temporary differences
Reconciliation of the movement in the deferred taxation liability
Opening balance – 1 July/1 January
Change in fair value of: Investment property(1)
Listed property securities(1)
Building appurtenances and tenant installations
Prior year deferred tax adjustment
Straight-line rental income accrual
Income received in advance
Other temporary differences

10 948
(7 394)

2 270 945
(2 021 082)
(126 854)
(6 611)
(5 424)
(81 986)
5 518
(4 496)

Closing balance

45 747

30 010

(1)

14 171
(1 988)

14 171
(1 988)

Hyprop converted to a REIT from 1 July 2013. South African REITs are not subject to capital gains taxation. Therefore, 100% of deferred capital gains
taxation was eliminated through the statement of comprehensive income on 30 June 2013. Deferred taxation on other timing differences was
calculated at 28% (June 2013: 28%)
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GROUP
June 2014
R000

The designation of the interest rate swaps is further disclosed in note 37.

Financial statements

JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
LIBOR-linked
LIBOR-linked
LIBOR-linked
LIBOR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked
JIBAR-linked

Governance

1/02/2016
18/04/2018
13/09/2017
18/09/2019
6/05/2018
17/05/2018
17/05/2018
18/05/2020
31/10/2018
31/10/2016
9/11/2019
25/05/2017
13/08/2018
3/02/2020
3/09/2018
3/01/2017
4/01/2016
2/10/2017
1/02/2016
2/01/2020
2/01/2020

Risk management

8,14%
5,87%
5,83%
7,73%
4,26%
1,67%
1,27%
2,10%
7,80%
8,33%
8,04%
7,98%
8,02%
8,50%
8,93%
8,80%
8,59%
8,82%
8,29%
8,54%
8,29%

Performance

R200 million
R450 million
R300 million
R200 million
USD7 682 773
USD1 783 500
USD1 647 000
USD4 987 500
R450 million
R300 million
R100 million
R100 million
R100 million
R100 million
R500 million
R500 million
R500 million
R500 million
R250 million
R250 million
R250 million

Hyprop in brief

RMB
RMB
RMB
RMB
RMB
RMB
RMB
RMB
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank

2014 in perspective

Valuation of the derivative instruments was determined by discounting the future cash ﬂows using the JIBAR or LIBOR swap curve.
Nominal
Financial institution
amount
Fixed rate
Expiry date
Rate
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21. Trade and other payables

Note
Trade creditors and accrued expenses
Tenant deposits
Gift cards
Interest payable
Phantom share scheme liability (refer to note 26)
Debtors with credit balances
Other payables

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

148 899
91 707
7 969
56 363
1 123
40 047
21 578

155 209
53 150
2 327
51 052
1 277
39 157
51 630

146 158
84 962
7 969
55 367
1 123
40 047

155 209
53 150
2 327
51 052
1 277
39 157
43 497

367 686

353 802

335 626

345 669

5 468
60 177

3 101
14 133

4 961
14 717

3 101
6 573

65 645

17 234

19 678

9 674

498 030
(37 664)

215 147
(6 190)

458 826
(37 664)

211 453
(6 190)

460 366

208 957

421 162

205 263

(50 503)
19 931
2 468
109 137
1 649
(2 951)

(6 795)
7 110

(43 396)
16 431
2 457
81 918
1 649
(180)

(6 795)
7 056

22. Interest received
From positive bank balances
From loans receivable

23. Interest paid
On interest-bearing borrowings
Interest capitalised

2.2

24. Net operating income
Net operating income is stated after accounting for
the following:
Contingent rental income (turnover rental)
Depreciation
Loss on write-off of assets
Employee remuneration
Share-based payments (refer to note 26)
Forex (gains)/losses
Key management remuneration
The following key management remuneration was
paid/provided for during the year/period:
Bonuses (2014: provided but not paid)
Prescribed officers (excluding directors)
Directors’ remuneration
Independent non-executive
Ethan Dube (paid to Vunani Capital (Proprietary) Limited)
Lindie Engelbrecht
Gavin Tipper
Louis van der Watt (paid to Atterbury Property Holdings Limited)
Mike Lewin
Thabo Mokgatlha
Jabulane Mabuza (resigned June 2013)
Michael Aitken (paid to Corovest Property Group Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited, retired June 2013)
Les Weil (deceased June 2013)
(1) Amounts
(2)

reflect remuneration for 12 months
Amounts reflect remuneration for six months
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8 826
36 821
1 691(1)
223
400
439
183
223
223

12 560

5 886
18 406
1 079(2)
117
189
169
92
112

8 826
36 821
1 691(1)
223
400
439
183
223
223

12 560

5 886
18 406
1 079(2)
117
189
169
92
112

92

92

148
160

148
160
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24. Net operating income continued

4282)
92
92
132

644(1)
188
188
268

428
92
92
132

10 396(1)
6 667(1)
3 139
127
2 200
31
1 170
3 729(1)
1 798
270
1 600
61

4 614
2 688
1 478
68

112
10 396(1)
6 667(1)
3 139
127
2 200
31
1 170
3 729(1)
1 798
270
1 600
61

4 614(2)
2 688(2)
1 478
68

1 142
1 926(2)
847
146

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

112

933

(1) Amounts
(2)

reflect remuneration for 12 months
Amounts reflect remuneration for 6 months

Directors’ beneﬁcial interests under the long-term employee incentive scheme (CUP)

Market value of units at 30 June 2014

L Cohen
Hyprop units

28 790
28 790

15 864
15 864

R000

R000

2 301

1 268

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Governance

Balance 1 July 2013
Allocated during the year
Balance at 30 June 2014

P Prinsloo
Hyprop units

Risk management

933

1 142
1 926
847
146

Performance

Executive
Pieter Prinsloo (CEO)
Basic salary
Pension fund contributions
Performance bonus (paid in December)
Other beneﬁts
Incentive scheme
Laurence Cohen (FD)
Basic salary
Pension fund contributions
Performance bonus (paid in December)
Other beneﬁts
Incentive scheme

644(1)
188
188
268

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

Hyprop in brief

Directors’ remuneration continued
Non-executive
Kevin Ellerine
Louis Norval
Stewart Shaw-Taylor
Marc Wainer (paid to Redeﬁne Properties Limited,
resigned June 2013)

GROUP
June 2013
R000

2014 in perspective

GROUP
June 2014
R000

25. Auditor’s remuneration

Auditor’s remuneration – fees paid to external auditors for
attest function
Audit fee – current year

1 670

1 250

1 128

1 230

1 670

1 250

1 128

1 230

773
28

331
35

757
28

331
35

801

366

785

366
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Other auditor’s remuneration
Internal audit fees
Other services

GROUP
June 2013
R000

Financial statements

GROUP
June 2014
R000
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26. Employee remuneration
26.1 Phantom share scheme
The Hyprop board recognises that a key factor in the success of Hyprop is the retention and incentivisation of management
and staff. Accordingly, a scheme was formulated to reward employees who make a meaningful and sustainable contribution to
the ﬁnancial performance of Hyprop by providing them with the opportunity to participate in its future growth. Senior Hyprop
management and staff were offered this incentive.
The incentive is directly linked to the performance of Hyprop’s combined units. Employees were granted “phantom” Hyprop
combined units at a notional strike price (the initial price (IP)). Employees receive an award equivalent to the increase in the
market value of the Hyprop combined unit over the initial price. This award is paid in four payments within 30 days after the
date on which the relevant payment is calculated.
The payment is calculated as follows:
Cash bonus = 1/4 AS x (P - IP) - relevant taxes
AS = allocated “phantom” units
P = volume weighted average traded price of Hyprop combined units for the 30 JSE trading days prior to the calculation date
IP = initial price
If the market price of the Hyprop combined unit on the relevant calculation date is not greater than the initial price, no payment
is made. The award is only applicable if the employee is in the employ of Hyprop on the payment date. 473 979 “phantom”
Hyprop combined units were in issue at 30 June 2014 (June 2013: 473 979). The scheme will expire in 2016.
The liability for the “phantom” scheme is measured at fair value at each reporting date. Refer to note 21.
26.2 Equity-settled share-based employee remuneration
On 1 January 2014, the group implemented a long-term employee incentive scheme (the conditional unit plan (CUP)), which
consists of two components – performance units and the retention units. Both the performance and the retention components
of the scheme will be settled with Hyprop units.
The terms and conditions of the long-term employee incentive scheme were approved at the annual general meeting on
5 December 2013.
26.2.1

Performance units
In terms of the CUP, fully paid awards are made on an annual basis, comprising performance units and retention units.
The split between performance units and retention units is 70%: 30% for all participants.
The performance conditions for the units allocated as performance units are as follows:
Q Growth in distribution per unit relative to the peer group (weighting 40%)
Q Unit price performance relative to the peer group (weighting 40%)
Q Strategic component, which will be determined by the remuneration committee in line with the prevailing

circumstance and projects at the time of the award (weighting 20%).
Each of the performance conditions will be measured over a three-year performance period. Participants must be
employed until the end of the vesting period to be eligible for the award.
26.2.2 Retention units
Retention units vest after ﬁve years, provided the participant is still employed by the group.
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26. Employee remuneration continued

Unvested at 30 June 2014

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date
were as follows:
Expected life
Volatility
Interest-free rate after taxation of 28%
Dividend yield

107 563

46 100

107 563

46 100

Performance units

Retention units

1 January 2014
31 December 2016
R73,17

1 January 2014
31 December 2018
R73,17

3 years
20,00%
5,83%
5,81%

5 years
20,00%
5,83%
5,81%

Tranche 1
Performance units
Retention units

Pieter Prinsloo
(CEO)

Laurence Cohen
(FD)

19%
19%

10%
10%

Governance

The charge to the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted to R1,6 million. As
the above are equity-settled shared-based payments, the accounting treatment recognises the share-based payments
in proﬁt and loss on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding credit to equity.

Risk management

The executive directors were allocated the following percentages of the total units allocated under tranche 1:

Performance

Tranche 1
Grant date
Vesting period ends
Fair value of units at grant date

Number of
retention units

Hyprop in brief

Unvested at 1 July 2013
Granted
Forfeited
Vested

Number of
performance units

2014 in perspective

26.2 Equity-settled share-based employee remuneration continued
26.2.3 Reconciliation of units

Financial statements
Unitholder information
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27. Taxation
COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

(2 240 935)

62
17 885
(1 988)

(2 240 894)

17 719

(2 239 008)

15 959

(2 240 894)

552 807
(562 173)

419 115
(439 105)

509 612
(514 721)

417 719
(439 105)

86
(1 988)

1 552

62
(1 988)

GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

Major components of the taxation expense
Current taxation – current year
Current taxation – prior year
Deferred taxation – current year
Deferred taxation – prior year

1 896
86
17 725
(1 988)

1 927

Tax for the year/period
Reconciliation of taxation charge
Net proﬁt before taxation at 28%
Permanent differences
Prior year tax adjustment
Income tax
Deferred tax
Capital gains taxation
Unrecognised deferred tax asset
Adjustment in respect of Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
REIT reversal
Taxation expense recognised in statements of comprehensive
income

10 414

10 414

30 166
(4 893)
3 714

19 280
(1 062)
(2 229 922)

3 714

(2 229 922)

17 719

(2 239 008)

15 959

(2 240 894)

Hyprop converted to a REIT from 1 July 2013. South African REITs are not subject to capital gains taxation. Therefore 100% of deferred
capital gains taxation was eliminated through the statement of comprehensive income on 30 June 2013.
The taxation rate applied in the reconciliations above was 28%.
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28. Earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings
GROUP
June 2013
R000

1 948 487
1 147 443

3 740 109
517 831

Earnings
Headline earnings adjustments
Change in fair value of investment property
Proﬁt on disposal:
Investment property
Associate company (Mantrablox)
Sycom rights offer nil paid letters
Amortisation of debenture premium
Gain on bargain purchase (African Land)
Deferred taxation – investment property
Impairment of goodwill

3 095 930
(1 870 232)
(1 650 419)

4 257 940
(3 296 367)
(1 198 105)

(4 460)
(17 431)

(90)

Headline earnings
Distributable earnings adjustments
Change in fair value:
Listed property securities
Derivative instruments
Proﬁt on disposal of listed property securities
Net income:
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
African Land Investments Limited
Dividends received:
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
African Land Investments Limited
Capital restructuring costs (2013: Sycom transaction cost)
Taxation
Deferred taxation – listed property securities and other
Investment in associate (Mantrablox)

1 225 698
(77 098)

961 573
(444 320)

82 266
(4 276)
(168 869)

2 842
(224 337)

(20 929)
(17 590)

(3 789)

4 770
30 308
1 325

1 434

Reconciliation – earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings
Net income after taxation
Debenture interest

15 897

1 791
1 520
(219 812)
(3 969)
517 253
243 113 169
243 113 169

Cents

Cents

1 273,0
504,0

1 751,4
395,5

Financial statements

1 148 600
243 256 092
243 195 790

Governance

Earnings and headline earnings per combined unit
Basic and diluted earnings per combined unit
Basic and diluted headline earnings per combined unit

(2 021 082)
7 779

Risk management

Total combined units in issue
Weighted average combined units in issue – for earnings and headline earnings

(27 971)
(49 119)

Performance

Distributable earnings

(102 806)
(102 895)

Hyprop in brief

GROUP
June 2014
R000

2014 in perspective

As at 30 June 2014, the company had 243 256 092 combined units in issue (June 2013: 243 113 169 units).

Unitholder information
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29. Notes to the cash ﬂow statements
29.1 The following convention applies to ﬁgures other than adjustments:
Outﬂows of cash are represented by ﬁgures in brackets.
Inﬂows of cash are represented by ﬁgures without brackets.
GROUP
GROUP
Year to Six months to
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000
29.2 Cash generated from operations
Net income before taxation
Adjustments:
Change in fair value: Investment property
Listed property securities
Derivative instruments
Impairment of intercompany loan
Impairment of investment in subsidiary
Impairment of goodwill
Proﬁt on disposal: Investment property
Listed property securities
Investment in associate
Share of income from associate
Dividends received
Depreciation
Share-base payment
Interest received
Interest paid
Debenture interest paid
Gain on bargain purchase (African Land)
Amortisation of debenture premium
Small assets written off
Other non-cash items
Operating proﬁt before working capital changes
Increase/(decrease) in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in receivables
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Cash generated from operations

1 974 309
(400 859)
(1 655 897)
82 266
(4 276)

7 779
(4 460)
(168 869)
(17 431)
(462)
19 931
1 649
(65 645)
460 366
1 147 443
(102 895)
(102 806)
2 468
(20)
1 573 450
151 895
107 013
44 882

COMPANY
COMPANY
Year to Six months to
June 2013
June 2014
R000
R000

1 501 101
(783 984)
(1 198 105)
2 842
(224 337)

1 820 044
(288 944)
(1 613 720)
82 266
(6 294)
5 682
7 779

1 493 990
(778 363)
(1 198 105)
2 842
(224 337)

(90)
(27 971)

(4 460)
(168 869)
(21 400)

(90)
(27 971)

(36 943)
16 431
1 649
(19 678)
421 162
1 147 798

(2 134)
7 056

(4 262)
7 110
(17 234)
208 957
517 831
(49 119)

(9 674)
205 263
517 831

394
717 117
(56 412)
(41 105)
(15 307)

(102 806)
2 457
2
1 531 100
153 175
109 463
43 712

(49 119)
75
715 627
(53 922)
(37 344)
(16 578)

1 725 345

660 705

1 684 275

661 705

(517 831)
(1 147 443)
585 877

(512 969)
(517 831)
517 831

(517 831)
(1 147 798)
585 877

(512 969)
(517 831)
517 831

(1 079 397)

(512 969)

(1 079 755)

(512 969)

(5 923)
(1 982)
298

(3 980)
(1 927)
5 923

(62)

(7 607)

16

(62)

29.3 Debenture interest paid to combined unitholders
Interest payable at beginning of year/period
Per statements of comprehensive income
Interest payable at end of year/period

29.4 Taxation paid
Taxation payable at beginning of year/period
Per statements of comprehensive income
Taxation payable at end of year/period

29.5 Dividends received
Per statement of comprehensive income
Dividends receivable at end of year/period
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36 943
(10 445)

2 134
(1 434)

26 498

700
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30. Commitments

334 470
80 895

334 470
67 534

603 426
82 887

415 365

402 004

686 313

287 502
13 073
20 565
1 748
4 056
7 526
334 470

287 502
13 073
20 565
1 748
4 056
7 526
334 470

565 348
27 063
4 300
6 715

80 895

67 534

82 887

603 426

The above expenditure will be ﬁnanced out of available cash resources,
banking facilities and debt capital market funding.

Operating expense commitments payable to service providers in future
years have been classiﬁed as follows:
– Short-term contracts (up to one year)
1 730
1 257
12 736
Nil
Nil
Nil
– Medium-term contracts (greater than one year and up to ﬁve years)
Contracts which can be terminated on one month’s notice have been included for one month only (2013: remaining months
on the contract).

Risk management

30.2 Operating expense commitments
Hyprop has entered into various service contracts for the cleaning, upkeep
and general maintenance of its investment property portfolio.

Performance

Capital commitments approved but not yet committed

GROUP AND
COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Hyprop in brief

Capital commitments approved and committed comprise the following:
Development costs
– Rosebank Mall
– Canal Walk
– Hyde Park
– The Glen
– Atterbury Value Mart
– Clearwater

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

2014 in perspective

30.1 Capital commitments
Approved and committed
Approved but not yet committed

GROUP
June 2014
R000

31. Minimum lease payments receivable
GROUP AND
COMPANY
June 2013
R000

1 490 846
3 548 906
1 143 826

1 467 087
3 437 303
1 134 748

1 345 541
2 680 104
845 365

8 351

8 049

4 411

32. Retirement beneﬁts
All eligible employees are members of the Hyprop Investments Limited Pension
Fund. The retirement funding and risk-related beneﬁts are market-related. All
beneﬁts from the pension fund accrue to the members.
The pension fund complies with all current legislation. The company has no
commitment for post-retirement medical aid beneﬁts.
Contribution to the pension fund for group risk beneﬁts and recognised as
an expense
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COMPANY
June 2014
R000

Financial statements

The minimum lease payments receivable from tenants have been classiﬁed
into the following categories:
– Short-term (up to one year)
– Medium-term (greater than one year and up to ﬁve years)
– Long-term (greater than ﬁve years)

GROUP
June 2014
R000

Governance

Minimum lease payments comprise contractual rental income and operating expense recoveries from investment property.
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33. Business combinations
33.1 Subsidiary acquired
Hyprop acquired an 87% interest in African Land Investments Limited on 5 December 2013 for R768 million. Pre-acquisition
dividend received amounted to R10 million.
The acquisition was in line with Hyprop’s strategy to expand its investments in prime-quality shopping centres to sub-Saharan
Africa (excluding SA).

2014

Principal activity

African Land Investments Limited

Acquiring income
producing investment
property in subSaharan Africa
(excluding SA)

Date of
acquisition

Proportion of
voting equity
interest acquired

Consideration
transferred

5 December 2013

87%

758 264

33.2 Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition(1)
Non-current assets
Investment property (refer to note 2.2)
Property, plant and equipment (refer to note 3.4)
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

1 557 394
35 447
4 149
12 012
(601 008)
(18 295)
989 699

(1)

All amounts reflect 100% of acquisition values for African Land Investments Limited

Trade receivables acquired had a fair value and gross contractual amount of R8 million.
The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash ﬂows not expected to
be collected was R4 million, resulting in net trade receivables of R4 million.
33.3 Non-controlling interests
The non-controlling interest recognised at the acquisition date was measured by
reference to the agreements concluded with minority shareholders and amounted to

13%

128 540

The non-controlling interest is recognised at its proportionate interest in the
subsidiary acquired.
33.4 Gain on bargain purchase
Consideration transferred
Less: Fair value of identiﬁable net assets acquired
Gain on bargain purchase

758 264
(861 159)
(102 895)

The gain on bargain purchase amounting to R102,9 million relates to Hyprop’s acquisition of African Land and was calculated in
terms of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The gain represents the amount by which the fair value of net assets acquired exceeds
the consideration paid and has no impact on distributable earnings. The initial accounting for the business combination at
31 December 2013 was based on provisional amounts which resulted in a reported gain on bargain purchase of R64,8 million. The
gain on bargain purchase at 30 June 2014 was adjusted retrospectively in accordance with IFRS 3.45.
The gain on bargain purchase arose as a consequence of the effective purchase price for Manda Hill (Lusaka, Zambia) being
lower than the most recent fair valuation of the property.
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33. Business combinations continued

Included in proﬁt for the year is R62,3 million representing proﬁt from African Land Investments Limited.
Had the business combination been effected on 1 July 2013, the total Hyprop consolidated revenue would have been R2,6 billion
and the total Hyprop consolidated proﬁt would have been R1,9 billion.
Consideration
transferred
758 264
747 769
10 495
12 012
10 495

Net cash outﬂow

735 757

Performance

34. Related parties and related-party transactions
Related parties with whom the group transacted during the period were:

Atterbury Africa Limited
Co-investor with Hyprop
Loan receivable
Interest received
Relationship: directorial and joint venture

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

4 540

4 957

4 540

117 600
4 957

812 459
45 460

336 909
7 560

22 775

12 700

22 775

12 700

139 000
341
5 167
4 344

139 000
341
5 167

365

30 308
10 137

Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
Loan receivable
Dividend received
Relationship: subsidiary

188
4 770

188
1 434

Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited
Dividend received
Marketing retainers and other fees paid
Relationship: subsidiary

1 500
12 738

700
4 285

All related-party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in similar arm’s-length transactions.
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African Land Investments Limited
Dividend received
Dividend received (pre-acquisition)
Relationship: subsidiary

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

Financial statements

Attacq Limited
Sale of Mantrablox
Loan receivable
Interest received
Dividend paid by African Land Investments Limited
Relationship: directorial and shareholder of African Land
Investments Limited
Hyprop Investments Employee Incentive Scheme
(Proprietary) Limited
Dividend received
Relationship: subsidiary

GROUP
June 2013
R000

Governance

Ellerine Bros (Proprietary) Limited
Rental income received – Stuttafords Branches
Relationship: directorial and co-owner of The Glen and Canal Walk

GROUP
June 2014
R000

Risk management

Mantrablox (Proprietary) Limited
Loan receivable
Interest received
Relationship: directorial and associate

Hyprop in brief

33.6 Net cash outﬂow on acquisition of African Land Investments Limited
Consideration transferred
Cash
Units issued
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired
Less: Units issued

2014 in perspective

33.5 Impact of acquisition on results of the group
Revenue for the year includes R78 million attributable to revenue from African Land Investments Limited.
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35. Financial risk management
The group’s ﬁnancial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, loans from banks, loan and trade receivables, interest rate
swaps, listed property securities, debentures, payables and a foreign currency investment. In respect of the above-mentioned
ﬁnancial instruments, book values approximate fair value. Exposure to interest rate, credit, liquidity, market, price and currency risks
occur in the normal course of business.
Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk due to material interest-bearing borrowings. The risk is managed by maintaining an
appropriate mix between ﬁxed and ﬂoating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swaps.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis includes the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the
ﬁnancial year.
For ﬂoating rate liabilities it is assumed that the liability outstanding at the end of the year was outstanding for the whole year.
A 150 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates was used in the analysis.
If interest rates had increased/decreased by 150 basis points and all other variables were held constant, the group’s proﬁt for the year
ended 30 June 2014 would increase/decrease by R31 million (based on year-end ﬂoating debt) and the company’s proﬁt for the
year ended 30 June 2014 would increase/decrease by R22 million (based on year-end ﬂoating debt).
The group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current year due to a decrease in the proportion of ﬁxed debt to 71%
of total debt (30 June 2013: 87%).
Fixed-rate agreements and interest swaps
Refer to note 18 for further detail in respect of ﬁxed-rate agreements and interest rate swaps.
The group’s exposure to interest rate risk and interest rates on ﬁnancial instruments at the reporting date was as follows:
Liquidity and interest rate risk
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

Group

One year
or less
R000

Year ended 30 June 2014
Financial assets
Derivative instruments
Loans receivable
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

47 486
103 686
77 353

Total ﬁnancial assets
Financial liabilities
Debenture capital(1)
Interest-bearing borrowings
Payables
Combined unitholders for distribution
Derivative instruments
Total ﬁnancial liabilities
(1)Transferred

Variable
7,50%
Variable

More than
five years
R000

Total
R000

32 978
812 459

32 978
859 945
103 686
77 353

228 525

845 437

1 073 962

2 013 031
367 686
585 877

5 185 822

2 966 594

5 227 651

5 719 119

5 719 119
7 198 853
367 686
585 877
41 829

5 719 119

13 913 364

41 829

to stated capital (converted to equity) post-year-end. Refer to note 38
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35. Financial risk management continued

Company

One year
or less
R000

47 674
102 629
61 257

Total ﬁnancial assets
Variable
8,20%
Variable

(1)Transferred

32 978

32 978
47 674
102 629
61 257

211 560

32 978

244 538

2 013 031
335 626
585 877

3 792 566

5 730 187

5 730 187
5 805 597
335 626
585 877
39 811

39 811

Total ﬁnancial liabilities

Total
R000

2 934 534

3 832 377

5 730 187

12 497 098

One year
or less
R000

One to
ﬁve years
R000

More than
ﬁve years
R000

Total
R000

Performance

Financial liabilities
Debenture capital(1)
Interest-bearing borrowings
Payables
Combined unitholders for distribution
Derivative instruments

More than
five years
R000

Hyprop in brief

Year ended 30 June 2014
Financial assets
Derivative instruments
Loans receivable
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

One to
five years
R000

2014 in perspective

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

to stated capital (converted to equity) post-year-end

2 279 253
224 175
74 821

Total ﬁnancial assets

Total ﬁnancial liabilities

Variable
8,10%
Variable

2 578 249

39 857

948 000
353 802
517 831

4 436 486

1 819 633

4 489 470

2 618 106
5 822 497

5 822 497
5 384 486
353 802
517 831
52 984

5 822 497

12 131 600

52 984

Financial statements

Financial liabilities
Debenture capital
Interest-bearing borrowings
Payables
Combined unitholders for distribution
Derivative instruments

2 279 253
39 857
224 175
74 821

39 857

Governance

Year ended 30 June 2013
Financial assets
Listed property securities – held for sale
Derivative instruments
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Risk management

Group

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

Unitholder information
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35. Financial risk management continued

Company

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

Year ended 30 June 2013
Financial assets
Listed property securities – held for sale
Derivative instruments
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total ﬁnancial liabilities

One to
ﬁve years
R000

More than
ﬁve years
R000

2 279 253
219 293
70 625

Variable
8,10%
Variable

2 569 171

39 857

948 000
345 669
517 831

4 103 914

2 609 028
5 822 497

5 822 497
5 051 914
345 669
517 831
52 984

5 822 497

11 790 895

52 984
1 811 500

4 156 898

Total
R000

2 279 253
39 857
219 293
70 625

39 857

Total ﬁnancial assets
Financial liabilities
Debenture capital
Interest-bearing borrowings
Payables
Combined unitholders for distribution
Derivative instruments

One year
or less
R000

Interest rates are monitored and appropriate steps taken to ensure that Hyprop’s exposure to interest rate ﬂuctuations is limited.
Interest rates have been ﬁxed for periods ranging from 2015 to 2020 with an average maturity of 4,2 years. The average maturity of
the ﬁxed interest rate agreements and interest rate swaps is disclosed in note 18. The average rate of interest at year-end (applicable
to total debt) was 7,5% (2013: 8,1%).
Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the risk that a counterparty may default or not meet its obligations timeously. Credit risk is limited to the
carrying amount of ﬁnancial assets at the reporting date.
Receivables
Trade receivables consist of a large, widespread tenant base. The ﬁnancial position of tenants is monitored on an ongoing basis. An
allowance is made for all speciﬁc doubtful debts at year-end. Management does not consider there to be any material credit risk
exposure that is not already covered by a doubtful debt allowance. The carrying value of receivables is considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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35. Financial risk management continued

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet ﬁnancial commitments. This risk is minimised by holding cash balances
and by a ﬂoating loan facility. In addition, the company monitors liquidity risk by regularly monitoring forecast cash ﬂows and by
matching the maturity proﬁles of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities.

The exposure to price risk as at the end of the period is as follows:
June 2014
R000
Sycom Property Fund

June 2013
R000

Hyprop in brief

Price risk
The group was exposed to price risk due to its investment in listed property securities. These investments were held for strategic
purposes and the group does not actively trade these instruments.

2014 in perspective

Cash and cash equivalents
It is group policy to deposit short-term cash investments with reputable ﬁnancial institutions.

2 279 253

Foreign exchange risk
The group operates beyond South African borders and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from an exposure to the US dollar.

Foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period
June 2014
R000

June 2013
R000

Governance
Financial statements

Non-current assets
Loan to Atterbury Africa USD76 803 544 (2013: USD34 143 276)
812 459
336 909
Current assets
Receivables USD2 384 (2013: USD2 095)
25
21
Cash and cash equivalents USD1 160 (2013: USD706)
12
7
Liabilities
Interest-bearing debt USD74 680 258 (2013: USD33 703 739)
789 998
332 572
Derivative instrument USD190 837 (2013: nil)
2 019
Payables USD99 388 (2013: USD155 659)
3 336
1 536
Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign amounts were:
USD
10,58
9,87
If the R/USD exchange rate had changed by 1% for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: 1%), the group’s total consolidated proﬁt for the
year ended 30 June 2014 would have increased/decreased by R0,5 million (2013: R0,03 million).

Risk management

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. Currently this exposure
arises through Hyprop’s 37,5% interest in Atterbury Africa, via its wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited and
87% interest in African Land Investments Limited, which is invested in 100% of Manda Hill Centre, in Lusaka, Zambia. The group hedges
100% of US dollar funding raised to ﬁnance investments in sub-Saharan Africa (excluding SA). Income earned from foreign operations
is currently not hedged.

Performance

The last units held in Sycom were sold in January 2014.

Unitholder information
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36. Capital management
The company’s borrowings (excluding debentures) are limited to 60% (2013: 55%) of the directors’ bona ﬁde valuation of the consolidated
property portfolio, including listed property securities. Following the conversion to a REIT on 1 July 2013, the maximum permitted
gearing ratio was aligned in the company’s MoI to JSE Listings Requirements, which currently permit a maximum gearing level of 60%.
The company is funded by bank debt, debt capital market funding, and in some instances, new equity (formerly debenture capital).
The company’s capital management objective is to maintain a strong capital base to provide sustainable returns to unitholders and
other stakeholders over the long term.
Hyprop’s unutilised borrowing capacity at 30 June can be summarised as follows:
GROUP
June 2014
R000

GROUP
June 2013
R000

COMPANY
June 2014
R000

COMPANY
June 2013
R000

Value of property portfolio(1)
60%/55% thereof
Total gross borrowings (long term and short term)

25 819 264
15 491 559
7 198 853

22 246 615
12 235 638
5 384 486

24 174 738
14 504 843
5 805 597

22 124 880
12 168 684
5 051 914

Unutilised borrowing capacity

8 292 706

6 851 152

8 699 246

7 116 770

(1)

Includes listed property securities

37. Fair value hierarchy and ﬁnancial instruments by category
Accounting policies have been applied to ﬁnancial instruments as indicated below.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
In addition, for ﬁnancial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signiﬁcance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The three levels are explained as follows:
Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the measurement
date. These quoted prices are unadjusted.
Level 2 – inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.
Level 3 – inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The table below categorises ﬁnancial instruments and analyses those measured at fair value by the level into which the fair value
measurement is categorised:
Group
Recurring fair value measurements

Assets

Assets
designated
Loans and
at fair value
receivables
through
at amortised
cost profit and loss
R000
R000

30 June 2014
Derivative instruments(1)
Loans receivable
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
30 June 2013
Listed property securities
Derivative instruments(1)
Loans receivable
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
(1) Refer

to note 19 for revaluation techniques and key inputs
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Level 1
R000

32 978

Level 2
R000
32 978

812 459
103 686
77 353
2 279 253
39 857
384 307
224 175
74 821

2 279 253
39 857

Level 3
R000
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37. Fair value hierarchy and ﬁnancial instruments by category continued
Recurring fair value measurements

30 June 2014
Debentures and debenture premium
Loans – long term
– short term
Derivative instruments(1)
Payables

Level 1
R000

Level 2
R000

Level 3
R000

5 719 119
5 185 822
2 013 031
41 829

41 829

52 984

52 984

367 686

Performance

30 June 2013
Debentures and debenture premium
Loans – long term
– short term
Derivative instruments(1)
Payables

5 822 497
4 436 486
948 000
353 802
Recurring fair value measurements

Loans and
receivables at
amortised
cost
R000

(1) Refer

32 978

Level 2
R000

Level 3
R000

32 978

47 674
102 629
61 257
2 279 253
39 857

2 279 253
39 857

165 186
219 293
70 625

Financial statements

30 June 2013
Listed property securities
Derivative instruments(1)
Loans receivable
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Level 1
R000

Governance

30 June 2014
Derivative instruments(1)
Loans receivable
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets
designated
at fair value
through
profit
and loss
R000

Risk management

Company

Assets

Hyprop in brief

Liabilities

Liabilities
measured
at amortised
cost
R000

Liabilities
designated at
fair value
through
profit
and loss
R000

2014 in perspective

Group continued

to note 19 for revaluation techniques and key inputs

Unitholder information
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37. Fair value hierarchy and ﬁnancial instruments by category continued
Company continued
Recurring fair value measurements

Liabilities

Liabilities
measured
at amortised
cost
R000

30 June 2014
Debentures and debenture premium
Loans – long term
– short term
Derivative instruments(1)
Payables
30 June 2013
Debentures and debenture premium
Loans – long term
– short term
Derivative instruments(1)
Payables
(1) Refer

Liabilities
designated at
fair value
through
profit
and loss
R000

Level 1
R000

Level 2
R000

Level 3
R000

5 730 187
3 792 566
2 013 031
39 811

39 811

52 984

52 984

335 626
5 822 497
4 103 914
948 000
345 669

to note 19 for revaluation techniques and key inputs

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements approximate their fair values. There have been no changes in valuation methodologies during the year.
There have been no signiﬁcant transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year.
The fair value gain/loss (in respect of investment property and all other ﬁnancial assets) included in proﬁt and loss is R1,5 billion
(2013: R1,4 billion) for the group and R1,5 billion (2013: R1,4 billion) for the company.
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38. Post-balance sheet events

Historical debenture capital and debenture premium, as well as any amortised debenture premium included in non-distributable
reserves, was transferred to stated capital on the effective date.

Completion of the capital restructure means that Hyprop’s capital structure and statement of ﬁnancial position will in future periods
be consistent with other REITs, both in South Africa and internationally.

Risk management

Restructure of African Land
Subsequent to year-end, Hyprop and Attacq restructured their investment in African Land, whereby Hyprop, through its wholly
owned subsidiary Hyprop Investments (Mauritius), will hold 50% in Manda Hill in Lusaka, Zambia. Atterbury Africa, a joint venture
between Hyprop, Attacq and the Atterbury Group, will hold the balance. The restructure of African Land was effective 1 July 2014.
Hyprop’s effective economic interest in Manda Hill reduced from 87% to 68,75%, as a consequence of the restructure.

Performance

The restructure was effected by way of a scheme of arrangement in terms of section 114 of the Companies Act. There are no taxation
or other consequences for unitholders arising from the capital restructure.

Hyprop in brief

As previously communicated to unitholders, the capital conversion process entailed the following:
Q The delinking of each Hyprop ordinary share from a Hyprop debenture so as to no longer constitute a combined unit
Q The cancellation of each debenture and concomitant waiver, for no consideration, by the debenture holders of their right to be
repaid the nominal value reﬂected in each debenture
Q The capitalisation of the value allocated to each debenture in the books of account of the company plus the amortised debenture
premium included in non-distributable reserves, equating to the issue price of each debenture, to Hyprop’s stated capital account
Q The amendment and subsequent termination of Hyprop’s Debenture Trust Deed
Q The amendment of Hyprop’s MoI to reﬂect the change in Hyprop’s capital structure.

2014 in perspective

Capital restructure
Subsequent to year-end, the regulatory process to convert Hyprop’s combined unit structure to an all share structure was completed.
The result is that effective from 18 August 2014 (the effective date), Hyprop units ceased trading as combined units (with a share linked
to a debenture), and instead traded as share-only instruments.

Governance
Financial statements
Unitholder information
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Segmental analysis
for the year ended 30 June 2014

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Business segment

Value
attributable
to Hyprop
R000

Location

GLA m2

Total
value
R000

Cape Town

157 031

7 580 000

6 064 000

157 031

7 580 000

6 064 000

30 June 2014
Canal Walk
Super regional
Clearwater

Johannesburg

86 028

3 473 000

3 473 000

The Glen

Johannesburg

76 849

2 740 000

2 059 269

Woodlands Boulevard

Pretoria

71 617

2 196 000

2 196 000

CapeGate Regional

Cape Town

63 699

1 400 000

1 400 000

Somerset Mall

Cape Town

Large regional
Hyde Park

Johannesburg

Regional

66 831

2 252 000

2 252 000

365 024

12 061 000

11 380 269

38 345

1 769 000

1 769 000

38 345

1 769 000

1 769 000

1 105 000

1 105 000

Atterbury Value Mart

Pretoria

47 786

Somerset Value Mart

Cape Town

12 386

185 000

185 000

60 172

1 290 000

1 290 000

620 572

22 700 000

20 503 269

4 506

90 000

90 000

1 849 000

1 849 000

1 779 000

1 731 000

1 618 506

1 408 262

28 036 506

25 581 531

812 459

812 459

28 848 965

26 393 990

Value centres
Shopping centres
Stand-alone offices

Johannesburg
(1)

Development property

Johannesburg

Held for sale(2)
African Land Investments Limited
Investment property

156 061
Lusaka, Zambia
781 139

Listed property securities
Atterbury Africa (Hyprop (Mauritius) Limited)
Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited
Fund management
Net interest
Straight-line rental income accrual
781 139
Reconciliation to statement of ﬁnancial position
Held for sale(4)

(33 154)

Other non-current assets

39 328

Other current assets

228 525

African Land Investments Limited(5)

235 974

Word4Word Marketing (Proprietary) Limited

289
26 864 952

Note
(1)

Rosebank Mall and Mall Offices – transferred to development property from September 2012
Willowbridge, CapeGate Lifestyle, Stoneridge, Lakefield Office Park, Glenwood Office Park and Glenfield Office Park
(3) Based on 2014 net property income
(4) Other assets and liabilities held for sale
(5) Building appurtenances, tenant installations and non-controlling interest of African Land Investments Limited
(2)

Hyprop Investments Limited I Integrated Report 2014

137

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

379 254

545 252

379 254

336 499

224 585

7,0

15 400

54 063

214 218

143 198

7,7

2 102

22 982

214 842

142 336

7,5

24 709

41 845

157 166

91 674

7,4

10 653

26 485

6,7

Receivables
R000

Payables
R000

12 923

52 340

12 923

52 340

6 923

16 803

59 787

162 178

179 905

120 000

8 986

35 453

179 905

120 000

8 986

35 453

112 551

83 714

8,5

6 028

22 836

7,8

1 284

5 809

7 312

28 645

89 008

278 616

472

992

22 692

14 466

135 243

98 180

1 949 749

1 315 244

10 039

5 070

7,7

6,2

121 808

63 302

9 136

23 362

257 902

146 084

17 646

53 755

77 953

30 308

(1 987)

22 404

2 417 451

1 560 008

114 275

379 129

37 265

37 265
4 770

25

3 336

3 180

3 020

5 898

(55 139)

4 012

33 078

7 198 853

121 332

421 441

7 198 853

(17 646)

(53 755)

1 148 600

103 686

367 686

7 198 853

28

11

21

18

(401 484)
45 055
2 514 779

Financial statements

2 514 779

1 148 600

Governance

15 008

Risk management

116 017
717 810

Performance

166 624
1 089 349

Loans
R000

Hyprop in brief

545 252

Historic
yield(3)
%

2014 in perspective

Revenue
R000

Net
property
income
R000

Unitholder information
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Segmental analysis continued
for the year ended 30 June 2014

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Business segment

Location

GLA m2

Total
value
R000

Value
attributable
to Hyprop
R000

30 June 2013
Canal Walk

Cape Town

Super regional

153 531

7 034 000

5 627 200

153 531

7 034 000

5 627 200

Clearwater

Johannesburg

86 031

3 203 000

3 203 000

The Glen

Johannesburg

74 348

2 467 000

1 854 094

Pretoria

71 607

1 886 000

1 886 000

Woodlands Boulevard
CapeGate

Cape Town

Large regional
Hyde Park

Johannesburg

Regional
Atterbury Value Mart
Willowbridge
Stoneridge
Somerset Value Mart

97 346

1 602 000

1 602 000

329 332

9 158 000

8 545 094

37 003

1 556 000

1 556 000

37 003

1 556 000

1 556 000

Pretoria

47 745

987 000

987 000

Cape Town

44 663

585 000

585 000

Johannesburg

48 584

468 000

421 200

Cape Town

12 386

185 000

185 000

153 378

2 225 000

2 178 200

Value centres
Shopping centres

673 244

19 973 000

17 906 494

Johannesburg
and Pretoria

52 206

749 000

749 000

Development property

Johannesburg

35 950

1 187 000

1 187 000

Held for sale(2)

Johannesburg
761 400

21 909 000

19 842 494

2 279 253

2 279 253

111 109

336 994

24 299 362

22 458 741

Stand-alone offices
(1)

Investment property
Listed property securities(4)
Atterbury Africa
Hyprop Mauritius
Word4Word Marketing
Fund management
Net interest
Straight-line rental income accrual
Non-core income

761 400
Reconciliation to statement of ﬁnancial position
Held for sale – investment in associate
Other non-current assets
Other current assets

121 569
102 636
298 996
22 981 942

Note
(1)

Rosebank Mall – transferred to development property from September 2012
Southern Sun Hyde Park
(3) Based on 2013 net property income for six months and December 2012 valuations
(4) Investments in Sycom – held for sale
(2)
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244 917

178 398

244 917

178 398

3,4

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Receivables
R000

Payables
R000

212

50 725

212

50 725

102 821

3,5

22 854

34 988

63 602

3,6

8 857

23 027

94 511

65 380

3,7

23 948

19 558

3,9

15 878

35 834

71 537

113 407

94 695

59 298

442 535

291 101

83 504

53 686

83 504

53 686

3,8

6 728

19 120

6 728

19 120

Hyprop in brief

154 291
99 038

Loans
R000

Performance

38 363

4,0

4 733

10 424

22 644

3,7

4 766

10 520

32 096

15 170

3,5

1 969

41 861

10 822

7 036

4,1

754

3 572

133 972

83 213

12 222

66 377

904 928

606 398

90 699

249 629

53 424

34 034

7 532

17 983

44 745

19 953

4 213

3 157

102 444

270 769

21

1 536

1 120

4 861

7 295

(26 212)

116 849

74 202

5 384 486

Risk management

51 026
40 028

4,8

-185
1 003 097

660 200

74 939

74 939

2014 in perspective

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net
Historic
property
yield(3)
income
Revenue
R000
R000
%

1 434

Governance

5 574

(195 237)
15 879
517 253

224 175

353 802

5 384 486

1 099 489

517 253

224 175

353 802

5 384 486

28

11

21

18
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1 099 489
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Shareholder analysis
at 30 June 2014

Number of
unitholders
4 915
4 299
734
183
46

%
48,30
42,24
7,21
1,80
0,45

Number of
units
2 590 032
13 034 747
21 756 607
58 835 345
147 039 361

%
1,06
5,36
8,94
24,19
60,45

10 177

100,00

243 256 092

100,00

Number of
unitholders
47
89
160
7 098
48
21
20
243
5
44
1
240
5
265
1 891

%
0,46
0,87
1,57
69,75
0,47
0,21
0,20
2,39
0,05
0,43
0,01
2,36
0,05
2,60
18,58

Number of
units
10 979 776
408 844
2 281 128
14 888 082
9 800 487
1 209 475
453 022
101 800 082
20 133
226 854
153 659
8 468 365
4 840 333
74 906 598
12 819 254

%
4,51
0,17
0,94
6,12
4,03
0,50
0,19
41,85
0,01
0,09
0,06
3,48
1,99
30,79
5,27

10 177

100,00

243 256 092

100,00

Number of
unitholders
7
5
2
10 170

%
0,07
0,05
0,02
99,93

Number of
units
34 572 425
490 703
34 081 722
208 683 667

%
14,21
0,20
14,01
85,79

10 177

100,00

243 256 092

100,00

Beneﬁcial unitholders holding 5% or more
Government Employees Pension Fund
Stanlib
Coronation Fund Managers
Investment Solutions
Old Mutual
Investec

Number of
units
34 081 722
16 035 933
14 599 829
13 303 842
12 773 159
12 538 754

%
14,01
6,59
6,00
5,47
5,25
5,15

Total

103 333 239

42,48

Unitholder spread
1 – 1 000 units
1 001 – 10 000 units
10 001 – 100 000 units
100 001 – 1 000 000 units
1 000 001 units and over
Total

Distribution of unitholdings
Banks
Close corporations
Endowment funds
Individuals
Insurance companies
Investment companies
Medical schemes
Mutual funds
Nominees
Other corporations
Own holdings
Private companies
Public companies
Retirement funds
Trusts
Total

Public/non-public unitholdings
Non-public unitholders
Directors of the company
Strategic holdings (more than 10%)
Public unitholders
Total
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Shareholders’ diary
Financial year-end
Publication of ﬁnancial results
Annual general meeting
Integrated report available to shareholders
Publication of interim report

30 June
29 August 2014
25 November 2014
13 October 2014
February 2015

Distribution/dividend details
Interest on debentures
Six months ended:
30 June
31 December

2014
(cents)

2013
(cents)

241
231

213
211

472

424

Administration
Registered office and business address

Transfer secretaries

Registration number: 1987/005284/06
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Website: www.hyprop.co.za

Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited
Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street
Johannesburg, 2001
PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107

Corporate advisor and sponsor
Java Capital
2 Arnold Road, Rosebank, 2196
PO Box 2087, Parklands, 2121

Independent auditors
Grant Thornton
(Member ﬁrm of Grant Thornton International)
42 Wierda Road West
Wierda Valley
2196

Company secretary
CIS Company Secretaries Proprietary Limited
Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street
Johannesburg, 2001
PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107
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